
 

**In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify the City Bellevue, 115 East 
Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, or phone number 208-788-2128 ext. 4, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting. 
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 
 
 
  
 

COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO 

TUESDAY, MAY 27, 2025, 5:30 PM 
115 E. PINE STREET, BELLEVUE, IDAHO 83313 

AGENDA 
Agendas may be amended 

JOIN ZOOM MEETING: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RnVFUFpGYWNjd29Zdz09&omn=89535768901 

MEETING ID: 627 312 2357 
PASSCODE: 606XKf 

ONE TAP MOBILE 
+1-253-215-8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1-346-248-7799 US (Houston) 

PLEASE MUTE YOUR CALL: PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES EXCEPT FOR EMERGENCY PERSONNEL. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

1. NOTICE OF AGENDA COMPLIANCE (PER IDAHO CODE §74-204): ACTION ITEM 
Finding that the regular meeting notice and agenda were posted in accordance with Idaho Code §74-204 within 
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting at: The City of Bellevue City Hall, Post Office, and on the City’s website 
on May 22, 2025. Suggested Motion: Move that the notice for the May 27, 2025, meeting was completed in 
accordance with Idaho Code, Section §74-204.) 

2.  CALL FOR CONFLICT (AS OUTLINED IN IDAHO CODE §74-404):  ACTION ITEM 

3.  MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORT 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION ITEMS 

a.  Approval of Minutes: April 28, 2025: Amy Phelps, City Clerk 

b.  Approval of Claims May 13, through May 27, 2025: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer 

c.  Treasurers report 

d.  Consideration of an encroachment permit application for 1261 N Main Street: Chris Johnson, Public 
Works Director 

e.  Consideration of a fee waiver application for June 9 – August 22, Monday and Wednesday, use of a 
portion of Memorial Park for the summer food program/free lunch for kids: Chloe Lichtenberg: The 
Hunger Coalition  

5.  PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION ITEM  (CONTINUED FROM MAY 12, 2025) 

LLA-25-01 – TBD Lewis Lane – Judy & Keith Meyers  
An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original 
Plat. The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels into three (3) 
parcels and include a request for waivers from code requirements: Brian Parker, Community 
Development Director | ACTION ITEM 

a. Site visit  
b. Continuation in Council Chambers 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RnVFUFpGYWNjd29Zdz09&omn=89535768901


 

**In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify the City Bellevue, 115 East 
Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, or phone number 208-788-2128 ext. 4, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting. 
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 
 
 
 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Consideration and approval of Ordinance 2025-05 granting to Intermountain Gas Company a 

ten (10) year extension to its franchise to construct, maintain and operate a gas transmission 
and distribution system: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer | ACTION ITEM 

7. BUDGET WORKSHOP  

a. Budget workshop 1: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer  

8. PUBLIC COMMENT: FOR ITEMS OF CONCERN NOT ON THE AGENDA – (COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES)  

9. ADJOURNMENT: ACTION ITEM 
 

*If you would like to submit written comment on a public hearing agenda item: Submit your comments to 
aphelps@bellevueidaho.us. for adequate consideration, please submit no later than noon on the day of the meeting. 

 
 

2

mailto:aphelps@bellevueidaho.us


**En cumplimiento con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
Ciudad Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 

CONSEJO COMÚN

CIUDAD DE BELLEVUE, IDAHO

MARTES 27 DE MAYO 2025 17:30 HRS. 
115 E. PINE STREET, BELLEVUE, IDAHO 83313

AGENDA 
El orden del día podrá ser modificado 

ÚNASE A LA REUNIÓN DE ZOOM: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RnVFUFpGYWNjd29Zdz09&omn=89535768901

ID DE REUNIÓN: 627 312 2357
CÓDIGO DE ACCESO: 606XKF

MÓVIL CON UN TOQUE

+1-253-215-8782 EE. UU. (Tacoma) 
+1-346-248-7799 EE. UU. (Houston) 

POR FAVOR, SILENCIE SU LLAMADA: APAGUE TODOS LOS TELÉFONOS CELULARES, EXCEPTO EL PERSONAL DE EMERGENCIA. 

LLAMADA AL ORDEN

PASE DE LISTA

1. AVISO DE CUMPLIMIENTO DE LA AGENDA (SEGÚN EL CÓDIGO DE IDAHO §74-204): ELEMENTO DE ACCIÓN

Determinar que el aviso y la agenda de la reunión regular se publicaron de acuerdo con el Código de Idaho §74-
204 dentro de las cuarenta y ocho (48) horas anteriores a la reunión en: El Ayuntamiento de la Ciudad de Bellevue, 
la Oficina de Correos y en el sitio web de la Ciudad el 22 de mayo de 2025. Moción sugerida: Presentar una moción 
para que el aviso para la reunión del 27 de mayo DE 2025 se complete de acuerdo con el Código de Idaho, Sección 
§74-204). 

2. LLAMADA PARA CONFLICTO (COMO SE DESCRIBE EN EL CÓDIGO DE IDAHO §74-404): ELEMENTO DE ACCIÓN

3. INFORME DEL ALCALDE Y DEL CONCEJO

4. ORDEN DEL DÍA CONVENIDO: PUNTOS DE ACCIÓN

a. Aprobación de actas: 28 de abril de 2025: Amy Phelps, Secretaria Municipal 

b. Aprobación de reclamaciones del 13 al 27 de mayo de 2025: Shelly Shoemaker, Tesorera 

c. Informe de los tesoreros 

d. Consideración de una solicitud de permiso de invasión para 1261 N Main Street: Chris Johnson, 
Director de Obras Públicas 

e. Consideración de una solicitud de exención de tarifas para el 9 de junio al 10 de agosto, lunes y 
miércoles, uso de una parte de Memorial Park para el programa de alimentos de verano/almuerzo 
gratis para niños: Chloe Lichtenberg: The Hunger Coalition  

5. AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA: PUNTO DE ACCIÓN (CONTINUACIÓN DESDE EL 12 DE MAYO DE 2025) 

LLA-25-01 - TBD Lewis Lane - Judy y Keith Meyers  
Una solicitud para un ajuste de línea de lote para los lotes 1-6, manzana 96 del plano original de 
Bellevue Townsite. El ajuste propuesto de la línea de lote reconfigurará las seis (6) parcelas 
existentes en tres (3) parcelas e incluirá una solicitud de exenciones de los requisitos del código: 
Brian Parker, Director de Desarrollo Comunitario | ELEMENTO DE ACCIÓN

a. Visita al sitio  

3



**En cumplimiento con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
Ciudad Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunión deben notificar a la 
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al número de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunión. 

b. Continuación en las Salas del Consejo 

6. NUEVOS NEGOCIOS

a. Consideración y aprobación de la Ordenanza 2025-05 que otorga a Intermountain Gas 
Company una extensión de diez (10) años a su franquicia para construir, mantener y operar un 
sistema de transmisión y distribución de gas: Shelly Shoemaker, Tesorera | ELEMENTO DE ACCIÓN

7. TALLER DE PRESUPUESTO 

a. Taller de presupuesto 1: Shelly Shoemaker, Tesorera 

8. COMENTARIO PÚBLICO: PARA TEMAS DE INTERÉS QUE NO ESTÁN EN LA AGENDA – (LOS COMENTARIOS ESTÁN LIMITADOS 

A 3 MINUTOS)

9. APLAZAMIENTO: PUNTO DE ACCIÓN

*Si desea enviar comentarios por escrito sobre un tema de la agenda de una audiencia pública: Envíe sus comentarios a 
aphelps@bellevueidaho.us. para su adecuada consideración, envíelos a más tardar al mediodía del día de la reunión. 

4



Memorandum 

To: Bellevue Common Council 

From: Amy Phelps, City Clerk 

Re: Consent Agenda  

Date: May 27, 2025 

Suggested Motion  

Move to approve the Consent Agenda as: amended, corrected, or as presented.  

Enclosures 

1. April 28, 2025, Regular Common Council Meeting Minutes 

2. Claims Payable May 13 through May 27, 2025  

3. Treasurers Report 

4. Encroachment Permit Application  

5. Fee Waiver Request      

5



CITY OF BELLEVUE 
COMMON COUNCIL 

April 28, 2025 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025  

Approved May 27, 2025 

The Common Council of the City of Bellevue, Idaho met at a Regular Meefing on Monday, April 28, 2025, at 5:30 
p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City of Bellevue Offices, located at 115 E. Pine Street, Bellevue, ID 83313. 

Call to Order: Mayor Giordani called the Regular Meefing to order at 5:31 p.m. (00:00:07 in video)

Roll Call: (00:00:13 in video)

Chrisfina Giordani, Mayor – Present  
Diane Shay, Council President – Present  
Tammy E. Davis, Council Member – Present  
Suzanne Wrede, Council Member – Present  
Shaun Mahoney, Council Member – Present  
Tom Bergin, Council Member – Present  
Jessica Obenauf, Council Member – Absent  

Staff Present:
Shelly Shoemaker, City Treasurer
Amy Phelps, City Clerk 
Rick Allington, Legal Counsel  
Brian Parker, Community Development Director  
Greg Beaver, Fire Chief  
Kirtus Gaston, Marshal  
Chris Johnson, Public Works Director 

Others in Aftendance: Tony Evans (Idaho Mountain Express), Tom Perry, Liji Waite, Ian Blacker

1. Nofice of Agenda Compliance: (00:00:59 in video)
The posfing of this regular meefing agenda complied with Idaho Code §74-204. The regular meefing agenda was 
posted within forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meefing at the Bellevue City Hall, Post Office, and on the City 
website on April 24, 2025.

Mofion: Council Member Davis moved that the agenda nofice was in compliance with Idaho Code §74-204. 
Council President Shay seconded, and the mofion passed unanimously. 

2. MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORT: (00:01:40 in video)
Mayor Giordani gave a reminder that next week is the ERC clean up. Council Member Jessica Obenauf worked 
with Mike from Clear Creek Disposal to get addifional dumpsters for the City of Bellevue residents to dump 
wood, furniture, appliances, and fires. She stated that the starts at 9 am on Saturday and it’s an opportunity to 
parficipate in cleaning up the city.  

(00:02:40 in video) Council Member Bergin said the new fliers on Main Street stand out and are reflecfive. He 
said the reflecfive aspect would be valuable in December when it’s dark at 5:00 in the evening and that it’s 
entertaining when they blow in the wind at night. Mayor Giordani said she was glad he brought those up and 
they were spearheaded by Casey from the Streets Department. They are a first step in public safety- not a 
solufion, but a first step. 

Item 4a
6



Page 2 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

(00:03:41 in video) Council Member Wrede said she wanted to suggest that a member from the Parks Commiftee 
be added to the Blue Cross grant group because they have an extraordinary wealth of knowledge. Mayor 
Giordani agreed and said Brian Parker, Community Development Director, has been working with the Parks 
Commiftee to have a representafive join in on the (Blue Cross Grant) group. 

3. Public Comment: For Items of Concern Not on the Agenda (00:04:48 in the video)
The Mayor opened the meefing for public comment at 5:36 pm.  

Liji Waite, 317 Pine Street (00:5:08 in video) 
Liji Waite, a longfime resident of 317 Pine Street, shared that for over a decade, he has maintained and gardened 
a secfion of the alleyway behind his home, transforming it from an overgrown area into a producfive vegetable 
garden that helps feed his family. He acknowledges the alleyway is public property and makes no ownership 
claim, but he assumes the risk of gardening there and has received posifive feedback from neighbors.
After placing logs on the freshly filled soil to caufion others of its softness, a city official contacted his wife the 
next day to say his use of the space was not permifted. When he followed up with Public Works, they confirmed 
it was against regulafions but said it was his choice to confinue. The day after that call, gravel was dumped 
specifically where his garden was, and a steamroller flaftened it—though no similar acfion was taken in other 
parts of the alleyway, including areas with trash or trees within the right-of-way. 
Waite expressed that this acfion felt targeted and retaliatory, especially since the garden did not obstruct traffic. 
He plans to confinue planfing there despite the risk, emphasizing that he uses the space responsibly and 
improves its condifion without causing harm. He concluded by invifing quesfions from the council.

Mayor Giordani said she received Mr. Waite’s wriften public comment and has seen the photographs and 
appreciates him coming in tonight and giving comment in person. She explained she had intended to read the 
wriften comment, but it was nice to hear him speak on behalf of it tonight. She said she hears everything he’s 
saying and thinks there is a discussion to be had about the alleyways and would like to get back with him at a 
later date to have a further discussion. Mr. Waite expressed that the alleyway was clean, in his opinion and that 
there was nothing other than filled dirt there. 

Tom Perry, 217 S. 3rd Street (00:12:04 in video)
Tom Perry, a neighbor of Liji Waite, voiced strong support for Waite and crificized the city’s destrucfion of Waite’s 
alleyway garden as “ridiculous” and “stupid,” saying whoever ordered it should be fired. He emphasized that the 
garden caused no problems and was a posifive use of space.
Perry said he primarily came to praise Council Member Suzanne Wrede for her clear, balanced, and informafive 
newslefter, Bellevue Mafters, which he said helps residents befter understand city issues. He warned the council 
that increased transparency will lead to greater public engagement, parficularly among older residents, 
potenfially resulfing in significant polifical change.
He crificized the city’s handling of recent growth, parficularly a gas stafion project that he said turned into a large 
truck stop, calling it poor planning. He argued the city should halt new development unfil the sewer system is 
upgraded and paid for. 
Perry also condemned the hiring of the Public Works Director, claiming the posifion was created and filled 
without proper public nofice or process. He called it a failure of government transparency and fairness.
He closed by referencing his long history in the town and communicafions experfise, stafing he’d “shot [his] 
mouth off,” but reiterated his support for Wrede, calling her work intelligent and much-needed. 

Suzanne Wrede, 24 Muldoon Canyon Road (00:17:33 in video)
Suzanne Wrede read her comment. The wriften public comment is aftached as exhibit a. 

7



Page 3 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

(00:25:23 in video) Mayor Giordani said this wouldn’t be a back-and-forth conversafion, but when she has the 
requested documents they will be sent to Council and made available as appropriate. She asserted that Council 
Member Wrede had misinformed the public during a public comment and defended her own right to clarify the 
situafion. Wrede appeared frustrated by the tone of the Mayor’s remarks and said she made a Public Comment 
and she didn’t want to be lectured about the comment.  

(00:25:23 in video) Chris Johnson, the Public Works Director, highlighted the recent efforts of the city’s street 
crew, nofing their hard work over the past few weeks. He menfioned that street sweeping has been underway in 
the mornings, with recent rain helping reduce dust. He further stated that Crews have also been using the hot 
patching equipment to fill potholes—acknowledging that some repairs are temporary fixes, but emphasizing the 
team's commitment and ongoing effort to improve road condifions.

Public comment was closed at 5:58 pm. (00:26:57 in video)

4. CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION ITEMS (00:27:06 in video)

5. CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION ITEMS

a. Approval of Minutes: April 14,  2025, Regular Meefing Minutes: Amy Phelps, City Clerk
b. Approval of Claims April 15, through April 28, 2025: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer 
c. Treasurer’s Report: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer 

(00:27:06 in video) Council Member Wrede said she would like the approval of minutes to be reevaluated based 
on the public comment received. Council President Shay said she would second that. Mayor Giordani said that 
the Council needed to make a mofion in order to pull the minutes from the consent agenda. 

Mofion: (00:27:37 in video) Council Member Davis moved pull the minutes presented on the consent agenda 
for further review. Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: 
Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, 
Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.  

Mofion: (00:28:50 in video) Council President Shay moved to Approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 
Council Member Wrede Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: Council Member Bergin, 
Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis.
Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

6. PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION ITEM (00:29:21 in video)

a. LLA-25-01 – TBD Lewis Lane – Judy & Keith Meyers  
An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original Plat. 
The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels into three (3) parcels 
and include a request for waivers from code requirements: Brian Parker, Community Development 
Director | ACTION ITEM

Brian Parker, Community Development Director, explained that due to some last-minute tweaks on the 
application and due to the applicant’s team not being available for this meeting he is requesting to 
continue the Public Hearing to the meeting on May 12th. 

Mofion: (00:30:04 in video) Council Member Daivs moved confinue the Public Hearing for an application for a 
lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original Plat to a date certain of May 
12, 2025. Council member Shay Seconded the Mofion for discussion.  

Council President Shay said Council Member Bergin would not be able to aftend the meefing on May 12th and 

8



Page 4 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

he asked if it would be possible to confinue the public hearing to the next meefing, May 27th. Mr. Parker said he 
had not heard back from the applicant about moving the hearing to the 27th, and he recommended to confinue 
to the 12th of May at this fime.  

The mofion held. 

Council Members Vofing Aye: Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis.
Council Members Vofing Nay: Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede. The Mofion Passed.

7. PROCLAMATION 

a. Proclamafion for Mental Health Awareness Month beginning May 2025 (This measure recognizes May 
2025 as Mental Health Awareness Month in Blaine County to enhance public awareness of mental health 
and well-being, dispelling the sfigma surrounding it.) 

(00:27:06 in video) Mayor Giordani read the Proclamafion. 

8. Old Business

a. Confinuafion of Public Works Request for Funds for a Motor Grader: Chris Johnson, Public Works Director 
| Acfion Item

(00:35:31 in video) Public Works Director Chris Johnson presented justification for acquiring a new Caterpillar 
motor grader through a lease-purchase agreement, bypassing the traditional bidding process by using a 
nationally and state-approved cooperative purchasing program. This approach is commonly used by 
municipalities and provides pre-negotiated discounted rates that meet procurement requirements. 

Johnson explained he sought comparable bids from John Deere but received no response. Of the two Caterpillar 
options, he recommended the higher-horsepower CAT 150 AWD model, which is better suited for snow removal 
in higher elevations like Springs and reservoirs. The cost for this model is $467,746, financed over seven years 
with annual payments of $51,106.43 at a 5.49% interest rate. After the term, rather than making a large final 
payment (~$357,745), the city could enter a new lease, keeping equipment up to date and under warranty. 

The cost breaks down to $4,258.87 per month, split among three departments (~$1,419.63 each). Johnson 
noted there are already funds earmarked for vehicle purchases in the water and wastewater budgets, and he is 
reviewing street department allocations. 

He also addressed a suggestion to purchase a used grader (a 1984 model found in Mountain Home), he stated it 
was outdated, underpowered, lacking necessary snow equipment, and not all-wheel drive. He said used options 
under $250,000 were risky, as they come without warranties and might require significant maintenance. 

Mr. Johnson concluded that leasing new equipment with warranties is a standard practice in municipalities (as is 
done with the city’s Marshal vehicles) and provides long-term reliability, cost efficiency, and predictable 
budgeting. 

(00:41:51 in video) Council Member Bergin asked if this was a lease. Mr. Johnson replied it was and there is a 
purchase opfion with a balloon payment. He stated the City could also revolve back into a new lease with a new 
vehicle.  

Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer explained that leasing is the standard method cifies use to afford major equipment 
purchases. It allows the city to obtain necessary equipment without needing large upfront cash payments, which 

9



Page 5 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

aren’t feasible given the budget. Leasing ensures the city has reliable, up-to-date equipment and avoids being 
stuck with outdated, ineffecfive machinery from the 1980s. The costs are planned for annually in the budget.

(00:43:19 in video)  Council Member Wrede asked why less expensive examples, like Ketchum’s recent grader 
purchase, weren’t considered and raised concerns about lacking documentafion on return on investment (ROI), 
usage hours, and alternafive opfions like seasonal rental if it would be used primarily for snow. She said she 
appreciates that we’ve complied with the law, but it is not in the budget, and she does not believe it can be 
evaluated without more documentafion. 

In response, Public Works Director Chris Johnson explained that renfing similar equipment can be significantly 
more expensive—potenfially $10,000 per month, totaling around $60,000 for six months—and lacks the long-
term benefit of ownership. He added that leasing guarantees year-round access and updated equipment. 
He also clarified that the motor grader is essenfial for clearing snow to access meter vaults, valves, and manholes 
throughout the city during winter, as well as for maintaining access to the spring system, which requires daily 
monitoring. These tasks support both water and wastewater operafions, jusfifying their shared use of the 
equipment. 

(00:46:19 in video)  Council Member Wrede asked how frequently the water and wastewater departments use 
the motor grader and for what purposes. Mr. Johnson responded that the grader is crifical during the six-month 
snow season, allowing city crews to access infrastructure such as meter vaults, valves, manholes, and the spring 
system, which are often located in or near roads. Without the grader, heavy snowfall creates berms that smaller 
plow trucks cannot manage, especially when accessing remote areas like the water spring, wastewater treatment 
plant, and water tank—all requiring daily or frequent access. Mr. Johnson esfimated the grader was used 50–80 
hours this winter alone. He noted that, with proper staffing and equipment, the city could potenfially stop 
contracfing that work and manage it in-house.  

In response to a follow-up quesfion from Council President Shay, Johnson confirmed the grader is also used in 
the summer months for road maintenance, including regrading gravel streets, repairing washouts, and 
maintaining roads at city facilifies. He highlighted that the grader is the most versafile piece of equipment
available year-round and preferable to owning mulfiple specialized machines.

(00:52:27 in video)  Council Member Wrede asked whether increasing the city’s contract with Lunsford (or 
similar contractors) might be a more cost-effecfive alternafive to purchasing a motor grader—especially in lighter 
snow years. She quesfioned if there had been a financial analysis comparing those opfions.
Public Works Director Chris Johnson responded that even during the past two relafively light snow years, the city 
sfill came close to maxing out its $50,000 annual contract—reaching around $47,000 in 2023. Treasurer 
Shoemaker added that in 2023 alone, the city spent $130,000 on snow removal contractors, which was in 
addifion to the city’s own efforts and occurred before the city had any snow equipment of its own. 

(00:52:27 in video)  Council Member Bergin asked if Mr. Johnson could go over the numbers again.  

Public Works Director Chris Johnson explained how the cost of the proposed motor grader could be shared 
across mulfiple departments, specifically water, wastewater, and streets, to make it more financially manageable. 
He explained that although the grader is not in the current year’s budget, it's important to decide now because 
delivery would take about eight months, aligning with next year’s budget cycle. He said the Wastewater 
Department has $30,000 budgeted for equipment this year, none of which has been used. The Water 
Department has $20,000 budgeted for the same purpose and these funds could be applied toward the grader, 
reducing the financial burden. 

10



Page 6 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

Mr. Johnson noted that he will work with Treasurer Shoemaker to review and potenfially reallocate street 
department funds as well, while maintaining necessary confingency reserves for emergencies (e.g., a recent 
$40,000 repair to a broken pump on a $500,000 vac truck). 
He said the goal is to use already budgeted funds where possible rather than reallocafing money not intended 
for equipment, and that he and Miss Shoemaker are preparing a preliminary budget proposal for the coming 
year to reflect this approach. 

(00:56:56 in video) Council Member Wrede asked what the department would have to forgo when the money is 
spent on the piece of equipment. Mr. Johnson went over the money allocated for the water and wastewater 
departments and said they wouldn’t be forgoing anything. Council Member Wrede followed up asking what the 
money was originally budgeted for. Mr. Johnson explained that while some years may not require immediate 
equipment purchases, he prefers to save funds for larger, more strategic investments. One such need is a valve 
exercising trailer, which cleans and cycles water valves to extend their life and ensure funcfionality during 
emergencies.  

(01:00:33 in video) Council Member Wrede acknowledged the value of the proposed equipment but expressed 
concern about moving forward without a more informafion on the overall budget. She found it surprising that 
leftover funds were available while the city sfill struggles with basic maintenance needs like potholes, signage, 
and street striping. She also noted concerns about how expenses appear to be evenly distributed across 
departments, despite varying usage levels, and stressed the importance of understanding opportunity costs. 
Council Member Wrede offered to assist in finding cost-effecfive alternafives, such as used vehicles, but stated 
she could not support the purchase unfil more comprehensive budget informafion is available.

Mr.  Johnson clarified that the current budget went into effect on October 1, 2024 and Bellevue is now only 
halfway through the fiscal year. He explained that for the first five months (November through March), road 
work like pothole patching and striping isn’t feasible due to winter condifions, as staff are focused on snow 
removal. Now that the weather is improving, they have begun using those funds, including already purchasing 
the first load of asphalt mix early to avoid supply shortages. Johnson emphasized that materials like oil and chip 
have limited shelf life and are currently in short supply. He also noted that while there were no major equipment 
purchases planned in the current budget, funds were allocated in case staffing levels increased. With more staff 
and potenfial interns coming on board, there will be a greater need for addifional vehicles. He stressed that the 
department sfill has fime to make use of the budgeted funds in the remaining six months.

(01:05:08 in video) Mayor Giordani asked for details about the sales agreement and lease terms if the city were 
to proceed with the equipment purchase, specifically inquiring whether there would be a down payment and if 
there is a cancellafion clause or fee—parficularly if the city later finds the budget cannot support the purchase. 
Mr. Johnson responded that there is no down payment required. Regarding cancellafion, he said he would need 
to verify the terms of the lease agreement. Mayor Giordani acknowledged the long lead fime on equipment 
delivery and recognized that Mr. Johnson brought the mafter forward now to allow fime for council 
considerafion. She went on to ask whether, given the long lead fime for equipment delivery and the fact that 
costs wouldn’t begin unfil the equipment is received (placing the expense in a future budget cycle), the city could 
cancel the agreement if, after reviewing all the informafion during the next budget season, it decided not to 
move forward. 

(01:06:10 in video) Council Member Shay asked if this was something the council will be working on in the 
upcoming budget cycle. More discussion was had, and it was decided that the next step would be to ask for the 
lease agreement for further council and legal counsel review. No decision was made to execute the lease at this 
fime. 

11



Page 7 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

Mofion: (01:19:38 in video)  Council President Shay moved to confinue the discussion with respect to the 
purchase/lease of a motor grader for the public works department to the May 27th Common Council 
Meefing. Council Member Mahoney Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: Council 
Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council 
Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

9. New Business 
a. Considerafion and Approval of Resolufion No. 25-13, authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum 

of Understanding (MOU) by and between the City of Bellevue and EE-DA-HO RANCH to establish terms 
and condifions under which the owner will allow access to and over EE-DA-HO property to complete 
preparafion of the Preliminary Engineering Report: Rick Allington, Legal Counsel | Acfion Item

(01:20:27 in video) Rick Allington, City Aftorney, explained that the City gets its water from springs at Siemens 
Creek through a basic PVC collecfion system that may need rehabilitafion. He clarified there are concerns about 
the system's locafion, parficularly in relafion to the road, due to DEQ regulafions requiring water infrastructure 
to be at least 100 feet from it. The City sfill receives its allofted 3 CFS of water, but adjustments may be necessary 
based on where the collecfion points actually are. Part of the project involves moving the water main from the 
spring to the road, which requires land surveys on the EE-DA-HO Ranch. The MOU allows access to the ranch to 
conduct these surveys. The results will guide the preliminary engineering report, which will determine the final 
plan for the water system project.

(01:22:47 in video) Council President Shay clarified that the resolufion is to approve entering into an MOU, with 
the actual detailed MOU to follow. Mr. Allington answered yes and further noted that the landowner (Mr. 
Morowitz) wants to ensure the City is only using its allowed 3 CFS of water and expects to be part of all 
discussions. In return, the City will be able to access the land and move forward with necessary work on the 
water system. He further explained that the MOU allows access to the EE-DA-HO Ranch for land surveys, which 
are needed to complete the preliminary engineering report. Once that report is done, the City will decide what 
needs to happen next—such as possibly relocafing the collecfion system to comply with DEQ regulafions or 
making improvements to protect the water source. The main immediate goal is complefing the land survey.
Council Member Wrede sought clarificafion on the MOU’s durafion. It was concluded that the term was to the 
end of the project.  

(01:25:23 in video) Council Member Wrede quesfioned the wording in the resolufion, specifically a “whereas” 
clause stafing the City received funding through the issuance of revenue bonds. she noted that no revenue 
bonds have actually been issued yet and asked whether that wording was accurate. She also asked about the 
status of grant funding, assuming the current grant was already being spent and that bonds would only be 
needed once that money runs out. Chris Johnson responded that while revenue bonds haven't been issued yet, 
the City is authorized to do so, which makes the language acceptable. He added that the City is sfill acfively 
pursuing addifional grants, and funding efforts are ongoing. He further examined the issues that have delayed 
the project, but focused on the MOU and moving forward.  

(01:27:54 in video) Council Member Wrede stated that she did not intend to be argumentafive but stated 
concerns about the fiming of the land access progress. She emphasized the importance of focusing on the 
current mafter and avoiding discussion about delays, saying, “I don’t think we need to go into ‘look what I did a 
year later, I’ve goften us on the property.’” She said to the council that deadlines have consistently been an issue 
and referenced an email she sent on April 1st of the previous year, in which she idenfified land access as a major 
concern.

12



Page 8 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

(01:28:38 in video) Council Member Bergin inquired about whether the tank valve repairs were on track to be 
completed by May 15th. Chris Johnson said he spoke with the engineering team who would be assisfing with 
that. He explained he had the parts, and the team said they could meet that commitment. Council Member 
Wrede asked what would happen if we missed the deadline, and if it would invalidate the agreement. Mr. 
Allington replied that it could.   

Mofion: (01:30:05 in video)  Council Member Bergin moved to approve Resolufion No. 25-13, authorizing the 
Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) by and between the City of Bellevue and 
EE-DA-HO RANCH to establish terms and condifions under which the owner will allow access to and 
over EE-DA-HO property to complete preparafion of the Preliminary Engineering Report Council 
President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: Council Member Bergin, Council 
Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis. Council 
Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

b. Considerafion and Approval of Resolufion No. 25-14 authorizing the formafion of a Comprehensive Plan 
Steering Commiftee: Brian Parker, Community Development Director | Acfion Item

(01:31:04 in video) Brian Parker, Community Development Director, explained that the resolufion establishes a 
temporary advisory commiftee to assist in developing the City’s comprehensive plan over the next couple of 
years. State law requires considerafion of a wide range of factors, so the commiftee includes representafives 
with relevant experfise from public agencies, nonprofits, and the community. He is sfill working to finalize 
membership, aiming for around 20 members, and expects to bring an addifional resolufion to add more names 
at the next meefing. Once formed, the commiftee will hold a kickoff meefing to outline the scope of work, 
fimeline, and project management expectafions, which will later be presented to the council.

(01:32:33 in video) Council Member Wrede conveyed her concern about the heavy representafion of social 
service organizafions and land use–focused NGOs on the advisory commiftee. She noted that some of these 
groups have been vocal about visions for Bellevue that may conflict with what many residents want. She pointed 
out that the commiftee includes a developer, an advocate for increased density, and someone who has redefined 
homelessness in a way that suggests long-fime residents without refirement savings should be subsidized—an 
idea she said has been promoted in Ketchum. Council Member Wrede asked whether the commiftee's 
composifion could be more balanced by including fewer NGOs and groups that promote ideas potenfially out of 
step with Bellevue residents’ views. Mr. Parker explained that the inclusion of public sector and nonprofit enfifies 
is intended to provide subject mafter experfise and ensure the comprehensive plan addresses key topics 
accurately and effecfively. He said the selected parficipants are based on his knowledge of the area and 
professional network, and he believes they are appropriate contacts. However, he welcomed input from the 
Council, nofing that the commiftee is sfill being finalized and addifional member suggesfions are encouraged.

(1:35:14 in video) Council Member Bergin said the proposed commiftee appeared to be a fairly diverse group 
and consistent with the types of parficipants involved in previous comprehensive planning efforts, both for the 
city and the county. He noted that while the individuals may be different, many of the same enfifies have been 
involved before, and nothing in the current list seemed inappropriate. He expressed openness to adding more 
members, especially interested Bellevue residents. He also menfioned that Tom Blanchard, a Bellevue resident 
and Mountain Rides board member, could be a beneficial addifion, even if transportafion isn't his specific focus.

(01:36:28 in video) Mayor Giordani said that when she first reviewed the staff report, she wanted to see more 
resident parficipafion. She was glad to learn the current list is just the first round and that there is room to add 
more members. She agreed with other council members who felt there should be greater involvement from local 

13



Page 9 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

residents and businesses. Mr. Parker said he’s rounding up a few more members and council members are 
welcome to recommend potenfial members for the comp plan steering commiftee. 

Council President Shay expressed support for the commiftee, calling it a diverse group with relevant experience 
and a strong stake in the city's future. She highlighted enfifies like BCRD, which has discussed developing local 
playfields, and the school district, which will use the plan to guide future school needs. She also noted the 
inclusion of the Canal Company as relevant due to the city's canals. Council President Shay welcomed cifizen 
involvement and was pleased to hear residents are interested in parficipafing, recognizing the process as long 
but rewarding for community engagement. 

(01:38:50 in video) Mr. Parker clarified that he’d like to have a resolufion to fill the remaining seats on the 
commiftee and aim to have the first commiftee meefing in early June. Council Member Wrede asked about the 
purpose of the advisory commiftee and whether it would serve as a resource for the group working on the 
comprehensive plan. Mr. Parker responded that he will be wrifing the plan himself, and the commiftee's role is to 
provide feedback, ensure data accuracy, and help shape the goals and policies. He emphasized the commiftee’s 
role in supporfing inclusive public engagement to ensure the plan reflects community input. 
Council Member Wrede followed up by asking how he plans to engage all residents to ensure the plan aligns 
with the community's desires and that outreach effecfively reaches a wide range of people.

(01:40:30 in video) Council Member Wrede asked if it is fair to say that Mr. Parker will be the one re-envisioning 
Bellevue and the majority of people (on the Comp Plan Commiftee) who do not live in Bellevue will be advising 
him. Parker said in response that the commiftee members would help guide and be involved in the creafion of 
the comp plan, and there needs to be a consistent voice and someone who will review the legal side and 
technical correctness. Council Member Wrede asked how residents would be engaged, Mr. Parker said to stay 
tuned and snacks would be provided. Council Member Bergin menfioned also that there would be a public 
hearing (to adopt the comp plan). 

(1:41:26 in video) Council Member Davis spoke about the previous comp plan public outreach. And clarified that 
the comp plan is being revised and updated, but completely re-wriften. Council Member Wrede inquired if the 
previous comp plan commiftee was comprised of residents and reiterated that this current plan would be 
pursued with advisors from outside the City. Mayor Giordani clarified that there are sfill seven remaining seats 
on the commiftee and would like to recommend they be filled with more residents. Council Member Wrede 
asked why she could not sign up to be on the commiftee. Mr. Parker explained that the council members would 
ulfimately vote on the comp plan and he would like the document to be a boftom-up direct democracy and 
when the Council members are introduced to the process they are inherently a top-down influence. More 
discussion followed about who on the list is a Bellevue resident. 

(01:44:56 in video) Council Member Wrede followed up by quesfioning why her own input would be considered 
“top down,” while individuals on the list—some of whom have published specific opinions advocafing for 
increased density in Bellevue—are not seen as having an agenda. She noted that these documented views 
suggest a clear vision for Bellevue’s development and asked how that differs from the perspecfive she brings in 
represenfing residents through adopfion of the comprehensive plan. It was concluded that it is different because 
Council Member Wrede will be ulfimately vofing to adopt the comp plan. Council Member Wrede further 
expressed concern that, unlike past processes which were resident-driven, the current advisory commiftee 
includes individuals who are acfively working to influence change across mulfiple communifies, rather than 
being rooted in Bellevue. She emphasized that in a small town, it’s important for residents—not outside 
advocates—to guide development. While acknowledging that Brian Parker is presenfing his best work and not 
intending to disparage it, she stated that the shift away from resident-led input is concerning.

14



Page 10 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

Mofion: (01:47:05 in video)  Council Member Bergin moved to approve Resolufion No. 25-14 authorizing the 
formafion of a Comprehensive Plan Steering Commiftee. Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. 
Council Members Vofing Aye: Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President 
Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The 
Mofion Passed.

Mayor Giordani stated she thought there was a need for a call to acfion for Bellevue residents who would like to 
join the Comp Plan Commiftee to email Brian Parker. 

c. Considerafion and Approval of Ordinance No. 2025-03 establishing a Community Events Commiftee, 
establishing responsibilifies, and providing for its membership and operafion: Brian Parker, Community 
Development Director | Acfion Item

Mayor Giordani explained that Council Member Obenauf had previously helped form an informal group to 
support city events through volunteer efforts. In response, she asked Brian Parker, Community Development 
Director and Kristen (Community Services Manager) to formalize this into an official Community Events 
Commiftee. The goal is to boost community programming, including potenfial cultural diversity events, in 
response to resident interest in more opportunifies for community connecfion. This inifiafive is the first step in 
establishing that formal commiftee. Mr. Parker explained a slight change in the resolufion document he printed 
out for the Council.  

Mofion: (01:50:28 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to waive three readings of the Ordinance 2025-03 
and read by fitle only. Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: 
Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, 
Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

Council President Shay read Ordinance 2025-03 by fitle only. 

Mofion: (01:52:29 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to approve Ordinance 2025-03 establishing a 
Community Events Commiftee, establishing responsibilifies, and providing for its membership and 
operafion, modified to include subsecfion C to state open meefing laws. The commiftee shall comply 
with the applicable provisions of Idaho’s Open Meefing Laws contained in fitle 74, Chapter 2 of Idaho 
code. Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: Council Member 
Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member 
Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

Mofion: (01:53:11 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to authorize publicafion of the summary of 
ordinance 2025-03 . Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: 
Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, 
Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

d. Consideration and Approval of Ordinance No. 2025-04 amending Bellevue’s City Code by amending Title 
9, Buildings and Construction, Section 9-2-4: Construction Standards and Design Criteria to enable 
administrative review for Encroachment permits for driveways and private streets, updating applicable 
design standards and criteria; and providing for the effective date of this ordinance upon passage, 
approval and publication according to law: Brian Parker, Community Development Director | ACTION ITEM

Mr. Parker explained that this proposed code change aims to improve fairness and efficiency in governance and 
code administration. Currently, driveway encroachment permits should be brought to the Council for approval, 

15



Page 11 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

as per City code, though they historically have not been. The change would officially make these permits 
administratively approved by the Public Works Department and the City Engineer. He noted that these permits 
are typically technical, routine, and not significant enough to require Council time. Delays from batching them 
for Council meetings can also lead to inefficient or unsafe construction activity in neighborhoods. 

(01:55:50 in Video) Council Member Wrede asked what specific inefficiencies in the current council led 
permifting process are irrelevant because currently, it’s not happening. Mr. Parker said the inefficiency is that we 
are not following our own code.  

Mayor Giordani wanted clarificafion that this ordinance will establish administrafive process for permits for 
driveways and private streets, not construcfion acfivifies such as ufility installafion. Mr. Parker said that is 
correct. Council Member Bergin asked if there is a reason ufilifies wouldn’t be included – that they are just as 
technical and maybe just as pressing. Mr. Parker responded that some items, like the undergrounding of power 
lines on the agenda tonight, could potenfially be handled administrafively. However, he wasn’t sure where 
exactly to draw the line yet. He noted that some ufility projects involve significant street disrupfion and extended 
work, which the Council should be aware of to inform the community and coordinate with capital improvement 
planning. Council Member Bergin stated in his experience ufilifies have been an administrafive process and staff 
generally understood the technical components and what was necessary to put the street back together. He 
further expressed that he knows it may be an administrafive burden to send out a lefter (of nofice) but as a 
neighbor, he would be curious to know what is happening with a ufility line.  

(02:00:34 in video) Parker acknowledged the need for befter communicafion and said he is exploring digital 
solufions like public maps or improved reporfing. Council Member Wrede asked about consistency and oversight, 
including how cumulafive impacts would be tracked and how to ensure fair applicafion of standards. Mr. Parker 
noted the city engineer—currently a contractor—would be responsible for technical approval and is subject to 
professional standards. He also noted that there is an appeals process for applicants who disagree with 
administrafive decisions. Council Member Wrede asked whether performance or transparency requirements 
(like monthly reporfing of issued permits) should be codified in the ordinance. Some members quesfioned 
whether formalizing such requirements would provide clarity and accountability over fime, especially as city staff 
or pracfices change. Mr. Parker caufioned against overloading ordinances with administrafive details befter 
handled at the staff or procedural level. Mayor Giordani suggested evaluafing how the new process funcfions 
before amending the ordinance, emphasizing that ordinances should be achievable and enforceable as wriften.
Finally, Mr. Parker clarified that driveway permits have historically not required neighbor nofificafion because 
they are considered technical, like building permits, and typically have limited external impact. 

Mofion: (02:13:58 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to waive three readings of the Ordinance 2025-04 
and read by fitle only. Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: 
Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, 
Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

Council President Shay read ordinance 2025-04 by fitle. 

Mofion: (01:52:29 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to approve Ordinance 2025-04 amending Title 9, 
Buildings and Construction, Section 9-2-4: Construction Standards and Design Criteria to enable 
administrative review for Encroachment permits for driveways and private streets, updating applicable 
design standards and criteria; and providing for the effective date of this ordinance upon passage, 
approval and publication according to law. Council Member Wrede Seconded the Mofion. Council 
Members Vofing Aye: Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, 

16



Page 12 of 12 
Common Council Minutes | April 28, 2025

Approved May 27, 2025 

Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion 
Passed. 

Mofion: (01:53:11 in video)  Council Member Davis moved to authorize publicafion of the summary of 
ordinance 2025-04 . Council President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: 
Council Member Bergin, Council Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, 
Council Member Davis. Council Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

e. Considerafion of an Encroachment Applicafion for the installafion of a transformer to serve underground 
service to new home 420 N. 6th Street: Bryan Manning, Idaho Power, Public Works, Community 
Development Department | Acfion Item

Chris Johnson, Public Works Director explained that Bryan Manning submifted an encroachment permit 
applicafion after contacfing him about ufility work that had already been noficed to surrounding residents. Mr. 
Johnson noted that under the exisfing code, ufility-related encroachments must be approved by the Council. He 
said he informed the applicant that he could not authorize the work without Council approval. 

(02:18:42 in Video) Council Member Davis asked about the planned temporary outage, to which Mr. Johnson 
explained it would only affect about four or five houses.  

Mofion: (02:20:14 in video)  Council Member Bergin moved to approve an Encroachment Applicafion for the 
installafion of a transformer to serve underground service to new home 420 N. 6th Street. Council 
President Shay Seconded the Mofion. Council Members Vofing Aye: Council Member Bergin, Council 
Member Wrede, Council President Shay, Council Member Mahoney, Council Member Davis. Council 
Members Vofing Nay: None. The Mofion Passed.

Adjournment:

(02:20:53 in Video) With no further business coming before the Common Council at this fime, Council Member 
Davis moved to adjourn the meefing. Council Member Bergin seconded the mofion. The meefing adjourned at 
8:01 p.m. The mofion passed unanimously.

 ________________________________  
Chrisfina Giordani, Mayor 

Aftest: 

_____________________________ 
Amy Phelps, City Clerk 

17



SUZANNE WREDE PUBLIC COMMENT 28 APRIL 2025 | Page 1 

In early March, I contacted DEQ because there had been no project plans or project status 
documentation shared with residents about the Drinking Water Project for close to a year. 
On March 31st, in response to that inquiry, Tyler Fortunati, the DEQ Drinking Water Bureau 
Chief, wrote to his DEQ staff, “It also sounds like Jeff’s discussions with the City’s 
engineer have conveyed that the final compliance deadline is still achievable at this 
time, so if they’re confident in that we’ll use it in the 2nd ACAS, and provide new 
deadlines for the other milestones that fit within it.” 

And yet 2 weeks later, the April 11th City newsletter led with the Mayor’s statement that the 
Bellevue Water Project is compliant with our already amended DEQ agreement. That 
statement was part of the Mayor’s message to the residents about the April 14 Water 
Project Presentation, the first presentation to the residents about the project in 10 months. 
And yet there was no documentation in the meeting packet that supported the Mayor’s 
compliance status statement or provided project details. A single document for a $12M 
project was provided. When I requested additional documentation, I was informed that 
financial documents were not relevant for compliance matters although a few were 
graciously added to the packet and I was further told I should not contact staff directly to 
request materials – they would be provided by the Mayor. 

I have received none of the documents I have requested from the Mayor for well over 1 
month nor those promised during the 4/14 meeting. 

I will state again that I do not believe that Bellevue is in compliance with the existing DEQ 
ACAS both because missed compliance items would naturally invalidate most compliance 
agreements and because the DEQ Drinking Water Bureau Chief said that we are not, that a 
2nd ACAS will be created. And yet the City has steadfastly maintained that we are, that no 
new agreement is needed, has sought to discredit me for not believing the City statements 
and continues to refuse to provide documentation about our compliance status. 

It comes down to this. I do not believe you and I do not believe anyone else should 
either. You have provided no reasons for me to believe you and there is no reason for 
anyone to blindly trust what happens at these meetings, especially after the conduct 
of the Mayor and the Council during the last meeting. 

During the April 14 meeting, Mayor and Council actions and statements uniformly 
conveyed to all Bellevue residents that this $12M project is being well-managed, is 
compliant and will not require a 2nd ACAS. And when I refused to accept the unsupported 
declarations being made and assurances being offered because they were contrary to DEQ 
statements, I was berated and chastised for creating my own “narrative.”  

Exhibit a
18



SUZANNE WREDE PUBLIC COMMENT 28 APRIL 2025 | Page 2 

I was mocked as being a “broken record” because I continue to demand that the City get 
out from behind the curtain and give the residents the transparency they want and deserve, 
especially around this project. 

When I questioned the quality and value of the project document provided by Merrick, I 
was told I was being disrespectful and that the Mayor found the document more than 
sufficient for the residents. How can this be true when the City requires far more 
documentation for a simple sign permit? A recent Maverik sign permit appeal contains 15 
pages of dimensions, summaries, graphic depictions and implementation details. But City 
Hall wants the residents to be impressed by a single flowchart for their $9M?  

When I brought up Council fiduciary duty and concerns about loan requirements, residents 
heard from this Council that reimbursement terms of the loan are not relevant because 
adverse situations aren’t likely to happen. And yet the terms are specific to possible land 
acquisitions from a landowner who currently will not let Bellevue access his property. So 
actually, an adverse outcome is just as likely as unlikely. Being prepared for contingencies 
is always important and should be a concern of any member of this community, especially 
elected representatives. 

When I brought up a need to know current details about the project, especially since 
previous details had led to concerns about pipe sizes and water rights, the residents heard 
from this Council that we should simply “let people do their job” rather than be informed 
about missed deadlines, details about how the work is being done, and specifics about 
how money is being spent.  

When I addressed the claims made during the meeting that there would be no land 
purchases or easements, meaning that nearly $1M of the bond funding dedicated to those 
acquisitions may no longer be needed, what the residents DID NOT hear is how the City is 
preparing to remove the funds originally earmarked for land acquisitions from the Bond 
liability total. 

When I expressed concerns about project delays and a lack of accountability around 
missed deadlines, I was asked “does this hurt you?” And the answer is yes, it does and it is 
something that any project manager or stakeholder should know without asking. It hurts all 
residents and specifically for me, it interferes with the other ways in which I hope to serve 
the residents as an alderman. Because time is money and because both financial and 
resource commitments reduce opportunities. Projects that drag on are used to excuse lack 
of progress in other areas. Projects that are struggling to meet deadlines require attention 
that could be spent on other things. So yes, the residents are all “hurt” when a project is 

19



SUZANNE WREDE PUBLIC COMMENT 28 APRIL 2025 | Page 3 

delayed for over one year and when the delays are dismissed as insignificant because that 
suggests it will likely happen again. 

The absence of supporting documentation for City statements and justification for Council 
efforts to discount and reject my questioning is alarming. Without proof of the City’s 
declarations, the video of the April 14th meeting doesn’t look like a passionate 
disagreement, it looks like a united effort to suppress the truth. It makes the “Water Project 
Presentation” look like it was intended to deceive the residents about the state of this 
project. And it raises serious ethical questions about the Mayor’s vigorous efforts to 
discredit the comments and concerns I made based on DEQ statements.  

Trust is an essential aspect of governance and leadership and without complete validation 
of City claims around this project, there cannot be, and should not be, any. The City must 
stop withholding documentation and information from the residents about this project and 
it must publish the specific statements and documents that show the Mayor’s declarations 
that a 2nd DEQ agreement IS NOT necessary is true and that Mr. Fortunati’s statement that a 
2nd DEQ agreement IS necessary is untrue. 

You will never succeed in bullying me into accepting false statements or into intentionally 
misleading my neighbors. You can suggest that residents don’t want the transparency, 
integrity and service from City Hall that I am a “broken record” demanding for all residents 
equally. But without documentation that supports City declarations, the April 14th meeting 
looks like an intentional effort to mislead the residents and when it didn’t go exactly as 
planned, the City “narrative” required that non-believers be discredited. It was 
unacceptable, unethical and recorded for the public record. 

This Project is overdue for proper oversight and so I will again call on the Mayor to adopt the 
resolution I submitted, and I will submit again here, that creates multiple requirements to 
force the City to engage in timely and professional-grade project, status, financial and 
exception reporting.  

I hope the residents can expect better from all of us going forward and I repeat my call for 
the City to provide the requested documentation that supports the City statements of 4/14 
that Mr. Fortunati’s statement of 3/31 about a 2nd ACAS is false. 

 

 

 

20



Item 4b
21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



Treasurer’s Report 
City of Bellevue  

Financial Statements 

As of April 30, 2025—FY2025 

58% of Budget 

15 of 26 Payrolls 

Citizens are invited to inspect this report at www.bellevueidaho.us 

City of Bellevue  

115 E Pine Street  

PO Box 825 

Bellevue, ID 83313 

208-913-0192 Treasurer’s Office 

Item 4c
29

http://www.bellevueidaho.us


Page: 1Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Report Criteria:

Includes only accounts with balances

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD
Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

General Fund

Admin

100-01-40000 Carryover .00 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.0%

100-01-41200 State Sales Tax Revenue 213,727.18 260,063.00 46,335.82 82.2%

100-01-41210 State Liquor Funds 43,314.00 65,000.00 21,686.00 66.6%

100-01-41400 Alcohol Permits 1,400.00 5,000.00 3,600.00 28.0%

100-01-41500 Business Licenses 18,712.44 18,500.00 212.44- 101.1%

100-01-41600 Franchise Fees 70,614.11 80,000.00 9,385.89 88.3%

100-01-41700 City Property Tax 531,318.94 877,079.00 345,760.06 60.6%

100-01-41710 Personal Property Replacement 4,016.48 7,073.00 3,056.52 56.8%

100-01-41800 Administrative Fees 57,388.00 208,684.00 151,296.00 27.5%

100-01-41900 Grants 1,000.00 .00 1,000.00- 0.0%

100-01-41901 Park Rental Fee 1,760.00- .00 1,760.00 0.0%

100-01-41950 Permit - Other .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.0%

100-01-45100 Interest Earned 7,990.54 .00 7,990.54- 0.0%

100-01-46100 DIF Administration 2,449.65 3,164.00 714.35 77.4%

100-01-49910 Returned Check Charges 270.00 .00 270.00- 0.0%

56.7%725,621.661,676,063.00950,441.34Total :

Admin

100-01-50001 Salaries & Wages 143,645.45 289,284.00 145,638.55 49.7%

100-01-50010 P/R Tax Expense 10,716.55 22,130.19 11,413.64 48.4%

100-01-50011 Insurance - Health 36,553.75 51,600.00 15,046.25 70.8%

100-01-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,477.95- 608.00 2,085.95 -243.1%

100-01-50017 Retirement 17,070.89 34,364.42 17,293.53 49.7%

100-01-51020 Publishing and Advertising 150.00 500.00 350.00 30.0%

100-01-51030 Bank Charges 233.02 .00 233.02- 0.0%

100-01-51060 Computer IT Support 10,212.50 15,000.00 4,787.50 68.1%

100-01-51062 Computers - Software & Subscri 6,238.06 17,000.00 10,761.94 36.7%

100-01-51075 Contingency Expense .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships 963.78 1,200.00 236.22 80.3%

100-01-51140 Legal Fees 9,114.00 8,000.00 1,114.00- 113.9%

100-01-51145 Legal - Prosecuting Attorney 11,124.00 22,000.00 10,876.00 50.6%

100-01-51150 Liability Insurance 6,915.44 6,915.00 .44- 100.0%

100-01-51180 Office Equipment Rental/Repair 3,759.87 7,303.92 3,544.05 51.5%

100-01-52010 Office Supplies 3,388.65 9,000.00 5,611.35 37.7%

100-01-52020 Internet Expense 1,734.85 4,164.00 2,429.15 41.7%

100-01-52040 Postage, Copies, Mailing 4,426.21 6,000.00 1,573.79 73.8%

100-01-52050 Professional Services 5,173.33 5,000.00 173.33- 103.5%

100-01-52060 Publishing 120.52 .00 120.52- 0.0%

100-01-52085 Storage 441.00 800.00 359.00 55.1%

100-01-52090 Supplies 1,009.41 1,000.00 9.41- 100.9%

100-01-52100 Telephone 7,749.00 11,000.00 3,251.00 70.4%

100-01-52120 Training & Meetings 2,109.54 2,000.00 109.54- 105.5%

100-01-52124 Travel Expense 923.43 600.00 323.43- 153.9%

100-01-56020 Service Contracts 12,250.00 15,000.00 2,750.00 81.7%

100-01-57000 Safety Equipment 29.49 .00 29.49- 0.0%

100-01-58110 Computer/Software Purchase 2,168.54 .00 2,168.54- 0.0%

100-01-66900 Reconciliation Adjustment .02 .00 .02- 0.0%

54.9%243,726.18540,469.53296,743.35Total Admin:

30



Page: 3Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

CD and P&Z

100-03-41805 Building Permits 46,337.65 50,000.00 3,662.35 92.7%

100-03-41806 Building Permit Plan Review Fe 24,774.05 37,050.00 12,275.95 66.9%

100-03-41809 Fence Permits 800.00 1,500.00 700.00 53.3%

100-03-41810 Manuf Home Install & Set down .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100-03-41811 Roof Permit 3,200.38 7,000.00 3,799.62 45.7%

100-03-41815 Application Fees 1,780.00 7,000.00 5,220.00 25.4%

100-03-41820 Sign Permits 400.00 500.00 100.00 80.0%

100-03-43400 Planning & Zoning Applications .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-03-46100 DIF Community Development 6,138.99 7,721.00 1,582.01 79.5%

72.7%31,339.93114,771.0083,431.07Total :

CD and P&Z

100-03-50001 Salaries & Wages 56,750.20 143,520.00 86,769.80 39.5%

100-03-50010 P/R Tax Expense 4,322.64 10,979.28 6,656.64 39.4%

100-03-50011 Insurance - Health 12,063.07 25,200.00 13,136.93 47.9%

100-03-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 138.75 58.58 80.17- 236.9%

100-03-50017 Retirement 6,508.89 17,164.99 10,656.10 37.9%

100-03-50020 P & Z Commission 1,596.00 3,500.00 1,904.00 45.6%

100-03-51020 Publishing and Advertising 553.36 1,000.00 446.64 55.3%

100-03-51021 Advertising/Publishing - Reimb 45.08 .00 45.08- 0.0%

100-03-51060 Computer IT Support 332.50 .00 332.50- 0.0%

100-03-51075 Contingency Expense .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-03-51080 Dues & Memberships .00 100.00 100.00 0.0%

100-03-51090 Engineering Services 1,770.69 12,000.00 10,229.31 14.8%

100-03-51092 Engineering - Reimbursable 682.00 .00 682.00- 0.0%

100-03-51140 Legal Fees 1,440.00 10,000.00 8,560.00 14.4%

100-03-51150 Liability Insurance 3,495.32 3,495.32 .00 100.0%

100-03-52010 Office Supplies 344.78 .00 344.78- 0.0%

100-03-52050 Professional Services 13,528.91 39,172.00 25,643.09 34.5%

100-03-52100 Telephone 237.44 600.00 362.56 39.6%

100-03-52120 Training & Meetings 50.00 700.00 650.00 7.1%

100-03-52124 Travel Expense 773.15 300.00 473.15- 257.7%

37.7%173,157.39277,790.17104,632.78Total CD and P&Z:

31



Page: 4Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

Parks

100-04-41900 Grants 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 100.0%

100-04-41901 Park Rental Fee .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-04-41902 Park Rental Sports Field 3,320.00 3,000.00 320.00- 110.7%

100-04-41904 Park Add'l Serv. (trash/toilet .00 600.00 600.00 0.0%

100-04-41905 Park Add'l Staff Time .00 600.00 600.00 0.0%

100-04-46100 DIF Parks 675.91 1,519.00 843.09 44.5%

89.8%2,723.0926,719.0023,995.91Total :

Parks

100-04-50001 Salaries & Wages 3,189.70 29,049.00 25,859.30 11.0%

100-04-50010 P/R Tax Expense 233.58 2,222.25 1,988.67 10.5%

100-04-50011 Insurance - Health 90.91 6,048.00 5,957.09 1.5%

100-04-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 159.10 80.72 78.38- 197.1%

100-04-50017 Retirement 315.03 3,474.26 3,159.23 9.1%

100-04-51073 Contract Labor 7,072.58 20,000.00 12,927.42 35.4%

100-04-51150 Liability Insurance 878.32 878.31 .01- 100.0%

100-04-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (General .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100-04-52070 Signs 223.00 300.00 77.00 74.3%

100-04-52080 Small Tools & Equipment .00 800.00 800.00 0.0%

100-04-52090 Supplies 179.54 600.00 420.46 29.9%

100-04-52143 Utilities - Power 175.36 .00 175.36- 0.0%

100-04-52146 Utilities - Trash/Toilet/Recyc 1,328.41 3,000.00 1,671.59 44.3%

100-04-58120 Construction & Improvement .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.0%

15.5%75,607.0189,452.5413,845.53Total Parks:

32



Page: 5Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

Fire

100-05-40000 Carryover .00 1,027.00 1,027.00 0.0%

100-05-41900 Grants .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-05-41930 Fire Equip/Pay Reimbursement .00 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.0%

100-05-41955 Fire Dept Fees & Permits 7,865.51 6,000.00 1,865.51- 131.1%

100-05-45000 Misc Income 5,000.00 .00 5,000.00- 0.0%

100-05-45100 Interest Earned 105.82 .00 105.82- 0.0%

100-05-46100 DIF Fire Services 11,125.95 3,423.00 7,702.95- 325.0%

91.1%2,352.7226,450.0024,097.28Total :

Fire

100-05-50001 Salaries & Wages 34,209.11 71,234.00 37,024.89 48.0%

100-05-50010 P/R Tax Expense 2,617.80 2,833.00 215.20 92.4%

100-05-50014 Insurance - Life 560.00 1,500.00 940.00 37.3%

100-05-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 1,695.60 1,449.00 246.60- 117.0%

100-05-50017 Retirement 2,734.75 5,425.00 2,690.25 50.4%

100-05-51073 Contract Labor .00 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.0%

100-05-51075 Contingency Expense .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-05-51080 Dues & Memberships 3,693.66 3,800.00 106.34 97.2%

100-05-51110 Fuel 1,720.90 4,000.00 2,279.10 43.0%

100-05-51125 Interest Expense 8,600.23 8,600.23 .00 100.0%

100-05-51140 Legal Fees .00 200.00 200.00 0.0%

100-05-51150 Liability Insurance 2,691.68 2,691.67 .01- 100.0%

100-05-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-auto) 2,889.98 5,000.00 2,110.02 57.8%

100-05-51167 R & M - Autos 4,191.29 5,000.00 808.71 83.8%

100-05-51177 Misc Expense 1,065.86 500.00 565.86- 213.2%

100-05-52010 Office Supplies 486.69 100.00 386.69- 486.7%

100-05-52080 Small Tools & Equipment 1,503.61 2,000.00 496.39 75.2%

100-05-52090 Supplies 375.15 500.00 124.85 75.0%

100-05-52100 Telephone 301.65 602.00 300.35 50.1%

100-05-52120 Training & Meetings 891.07 2,000.00 1,108.93 44.6%

100-05-52124 Travel Expense .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.0%

100-05-52130 Uniforms & Clothing .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-05-56030 Investigations .00 150.00 150.00 0.0%

100-05-56045 Radio Fees .00 240.00 240.00 0.0%

100-05-56047 RMS/CAD 3,838.13 4,000.00 161.87 96.0%

100-05-57000 Safety Equipment 14,512.78 40,000.00 25,487.22 36.3%

100-05-58150 Auto/Equipment Lease (12+ mos) 7,514.33 20,083.46 12,569.13 37.4%

100-05-58200 Pierce 7400 Responder 12,569.13 .00 12,569.13- 0.0%

55.3%87,944.96196,608.36108,663.40Total Fire:

33



Page: 6Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

Library

100-07-40000 Carryover .00 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.0%

100-07-41900 Grants 2,000.00 10,000.00 8,000.00 20.0%

100-07-41920 Donations 1,250.00 .00 1,250.00- 0.0%

100-07-46100 DIF Library 913.84 1,134.00 220.16 80.6%

31.1%9,220.1613,384.004,163.84Total :

Library

100-07-50001 Salaries & Wages 24,699.04 43,380.48 18,681.44 56.9%

100-07-50010 P/R Tax Expense 1,805.56 3,318.61 1,513.05 54.4%

100-07-50011 Insurance - Health 8,515.55 12,600.00 4,084.45 67.6%

100-07-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 56.00 54.75 1.25- 102.3%

100-07-50017 Retirement 3,002.41 5,188.31 2,185.90 57.9%

100-07-51020 Advertising / Publishing .00 200.00 200.00 0.0%

100-07-51062 Computers - Software & Subscri .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100-07-51080 Dues & Memberships 220.21 350.00 129.79 62.9%

100-07-51150 Liability Insurance 937.90 937.90 .00 100.0%

100-07-51177 Misc Expense .00 500.00 500.00 0.0%

100-07-51180 Office Equipment Rental/Repair .00 250.00 250.00 0.0%

100-07-52090 Supplies 211.13 500.00 288.87 42.2%

100-07-52100 Telephone 224.60 .00 224.60- 0.0%

100-07-52120 Training & Meetings 38.62 200.00 161.38 19.3%

100-07-55000 Library New Books 833.89 1,800.00 966.11 46.3%

100-07-55010 Library Programs 1,785.29 2,500.00 714.71 71.4%

56.6%32,449.8574,780.0542,330.20Total Library:

34



Page: 7Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Marshal

100-08-40000 Carryover .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.0%

100-08-41900 Grants .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-08-41920 Donations .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-08-41960 City Code Violation Fee .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100-08-41980 Court Fines 24,251.62 50,000.00 25,748.38 48.5%

100-08-45000 Misc Income 8,240.00 .00 8,240.00- 0.0%

100-08-46100 DIF Marshal 2,516.52 3,234.00 717.48 77.8%

58.6%24,725.8659,734.0035,008.14Total :

Marshal

100-08-50001 Salaries & Wages 221,273.85 354,093.36 132,819.51 62.5%

100-08-50002 Paid Time Off 2,968.34 .00 2,968.34- 0.0%

100-08-50010 P/R Tax Expense 17,130.01 27,088.14 9,958.13 63.2%

100-08-50011 Insurance - Health 39,979.08 51,600.00 11,620.92 77.5%

100-08-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 8,446.40 12,270.00 3,823.60 68.8%

100-08-50017 Retirement 32,756.73 51,874.68 19,117.95 63.1%

100-08-51062 Computers - Software & Subscri .00 250.00 250.00 0.0%

100-08-51075 Contingency Expense .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-08-51080 Dues & Memberships 845.00 800.00 45.00- 105.6%

100-08-51110 Fuel 8,255.13 15,000.00 6,744.87 55.0%

100-08-51130 Equipment Rental 9,055.79 17,000.00 7,944.21 53.3%

100-08-51150 Liability Insurance 8,701.34 8,701.34 .00 100.0%

100-08-51167 R & M - Autos 2,312.88 7,000.00 4,687.12 33.0%

100-08-52010 Office Supplies 222.25 1,200.00 977.75 18.5%

100-08-52090 Supplies 31.53 .00 31.53- 0.0%

100-08-52100 Telephone 1,474.08 2,950.00 1,475.92 50.0%

100-08-52120 Training & Meetings 887.00 5,000.00 4,113.00 17.7%

100-08-52124 Travel Expense 1,597.17 3,000.00 1,402.83 53.2%

100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing 463.73 5,000.00 4,536.27 9.3%

100-08-56010 911 Dispatch 29,146.46 28,886.19 260.27- 100.9%

100-08-56040 Medical/Lab Kits 31.00 500.00 469.00 6.2%

100-08-56045 Radio Fees 2,640.00 2,640.00 .00 100.0%

100-08-56047 RMS/CAD 13,302.53 13,199.05 103.48- 100.8%

100-08-56050 Specialized Equipment 6,802.22 10,000.00 3,197.78 68.0%

100-08-57000 Safety Equipment .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.0%

100-08-58150 Auto/Equipment Lease 38,655.83 38,656.00 .17 100.0%

100-08-66000 Payroll Expenses 209.70 .00 209.70- 0.0%

66.9%221,020.71668,208.76447,188.05Total Marshal:

35



Page: 8Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Bldgs and Grounds

100-09-41900 Grants .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.0%

100-09-46100 DIF Buildings & Grounds 5,194.23 6,727.00 1,532.77 77.2%

19.4%21,532.7726,727.005,194.23Total :

Bldgs and Grounds

100-09-50001 Salaries & Wages 1,537.50 10,764.00 9,226.50 14.3%

100-09-50010 P/R Tax Expense 115.01 823.45 708.44 14.0%

100-09-50011 Insurance - Health 23.51 5,040.00 5,016.49 0.5%

100-09-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance .00 453.16 453.16 0.0%

100-09-50017 Retirement 6.58 386.21 379.63 1.7%

100-09-51073 Contract Labor .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.0%

100-09-51150 Liability Insurance 714.28 714.28 .00 100.0%

100-09-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (General 4,721.41 6,654.00 1,932.59 71.0%

100-09-52090 Supplies 920.25 1,000.00 79.75 92.0%

100-09-52140 Utilities - Gas 2,306.33 6,000.00 3,693.67 38.4%

100-09-52143 Utilities - Power 3,459.04 7,700.00 4,240.96 44.9%

100-09-52146 Utilities - Trash/Toilet/Recyc 1,659.86 3,000.00 1,340.14 55.3%

100-09-58120 Construction & Improvemen 16,657.00 11,000.00 5,657.00- 151.4%

100-09-58190 Real Property Lease Exp 625.00 1,625.00 1,000.00 38.5%

56.3%25,414.3358,160.1032,745.77Total Bldgs and Grounds:

36



Page: 9Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

Streets

100-10-41000 State Highway Revenue - Regula 72,669.57 99,349.00 26,679.43 73.1%

100-10-41100 State Highway Revenue HB312 21,742.25 28,624.00 6,881.75 76.0%

100-10-41110 State Highway Revenue HB 362 4,232.94 14,666.00 10,433.06 28.9%

100-10-41111 State Highway Revenue GF HB354 .00 54,912.00 54,912.00 0.0%

100-10-41115 LOT Tax Revenue 22,885.08 100,000.00 77,114.92 22.9%

100-10-41805 Building Permits .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-10-41807 Encroachment Permit 1,100.00 .00 1,100.00- 0.0%

100-10-41900 Grants .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.0%

100-10-41950 Permit - Other .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.0%

100-10-45000 Misc Income 2,744.10 .00 2,744.10- 0.0%

100-10-45100 Interest Earned 2,179.04 .00 2,179.04- 0.0%

100-10-46100 DIF Streets 7,280.84 43,071.00 35,790.16 16.9%

30.5%307,788.18442,622.00134,833.82Total :

Streets

100-10-50001 Salaries & Wages 112,041.18 141,447.00 29,405.82 79.2%

100-10-50002 Paid Time Off 3,674.53- .00 3,674.53 0.0%

100-10-50010 P/R Tax Expense 8,165.13 10,820.70 2,655.57 75.5%

100-10-50011 Insurance - Health 27,016.33 29,484.00 2,467.67 91.6%

100-10-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 2,451.05 7,500.00 5,048.95 32.7%

100-10-50017 Retirement 12,826.04 16,917.06 4,091.02 75.8%

100-10-51020 Advertising / Publishing 84.24 .00 84.24- 0.0%

100-10-51073 Contract Labor 1,020.00 .00 1,020.00- 0.0%

100-10-51075 Contingency Expense .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.0%

100-10-51080 Dues & Memberships .00 100.00 100.00 0.0%

100-10-51090 Engineering Services 4,204.50 .00 4,204.50- 0.0%

100-10-51110 Fuel 10,702.47 13,000.00 2,297.53 82.3%

100-10-51130 Equipment Rental 95.00 .00 95.00- 0.0%

100-10-51140 Legal Fees 225.00 .00 225.00- 0.0%

100-10-51150 Liability Insurance 8,273.74 8,273.73 .01- 100.0%

100-10-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (General 329.55 500.00 170.45 65.9%

100-10-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-auto) 10,429.61 7,518.00 2,911.61- 138.7%

100-10-51164 R & M - Street Maintenance 494.13 10,000.00 9,505.87 4.9%

100-10-51165 R & M - Tree Expense 110.37 4,000.00 3,889.63 2.8%

100-10-51166 R & M - Snow Removal 47,662.76 50,000.00 2,337.24 95.3%

100-10-51167 R & M - Autos 3,434.90 5,000.00 1,565.10 68.7%

100-10-51168 R & M - Street Lights 396.27 2,000.00 1,603.73 19.8%

100-10-51177 Misc Expense 162.00 500.00 338.00 32.4%

100-10-52010 Office Supplies .00 250.00 250.00 0.0%

100-10-52050 Professional Services .00 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.0%

100-10-52070 Signs 1,508.75 2,000.00 491.25 75.4%

100-10-52080 Small Tools & Equipment 1,449.81 2,000.00 550.19 72.5%

100-10-52090 Supplies 2,277.95 4,000.00 1,722.05 56.9%

100-10-52100 Telephone 373.38 750.00 376.62 49.8%

100-10-52120 Training & Meetings 1,340.00 1,500.00 160.00 89.3%

100-10-52124 Travel Expense 350.61 500.00 149.39 70.1%

100-10-52130 Uniforms & Clothing 751.13 1,500.00 748.87 50.1%

100-10-52145 Utilities - Street Lights 12,046.46 20,000.00 7,953.54 60.2%

100-10-56045 Radio Fees 120.00 500.00 380.00 24.0%

100-10-57000 Safety Equipment 1,868.47 500.00 1,368.47- 373.7%

100-10-58150 Auto/Equipment Lease (12+ mos) 18,604.31 23,440.00 4,835.69 79.4%

100-10-58160 Auto or Equipment Purchase 2,496.08 .00 2,496.08- 0.0%

37



Page: 10Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

100-10-58250 Street Construction .00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.0%

60.2%191,363.80481,000.49289,636.69Total Streets:

38



Page: 14Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Title
2024-25

YTD
Actual

Account
Number

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

53.0%1,120,448.782,386,470.001,266,021.22General Fund Revenue Total:

56.9%1,027,748.582,386,470.001,358,721.42General Fund Expenditure Total:

0.0%92,700.20.0092,700.20-Total General Fund:

39



Page: 15Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Water Fund

Water Revenue

200-20-40000 Carryover .00 143,087.00 143,087.00 0.0%

200-20-41800 Administrative Fees 150.00 375.00 225.00 40.0%

200-20-41815 Application Fees 200.00 125.00 75.00- 160.0%

200-20-41900 Grants 12,730.00 3,300,000.00 3,287,270.00 0.4%

200-20-41910 Grants - IDEQ Revenue Bond 78,354.00 .00 78,354.00- 0.0%

200-20-41950 Permit - Other 150.00 500.00 350.00 30.0%

200-20-42001 Water User Fees 280,581.76 467,779.00 187,197.24 60.0%

200-20-42002 Water Meter Vault Fees .00 100.00 100.00 0.0%

200-20-42003 Water Meter Unit Fees 886.30 1,425.00 538.70 62.2%

200-20-42004 Water Cap Fee 16,500.00 13,750.00 2,750.00- 120.0%

200-20-42006 Water On or Off 660.00 2,000.00 1,340.00 33.0%

200-20-45000 Misc Income 100.00 .00 100.00- 0.0%

200-20-45100 Interest Earned 24,250.63 .00 24,250.63- 0.0%

10.6%3,514,578.313,929,141.00414,562.69Total Water Revenue:

Water Expenditures

200-20-50001 Salaries & Wages 9,780.43 88,001.00 78,220.57 11.1%

200-20-50010 P/R Tax Expense 666.95 6,732.00 6,065.05 9.9%

200-20-50011 Insurance - Health 2,225.86 17,640.00 15,414.14 12.6%

200-20-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 399.20 1,028.00 628.80 38.8%

200-20-50017 Retirement 802.43 10,525.00 9,722.57 7.6%

200-20-51010 Admin Fees .00 93,908.00 93,908.00 0.0%

200-20-51020 Advertising / Publishing .00 200.00 200.00 0.0%

200-20-51030 Bank Charges 24.00 .00 24.00- 0.0%

200-20-51060 Computer IT Support 1,318.20 1,920.00 601.80 68.7%

200-20-51062 Computers - Software 800.00 .00 800.00- 0.0%

200-20-51070 Conjunctive Management 27,245.86 53,000.00 25,754.14 51.4%

200-20-51073 Contract Labor 99,157.60 80,000.00 19,157.60- 123.9%

200-20-51075 Contingency Expense .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.0%

200-20-51080 Dues & Memberships 225.00 3,000.00 2,775.00 7.5%

200-20-51110 Fuel .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.0%

200-20-51122 IDWR Water Fees .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 0.0%

200-20-51140 Legal Fees 2,227.50 1,000.00 1,227.50- 222.8%

200-20-51150 Liability Insurance 12,632.00 12,632.00 .00 100.0%

200-20-51155 Merchant Fees 1,850.73 4,000.00 2,149.27 46.3%

200-20-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (Gen 3,499.14 23,595.00 20,095.86 14.8%

200-20-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-auto) 200.11 5,000.00 4,799.89 4.0%

200-20-51167 R & M - Autos 1,347.88 2,000.00 652.12 67.4%

200-20-51169 R & M - Water 19,384.00 25,000.00 5,616.00 77.5%

200-20-52010 Office Supplies 88.01 .00 88.01- 0.0%

200-20-52040 Postage, Copies, Mailing .00 200.00 200.00 0.0%

200-20-52050 Professional Services 2,885.33 6,000.00 3,114.67 48.1%

200-20-52070 Signs 148.60 .00 148.60- 0.0%

200-20-52080 Small Tools & Equipment 1,523.63 1,000.00 523.63- 152.4%

200-20-52090 Supplies 23,852.84 10,000.00 13,852.84- 238.5%

200-20-52100 Telephone 612.46 550.00 62.46- 111.4%

200-20-52110 Test Samples - Water & Sewer 2,493.90 8,500.00 6,006.10 29.3%

200-20-52120 Training & Meetings 1,699.79 6,000.00 4,300.21 28.3%

200-20-52124 Travel Expense 154.00 1,000.00 846.00 15.4%

200-20-52135 Water District Fees 1,078.54 1,200.00 121.46 89.9%

40



Page: 16Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

200-20-52140 Utilities - Gas 117.61 .00 117.61- 0.0%

200-20-52143 Utilities - Power 15,495.15 11,630.00 3,865.15- 133.2%

200-20-56045 Radio Fees 120.00 240.00 120.00 50.0%

200-20-57000 Safety Equipment 179.96 1,000.00 820.04 18.0%

200-20-58120 Construction & Improvement .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.0%

200-20-58125 Drinking Water Plan - IDEQ 90,557.50 3,300,000.00 3,209,442.50 2.7%

200-20-58150 Auto/Equipment Lease (12+ mos) 18,604.38 23,440.00 4,835.62 79.4%

200-20-58160 Auto or Equipment Purchase .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.0%

200-20-58250 Street Construction .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.0%

200-20-58260 Water Meter or Vault Expense 9,009.16 6,200.00 2,809.16- 145.3%

9.0%3,576,733.253,929,141.00352,407.75Total Water Expenditures:

41



Page: 17Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

10.6%3,514,578.313,929,141.00414,562.69Water Fund Revenue Total:

9.0%3,576,733.253,929,141.00352,407.75Water Fund Expenditure Total:

0.0%62,154.94-.0062,154.94Total Water Fund:

42



Page: 18Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

Wastewater Fund

WW Revenue

300-30-40000 Carryover .00 222,811.00 222,811.00 0.0%

300-30-41800 Administrative Fees 150.00 300.00 150.00 50.0%

300-30-41815 Application Fees 150.00 100.00 50.00- 150.0%

300-30-42001 Sewer User Fees 713,429.42 1,213,273.00 499,843.58 58.8%

300-30-42004 Sewer Cap Fee 19,860.00 13,320.00 6,540.00- 149.1%

300-30-45100 Interest Earned 36,461.46 .00 36,461.46- 0.0%

53.1%679,753.121,449,804.00770,050.88Total WW Revenue:

WW Expenditures

300-30-50001 Salaries & Wages 18,598.38 106,001.00 87,402.62 17.5%

300-30-50010 P/R Tax Expense 1,412.08 8,109.00 6,696.92 17.4%

300-30-50011 Insurance - Health 2,830.47 20,160.00 17,329.53 14.0%

300-30-50015 Workers Compensation Insurance 126.80 1,892.00 1,765.20 6.7%

300-30-50017 Retirement 1,878.35 12,678.00 10,799.65 14.8%

300-30-51010 Admin Fees 57,388.00 114,776.00 57,388.00 50.0%

300-30-51020 Advertising / Publishing .00 200.00 200.00 0.0%

300-30-51030 Bank Charges 236.80 50.00 186.80- 473.6%

300-30-51060 Computer IT Support 1,318.20 4,000.00 2,681.80 33.0%

300-30-51062 Computers - Software & Su 1,272.00 .00 1,272.00- 0.0%

300-30-51073 Contract Labor 62,005.00 125,000.00 62,995.00 49.6%

300-30-51075 Contingency Expense .00 33,271.00 33,271.00 0.0%

300-30-51080 Dues & Memberships 600.00 2,000.00 1,400.00 30.0%

300-30-51090 Engineering Services 1,602.50 17,000.00 15,397.50 9.4%

300-30-51110 Fuel 1,782.71 6,000.00 4,217.29 29.7%

300-30-51125 Interest Expense 38,895.11 80,000.00 41,104.89 48.6%

300-30-51140 Legal Fees 352.50 2,000.00 1,647.50 17.6%

300-30-51150 Liability Insurance 25,645.98 25,646.00 .02 100.0%

300-30-51155 Merchant Fees 4,758.97 10,000.00 5,241.03 47.6%

300-30-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (Gen 3,535.55 30,000.00 26,464.45 11.8%

300-30-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-auto) 54,113.62 3,000.00 51,113.62- 1803.8%

300-30-51167 R & M - Autos .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.0%

300-30-51171 R & M - Wastewater 15,320.87 39,000.00 23,679.13 39.3%

300-30-52010 Office Supplies 150.94 .00 150.94- 0.0%

300-30-52020 Internet Expense 609.22 1,860.00 1,250.78 32.8%

300-30-52050 Professional Services 2,885.34 3,000.00 114.66 96.2%

300-30-52070 Signs 148.60 500.00 351.40 29.7%

300-30-52080 Small Tools & Equipment 5,141.24 2,000.00 3,141.24- 257.1%

300-30-52090 Supplies 38,188.89 60,000.00 21,811.11 63.6%

300-30-52100 Telephone 338.55 602.00 263.45 56.2%

300-30-52110 Test Samples - Water & Sewer 9,864.15 7,572.00 2,292.15- 130.3%

300-30-52120 Training & Meetings 1,415.88 6,000.00 4,584.12 23.6%

300-30-52124 Travel Expense 196.00 1,000.00 804.00 19.6%

300-30-52140 Utilities - Gas 514.37 1,500.00 985.63 34.3%

300-30-52143 Utilities - Power 18,429.79 33,000.00 14,570.21 55.8%

300-30-52146 Utilities - Trash/Toilet/Recyc 220.37 700.00 479.63 31.5%

300-30-56045 Radio Fees 120.00 240.00 120.00 50.0%

300-30-57000 Safety Equipment 692.92 100.00 592.92- 692.9%

300-30-58120 Construction & Improvement 31,083.05- 300,000.00 331,083.05 -10.4%

300-30-58150 Auto/Equipment Lease (12+ mos) 18,604.37 23,440.00 4,835.63 79.4%

300-30-58160 Auto or Equipment Purchase .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.0%

43



Page: 19Budget Worksheet - By DepartmentCity of Bellevue

Period 04/25 (04/30/2025) May 22, 2025 7:34AMHosted Live 3.11.2025

Account
Number Title

2024-25
YTD

Actual

2024-25
Current year

Budget

2025-25
Remaining

Budget

2025-25
Budget

Earned/Used

300-30-58170 IDEQ Loan 166,304.89 335,507.00 169,202.11 49.6%

300-30-58210 Plant Upgrades 22,651.92 .00 22,651.92- 0.0%

37.9%900,735.721,449,804.00549,068.28Total WW Expenditures:

53.1%679,753.121,449,804.00770,050.88Wastewater Fund Revenue Total:

37.9%900,735.721,449,804.00549,068.28Wastewater Fund Expenditure Total:

0.0%220,982.60-.00220,982.60Total Wastewater Fund:

44



Encroachment Application

Encroachment Fee: $100.00

Email:

Type of Encroachment
Driveway Pathway Excavation

Please attach a traffic control plan if there is work near traffic
Acknowledgement

* ALL LEGAL, ENGINEERING AND OTHER CONSULTANT REVIEW FEES SHALL BE REIMBURSED AT 100% BY THE APPLICANT.

Date:s re:

A permit issued under this chapter shall expire if the work is not started within sixty (60) days or not completed within one year
from the date of issuance, and a new permit shall be required before beginning or completing the work. A permit shall cover only
contiguous construction, and the work shall be done as one continuous operation. An extension of no more than one year may be
granted by the City upon written request of the applicant for good cause beyond control of applicant or his contractor(s).

The undersigned hereby agrees to comply with all terms and conditions of such Encroachment Permit as defined in Bellevue Code
Title 9 Chapter 2 and to comply with all federal, state and City laws, rules and regulations with regard to all work done relative to
such permit. In addition to such Encroachment Permit, the Applicant must apply for and receive Street Excavation Permit (s) for any
work to be done on any city street or alley in accordance with the Bellevue Street Standards Ordinance.

*This application, and all required material in Bellevue Code 9-2-2 is due no less than 15 days prior to the next regularly
scheduled meeting date of the Bellevue Common Council. This includes but is not limited to plans, specifications, drawings,
engineering data and other information. Variances must be approved by Bellevue Common Council

Property Legal Description:
Contractor Name/info:
Landscaping Company:
Paving Company:
Bona fide cost estimate:

Public Utility
Description of work:

Applicant Information
Business / Project Name:
Owner / Applicant Name:
Phone #
Location of Encroachment:
Mailing Address:

115 E Pine Street
P.O Box 825 Bellevue, ID 83313
208-788-2128 Fax 208-788-2092

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
PERMIT NO:
DATE APPLIED

Official Use Only
Public Works Director or
Street Superintendent Signature: _Date:

6-24-21

Karl Malone Auto/ Syringa Networks fiber entrance - 603405/25-1114   
Dana Fairchild with Crown Utilities working on behalf of Syringa Networks 

208-380-1372 danafairchild@crownutilitiesllc.com
1261 N Main St, Bellevue, Idaho

3900 N Can Ada Rd, Nampa, ID 83687

Parcel Number: RPB0397001002A
Crown Utilities LLC - Anthony McLean 208-293-7068
NA

NA
$14,650

x

Pull fiber in existing conduit from existing handhole at E Spruce St and the walking path heading
north for 3,026'. Overset new handhole over existing conduit. Bore new conduit southwest for 
157' to property of 1261 N Main St (Karl Malone Auto), set new handhole at property line to 
intercept customer conduit. (Also applying for an ITD permit and Blaine County permit.)

5/6/2025

05/06/2025

Item 4d

45



STOP

STOP

350'

350'

350'

ROAD WORK AHEAD

W20-148 x 48

W20-7a48 x 48

ONE LANE ROAD AHEAD

W20-448 x 48

100'

100'

100'10
0'ROADWORKAHEADW20-148 x 48

ROADWORKAHEAD
W20-148 x 48

W20-7a48 x 48
ONE LANEROADAHEAD

W20-448 x 48

Main St/Hwy 75

45 mph

35 mph

Kirtley St

Downstream Taper

Flagging Taper

Posted Speeds: See plan
Sign Spacing: 100' and 350' (See Plan)
Flagging Taper: 100' @ 20' Spacing
Downstream Taper: 100' @ 20' Spacing
Tubular Marker Spacing: 35'-70'

N

Plan Scale

1 : 2400 (1'' = 200')

Legend
Barrel
Tubular
Work Area

Manifest9 x Tubular5 x Barrel3 x W20-1 road work ahead2 x Traffic Controller2 x W20-4 one lane road ahead2 x W20-7a flagger

Date: 5/6/2025 Author: Jessicah Nestor TCS: ES2 000254 Exp: 7/31/27 Ph: 208-800-3490 Project: Crown/Syringa- 1261 N Main St, Bellevue (Hwy 75) 603405 Job# 25-1114Comments: 
www.invarion.com

46

www.invarion.com


 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Owner:  Syringa Networks, LLC 
Contractor: Crown Utilities, LLC 
Project Number: 603405 
Original Bid Date: April 28, 2025 
Notice to Proceed Date: TBD 
Response of Proposed Pricing Due:  
May 5, 2025 

Date for Project Completion:  
June 2,2025 
 
*If there are Contractor rejections the ID OSP Manager will have 5 (five) days to review the 
reasons (stated in your rejection email, verbal rejections will not be considered) and accept, 
reject, or negotiate a price or construction completion date with the contractor in writing.  All 
changes will be made to the contract form, which must be signed.  Once all changes are 
processed and agreed upon a PO will be processed and a Contract will be sent with Notice to 
Proceed date included and the PO attached.   

 

 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SUMMARY 
 

 
Construction Documents for 

ID: PMT (Karl Malone Auto)-Bellevue-ID 
 

This Project is a “Qualified Project” under that certain Idaho Exclusive Contractor 
Agreement entered into by and between Owner and Contractor and shall be 

governed in accordance with the terms thereof. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

47



Syringa Networks PMT (Karl Malone Auto)– Bellevue-ID 04/2025 
 

 

                                                                          Confidential Page 4/4 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

CONTRACTOR BID SHEETS 

FULL SCOPE OF WORK: 
• Place locate wire with non-armored fiber for 245’ (LW) 
• Place 6 ct. fiber in an existing duct; includes labor to rod/clean for 325’ (BFO 6 IE) 
• Place 24ct fiber in an existing duct; includes labor to rod/clean for 3483’ (BFO 24 IE) 
• Bore a 4” hole, holding 2-1.25” conduit; includes the pushing of pipe and any 

excavation, backfilling, tamping, and all labor and minor material required to seal the 
ends of the pipe after cable is placed for 158’ (BM 60 (D) (2) (1.25)) 

• Trench and Place 1 vacant 1.25” conduit; includes all minor material and labor for 13’ 
(UD (1) (1.25) 

• Set route marker and bond locate plate. (1) (LP3) 
• Expose and rearranging existing facilities to be overset with a hand hole. (1) (WUH-I) 
• Intercept conduit, no handhole set; dig up (2) (WUD) 
• Enter Existing handhole (1) (UHE) 
• Place a 24”x36”x24” composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the 

Staking Sheets (1) (UH Type 2) 
• Place a 30”x48”x36” composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the 

Staking Sheets (1) (UH Type 3) 
• Building Entrance of 25’-50’ (From edge of bldg. to FDP location) (1) (BM21 Demarc) 

 
 
 
ADDITIONAL: 

• All permitting requirements for Permits, provided by Syringa Networks or the 
Contractor, are the Contractor’s responsibility to adhere to at their cost. 

• Contractor is to provide As Built staking sheets, invoicing, and reel number and 
sequentials within two weeks of completion of construction.  

• See attached Staking Sheets and guide drawings. 
 

 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

48



Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Google, Esri Community Maps contributors, Map layer by Esri

12301 W Explorer Dr Ste 200
Boise, ID 83713
(208) 229-6100

Syringa Networks, LLC

¹

Utility locations are approximate.
Contractor responsible for exact location.

Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing
811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires

a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

603405

AG

4/18/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

FB-603405 ID:
PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

49



1 - 4
5
5
6

Project Sheets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .
Rake Off Table  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .

Contact Information  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .
Spec Sheets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .

Customer Location

Canal Crossing

RR RR Crossing

City Limits

Counties

Parcel Boundaries

Railroads

Waterways

Aerial Fiber

A Aerial Fiber - New Construction

A Aerial Fiber - Overlash

Aerial Strand Only

Aerial Fiber Wreck Out

Place New Aerial Slack

Move Existing Aerial Slack

Poles & Attachments

Attach to Existing Pole

Pole Transfer

Set New Pole

Remove Pole

Down Guy

Galv Metal Pipe Risers

PVC Split Duct Riser

Remove/Relocate Riser

Bore Pit

BP Bore Pit

Buried Fiber

B Buried Fiber - New Construction

B Buried Fiber - Existing Duct, Empty

B Buried Fiber - Existing Duct, Occupied

Buried Fiber Wreck Out

Construction Types

Building Entrance Work

Boring

Bridge Attachments

Conduit in Existing Conduit

Plowing

Trenching

Relocate Conduit

Open Trench - Conduit Only

Handhole Placement

rrI Place new irrigation box

2T Place a new T2 vault

3T Place a new T3 vault

52 Place a new TA-25 vault

HM Place a new 4x4 vault

rrI Move an irrigation box

2T Move a T2 vault

3T Move a T3 vault

52 Move a TA-25 vault

HM Move a 4x4 vault

HH Existing Handhole

Hard Surface Restoration (Points)

Removing and replacing 3/4" Gravel
Road Mix

Removing and replacing asphalt

Removing and replacing asphalt and
backfilling with slurry

Removing and replacing concrete

Intercept Conduit - No HH
Placement

Conduit Intercept

Locate Units

3PL Route Marker & Locate Plate

BM53
Route Marker

Splices

New Splice Case

Existing Splice Case

75

Ten
do
y
S
t

E Ash
St

Kirtley St

N
4
th

S
t

N
5
th

S
t

Bee
ch St

W
eezie

W
ay

Trout
Ln

E Spru
ce

St

N
M
ain

S
t

Bellevue

E Ash
St

Bee
ch St

N
5
th

S
t

1

2

3

4

Region
Contractor

Central Idaho
Crown Utilities

          MT#
     Project

603525

Key Map & Legend

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

50



Page 1 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.
E Ash St

E Spruce St1

603405

AG

4/18/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

75

75

75

N Main
St

N
M

a
in

S
t

N
M

a
in

S
t

SIlver Creek
Hotel

W Spruce St

E Spruce St

N
M

a
in

S
t

E Spruce St

E Spruce St

N
3

rd
S

t

N
2

n
d

S
t

N
2

n
d

S
t

N
3

rd
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

HH

B
ellevu

e C
ity Lim

its

B
ellevu

e C
ity Lim

its

120 E
SPRUCE ST

319 E
SPRUCE ST

600 N 2ND ST

608 N 2ND ST

620 N 2ND ST

621 N 3RD ST

613 N 3RD ST

600 N MAIN ST

621 N 2ND ST

621 N MAIN ST

710 N MAIN ST

721 N MAIN ST

180 W
SPRUCE ST

111 TENDOY ST

718 N MAIN ST

731
N MAIN ST UNIT D

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT H

120 E
SPRUCE ST

712 N MAIN ST

714 N MAIN ST

612 N
3RD ST

617 N 3RD ST

745 N MAIN ST

739 N MAIN ST

720 N MAIN ST

731 N
MAIN ST UNIT B

731 N
MAIN
ST UNIT G

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT A

733 N
MAIN ST
UNIT E

737 N MAIN ST

713 N MAIN ST

731 N MAIN ST
UNIT A

731 N MAIN
ST UNIT F

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT F

716 N MAIN ST

604 N 2ND ST

612 N 2ND ST

616 N 2ND ST

609 N 3RD ST

605 N 3RD ST

616 N
3RD ST

601 N 3RD ST

616 N MAIN ST

620 N MAIN ST

117 ASH ST

708 N MAIN ST

741 N
MAIN ST

717 N MAIN ST

711 N MAIN ST

204 W
SPRUCE ST

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT B

733
N MAIN ST

UNIT C

733 N
MAIN ST
UNIT D

&

3

&

1

&
2

Empty
Duct

3026'

[BFO
 24]

KCALS

+100'
24ct

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 1|
[BFO 24 IE]
LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK LOOP.  EXISTING SYRINGA NETWORKS HH.  SPLICE
NEW FIBERS AT EXISTING CASE.

 2|
[WUD]
DIG DOWN AND INTERCEPT CONDUIT.

 3|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

51



Page 2 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

N
M

ain
S

t 2

603405

AG

4/18/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

a
in

S
t B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B
ellevue City Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

747 N MAIN ST

251 TENDOY ST

718
N MAIN ST

722 N MAIN ST

745 N MAIN ST

749 N MAIN ST

757 N MAIN ST

761 N MAIN ST

771 N
MAIN ST

241 TENDOY ST

261
TENDOY ST

720 N MAIN ST

741 N
MAIN ST

271
TENDOY ST

&

4

&

5

Empty
Duct

3026'

[BFO
 24]

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 4|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 5|
[WUD]
DIG DOWN AND INTERCEPT CONDUIT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

52



Page 3 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

Kirtley St 3

4
603405

AG

4/18/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

 6CT PIGTAIL PROVIDED BY SYRINGA NETWORKS

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

Kirtley St

N
M

ain
S

t

Tendoy St

Kirtley St

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

3T

2T

LP3
HH

HH

43' CL

10' EOP

183' ROW

B
ellevue City Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

401 TENDOY ST

411 TENDOY ST

350 TENDOY ST

771 N MAIN ST

351 TENDOY ST

791 N MAIN ST

361 TENDOY ST

371 TENDOY ST

381 TENDOY ST

391 TENDOY ST

361
MELROSE ST

351
MELROSE ST

360 TENDOY ST

&

14

&

11

&

12

&

6

&

9

&

10

&

13

&

7

&

8

Empty
Duct

Empty
Duct

157'

[BFO 24]

232'

[BFO 6] [L
W]

3026'

[BFO
 24]

KCALS

+100'
6ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

1261 N Main St
Bellevue,
ID 83313

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 6|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 7|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 8|
[WUH-I] [UH TYPE 2] [BFO 24 IE]
PLACE A NEW T2 VAULT OVER EXISTING FACILITIES.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.

 9|
[BFO 24 IE]
PLACE (2) (1.25) CONDUIT FOR 157' AND PULL A CT CABLE THROUGH THE
ORANGE CONDUIT.

 10|
[UH TYPE 3] [BFO 6 IE] [BFO 24 IE] [LP3]
PLACE A NEW T3 VAULT.  LEAVE 100' 6CT SLACK LOOP.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.  ADD A NEW SPLICE CASE.  SET LP3 ROUTE MARKER AND BOND
LOCATE PLATE.

 11|
[UHE]
PLACE NEW CONDUITS IN EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 12|
[BFO 6 IE] [LW]
PULL 232' OF 6CT CABLE AND TRACER WIRE THROUGH THE EXISTING SLATE
CUSTOMER-OWNED DUCT.

 13|

EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 14|
[BM21 DEMARC]
ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH EXISTING PATH TO THE TERMINATION POINT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

53



Page 4 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

Kirtley St

3
4

603405

AG

4/18/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

 6CT PIGTAIL PROVIDED BY SYRINGA NETWORKS

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

3T

2T

LP3

HH

HH

43' CL

10' EOP

183' ROW

B
ellevue

City
Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

& 14

&

11

&

12
&

9

&

10

&

13

&

7

&

8

Empty
Duct

Empty
Duct

157'

[BFO 24]

232'

[BFO 6] [L
W]

3026'

[BFO
24]KCALS

+100'
6ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

1261 N Main St
Bellevue,
ID 83313

Feet50250 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 7|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 8|
[WUH-I] [UH TYPE 2] [BFO 24 IE]
PLACE A NEW T2 VAULT OVER EXISTING FACILITIES.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.

 9|
[BFO 24 IE]
PLACE (2) (1.25) CONDUIT FOR 157' AND PULL A CT CABLE THROUGH THE
ORANGE CONDUIT.

 10|
[UH TYPE 3] [BFO 6 IE] [BFO 24 IE] [LP3]
PLACE A NEW T3 VAULT.  LEAVE 100' 6CT SLACK LOOP.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.  ADD A NEW SPLICE CASE.  SET LP3 ROUTE MARKER AND BOND
LOCATE PLATE.

 11|
[UHE]
PLACE NEW CONDUITS IN EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 12|
[BFO 6 IE] [LW]
PULL 232' OF 6CT CABLE AND TRACER WIRE THROUGH THE EXISTING SLATE
CUSTOMER-OWNED DUCT.

 13|

EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 14|
[BM21 DEMARC]
ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH EXISTING PATH TO THE TERMINATION POINT.

Notes

  MP
112.6

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

54



page
5Syringa Networks, LLC          |          12301 W Explorer Dr, Boise, ID 83713          |          208-229-6100

Primary (1st) 1.25" conduit color = orange
2nd 1.25" conduit color = blue
3rd 1.25" conduit color = green
4th 1.25" conduit color = brown

Single metallic armor, dry/dry (no gel) with fibers meeting the
G652.D standard

1.25" HDPE SDR11 Pipe with "Syringa Networks" in print

Designated Conduit Color

Fiber Specs

Conduit Specs

Back Pull
Buried Cable
Buried Cable in Existing Conduit
Locate Wire
Over Blow
Cobble Rock adder
Rock Adder
Underground Conduit
Underground Duct in Existing
Underground Handhole/Vault
Underground Handhole Existing
Vacant

=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

BP
I

IE
LW
OB

R
RR
UD

UDI
UH

UHE
V

RUS Unit Description Unit Estimated Quantity Actual Quantity

BFO 6 IE Place 6 ct. fiber in an existing duct FT 225

BFO 6 IE (SLACK) Place 6 ct. fiber slack loop. FT 100

BFO 24 IE Place 24 ct. fiber in an existing duct FT 3183

BFO 24 IE (SLACK) Place 24 ct. fiber slack loop. FT 300

BM 60 (D) (2) (1.25) Bore a 4" hole, holding 2-1.25" conduit FT 158

BM21 Demarc Building Entrance of 25-50ft (From Building Entrance conduit stubbed up in the Demarc to FDP location).
Includes FDP costs.

EA 1

LP3 Set route marker and bond locate plate EA 1

LW Place locate wire with non-armored fiber FT 245

UD (1) (1.25) Trench and Place 1 vacant 1.25" conduit; includes all minor material and labor FT 13

UH Type 2 Place a 24"x36"x24" composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the Staking Sheets EA 1

UH Type 3 Place a 30"x48"x36" composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the Staking Sheets EA 1

UHE Enter Existing Handhole EA 1

WUD Intercept conduit, no handhand hole set; dig-up EA 2

WUH-I Expose and rearranging existing facilities to be overset with a hand hole EA 1

Labor

Austin Garrett
phone: (208) 948-4942

email: agarrett@syringanetworks.net

Syringa Networks Contact

The work and compensation described shall be performed and paid in accordance with the Standard Terms and
Conditions of the signed contract and any exhibits attached. This job is a fixed price contract. The Fixed price shall
include all supervision, material, labor, equipment, tools, permit preparation, traffic control, as built preparation, and
all other expenses necessary to complete the job in its entirety as depicted in the construction document. The Scope
of Work and Units are provided to the bidder as a courtesy only. It is the bidder’s responsibility to review the project
and to include in their price all items necessary to complete this project.

          MT#
     Project

603405
PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Region
Contractor

Central Idaho
Crown Utilities

Rake Off Totals

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

55



page
17

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

56



page
18

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

57



page
19

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

58



page
20

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

59



Site Photographs

Site Photograph(s) on Page 4

4-A
Outside Customer HH

4-A

Google

Docusign Envelope ID: D8A4A97A-4A62-4A06-BB02-9121F8D261E4

60



Map data © OpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook, Google, Esri Community Maps contributors, Map layer by Esri

12301 W Explorer Dr Ste 200
Boise, ID 83713
(208) 229-6100

Syringa Networks, LLC

¹

Utility locations are approximate.
Contractor responsible for exact location.

Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing
811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires

a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

603405

AG

4/7/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

FB-603405 ID:
PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

61



1 - 4
5
5
6

Project Sheets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .
Rake Off Table  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .

Contact Information  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .
Spec Sheets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .

Customer Location

Canal Crossing

RR RR Crossing

City Limits

Counties

Parcel Boundaries

Railroads

Waterways

Aerial Fiber

A Aerial Fiber - New Construction

A Aerial Fiber - Overlash

Aerial Strand Only

Aerial Fiber Wreck Out

Place New Aerial Slack

Move Existing Aerial Slack

Poles & Attachments

Attach to Existing Pole

Pole Transfer

Set New Pole

Remove Pole

Down Guy

Galv Metal Pipe Risers

PVC Split Duct Riser

Remove/Relocate Riser

Bore Pit

BP Bore Pit

Buried Fiber

B Buried Fiber - New Construction

B Buried Fiber - Existing Duct, Empty

B Buried Fiber - Existing Duct, Occupied

Buried Fiber Wreck Out

Construction Types

Building Entrance Work

Boring

Bridge Attachments

Conduit in Existing Conduit

Plowing

Trenching

Relocate Conduit

Open Trench - Conduit Only

Handhole Placement

rrI Place new irrigation box

2T Place a new T2 vault

3T Place a new T3 vault

52 Place a new TA-25 vault

HM Place a new 4x4 vault

rrI Move an irrigation box

2T Move a T2 vault

3T Move a T3 vault

52 Move a TA-25 vault

HM Move a 4x4 vault

HH Existing Handhole

Hard Surface Restoration (Points)

Removing and replacing 3/4" Gravel
Road Mix

Removing and replacing asphalt

Removing and replacing asphalt and
backfilling with slurry

Removing and replacing concrete

Intercept Conduit - No HH
Placement

Conduit Intercept

Locate Units

3PL Route Marker & Locate Plate

BM53
Route Marker

Splices

New Splice Case

Existing Splice Case

75

Ten
do
y
S
t

E Ash
St

Kirtley St

N
4
th

S
t

N
5
th

S
t

Bee
ch St

W
eezie

W
ay

Trout
Ln

E Spru
ce

St

N
M
ain

S
t

Bellevue

E Ash
St

Bee
ch St

N
5
th

S
t

1

2

3

4

Region
Contractor

Central Idaho
Crown Utilities

          MT#
     Project

603405
PMT (Karl Malone Auto) PMT (Karl Malone Auto) PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Key Map & Legend

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

62



Page 1 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.
E Ash St

E Spruce St1

603405

AG

4/7/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

75

75

75

N Main
St

N
M

a
in

S
t

N
M

a
in

S
t

SIlver Creek
Hotel

W Spruce St

E Spruce St

N
M

a
in

S
t

E Spruce St

E Spruce St

N
3

rd
S

t

N
2

n
d

S
t

N
2

n
d

S
t

N
3

rd
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

HH

B
ellevu

e C
ity Lim

its

B
ellevu

e C
ity Lim

its

120 E
SPRUCE ST

319 E
SPRUCE ST

600 N 2ND ST

608 N 2ND ST

620 N 2ND ST

621 N 3RD ST

613 N 3RD ST

600 N MAIN ST

621 N 2ND ST

621 N MAIN ST

710 N MAIN ST

721 N MAIN ST

180 W
SPRUCE ST

111 TENDOY ST

718 N MAIN ST

731
N MAIN ST UNIT D

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT H

120 E
SPRUCE ST

712 N MAIN ST

714 N MAIN ST

612 N
3RD ST

617 N 3RD ST

745 N MAIN ST

739 N MAIN ST

720 N MAIN ST

731 N
MAIN ST UNIT B

731 N
MAIN
ST UNIT G

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT A

733 N
MAIN ST
UNIT E

737 N MAIN ST

713 N MAIN ST

731 N MAIN ST
UNIT A

731 N MAIN
ST UNIT F

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT F

716 N MAIN ST

604 N 2ND ST

612 N 2ND ST

616 N 2ND ST

609 N 3RD ST

605 N 3RD ST

616 N
3RD ST

601 N 3RD ST

616 N MAIN ST

620 N MAIN ST

117 ASH ST

708 N MAIN ST

741 N
MAIN ST

717 N MAIN ST

711 N MAIN ST

204 W
SPRUCE ST

733 N MAIN
ST UNIT B

733
N MAIN ST

UNIT C

733 N
MAIN ST
UNIT D

&

3

&

1

&
2

Empty
Duct

3026'

[BFO
 24]

KCALS

+100'
24ct

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 1|
[BFO 24 IE]
LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK LOOP.  EXISTING SYRINGA NETWORKS HH.  SPLICE
NEW FIBERS AT EXISTING CASE.

 2|
[WUD]
DIG DOWN AND INTERCEPT CONDUIT.

 3|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

63



Page 2 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

N
M

ain
S

t 2

603405

AG

4/7/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

a
in

S
t B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B
ellevue

City
Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

747 N MAIN ST

251 TENDOY ST

718
N MAIN ST

722 N MAIN ST

745 N MAIN ST

749 N MAIN ST

757 N MAIN ST

761 N MAIN ST

771 N
MAIN ST

241 TENDOY ST

261
TENDOY ST

720 N MAIN ST

741 N
MAIN ST

271
TENDOY ST

&

4

&

5

Empty
Duct

3026'

[BFO
24]

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 4|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 5|
[WUD]
DIG DOWN AND INTERCEPT CONDUIT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

64



Page 3 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

Kirtley St 3

4
603405

AG

4/7/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

 6CT PIGTAIL PROVIDED BY SYRINGA NETWORKS

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

Kirtley St

N
M

ain
S

t

Tendoy St

Kirtley St

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

3T

2T

LP3
HH

HH

21' CL
10' EOP

184' ROW

B
ellevue

City
Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

401 TENDOY ST

411 TENDOY ST

350 TENDOY ST

771 N MAIN ST

351 TENDOY ST

791 N MAIN ST

361 TENDOY ST

371 TENDOY ST

381 TENDOY ST

391 TENDOY ST

361
MELROSE ST

351
MELROSE ST

360 TENDOY ST

&

14

&

11

&

12

&

6

&

9

&

10

&

13

&

7

&

8

Empty
Duct

Empty
Duct

157'

[BFO 24]

232'

[BFO 6] [L
W]

3026'

[BFO
24]

KCALS

+100'
6ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

811 N Main St
Bellevue,
ID 83313

Feet100500 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 6|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 7|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 8|
[WUH-I] [UH TYPE 2] [BFO 24 IE]
PLACE A NEW T2 VAULT OVER EXISTING FACILITIES.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.

 9|
[BFO 24 IE]
PLACE (2) (1.25) CONDUIT FOR 157' AND PULL A CT CABLE THROUGH THE
ORANGE CONDUIT.

 10|
[UH TYPE 3] [BFO 6 IE] [BFO 24 IE] [LP3]
PLACE A NEW T3 VAULT.  LEAVE 100' 6CT SLACK LOOP.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.  ADD A NEW SPLICE CASE.  SET LP3 ROUTE MARKER AND BOND
LOCATE PLATE.

 11|
[UHE]
PLACE NEW CONDUITS IN EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 12|
[BFO 6 IE] [LW]
PULL 232' OF 6CT CABLE AND TRACER WIRE THROUGH THE EXISTING SLATE
CUSTOMER-OWNED DUCT.

 13|

EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 14|
[BM21 DEMARC]
ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH EXISTING PATH TO THE TERMINATION POINT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

65



Page 4 of 4

Verification of all utilities is the contractor's responsibility.  Idaho Digline can be reached by dialing 811 or 800-342-1585.  Idaho law requires a 48-hour notice prior to digging.

Kirtley St

3
4

603405

AG

4/7/2025

AG

PROJECT NUMBER:

PROJECT MANAGER:

REVISED DATE:

REVISED BY:

PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

 6CT PIGTAIL PROVIDED BY SYRINGA NETWORKS

Google, Sources: Esri, TomTom, Garmin, FAO, NOAA, USGS, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community

75

75

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

N
M

ain
S

t

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

3T

2T

LP3

HH

HH

21' CL

10' EOP

184' ROW

B
ellevue

City
Lim

its

B
ellevue City Lim

its

& 14

&

11

&

12
& 9

&

10

&

13

&

7

&

8

Empty
Duct

Empty
Duct

157'

[BFO 24]

232'

[BFO 6] [L
W]

3026'

[BFO
24]KCALS

+100'
6ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

KCALS

+100'
24ct

811 N Main St
Bellevue,
ID 83313

Feet50250 ¹

N
o

te
: A

ll 
st

at
io

n
in

g 
sh

o
w

n
 is

 a
ss

u
m

ed
, b

as
ed

 o
n

 fi
el

d
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 7|
[BFO 24 IE]
PULL 3026' OF CT CABLE THROUGH THE EXISTING BLUE SYRINGA NETWORKS-
OWNED DUCT.

 8|
[WUH-I] [UH TYPE 2] [BFO 24 IE]
PLACE A NEW T2 VAULT OVER EXISTING FACILITIES.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.

 9|
[BFO 24 IE]
PLACE (2) (1.25) CONDUIT FOR 157' AND PULL A CT CABLE THROUGH THE
ORANGE CONDUIT.

 10|
[UH TYPE 3] [BFO 6 IE] [BFO 24 IE] [LP3]
PLACE A NEW T3 VAULT.  LEAVE 100' 6CT SLACK LOOP.  LEAVE 100' 24CT SLACK
LOOP.  ADD A NEW SPLICE CASE.  SET LP3 ROUTE MARKER AND BOND
LOCATE PLATE.

 11|
[UHE]
PLACE NEW CONDUITS IN EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 12|
[BFO 6 IE] [LW]
PULL 232' OF 6CT CABLE AND TRACER WIRE THROUGH THE EXISTING SLATE
CUSTOMER-OWNED DUCT.

 13|

EXISTING CUSTOMER HH.

 14|
[BM21 DEMARC]
ENTER THE BUILDING THROUGH EXISTING PATH TO THE TERMINATION POINT.

Notes

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

66



page
5Syringa Networks, LLC    |    12301 W Explorer Dr, Boise, ID 83713    |   208-229-6100

Primary (1st) 1.25" conduit color = orange
2nd 1.25" conduit color = blue
3rd 1.25" conduit color = green
4th 1.25" conduit color = brown

Single metallic armor, dry/dry (no gel) with fibers meeting the
G652.D standard

1.25" HDPE SDR11 Pipe with "Syringa Networks" in print

Designated Conduit Color

Fiber Specs

Conduit Specs

Back Pull
Buried Cable
Buried Cable in Existing Conduit
Locate Wire
Over Blow
Cobble Rock adder
Rock Adder
Underground Conduit
Underground Duct in Existing
Underground Handhole/Vault
Underground Handhole Existing
Vacant

=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

BP
I

IE
LW
OB

R
RR
UD

UDI
UH

UHE
V

RUS Unit Description Unit Estimated Quantity Actual Quantity

BFO 6 IE Place 6 ct. fiber in an existing duct FT 225

BFO 6 IE (SLACK) Place 6 ct. fiber slack loop. FT 100

BFO 24 IE Place 24 ct. fiber in an existing duct FT 3183

BFO 24 IE (SLACK) Place 24 ct. fiber slack loop. FT 300

BM 60 (D) (2) (1.25) Bore a 4" hole, holding 2-1.25" conduit FT 158

BM21 Demarc Building Entrance of 25-50ft (From Building Entrance conduit stubbed up in the Demarc to FDP location).
Includes FDP costs.

EA 1

LP3 Set route marker and bond locate plate EA 1

LW Place locate wire with non-armored fiber FT 245

UD (1) (1.25) Trench and Place 1 vacant 1.25" conduit; includes all minor material and labor FT 13

UH Type 2 Place a 24"x36"x24" composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the Staking Sheets EA 1

UH Type 3 Place a 30"x48"x36" composite vault (requires SN logo on lid) per typicals in the Staking Sheets EA 1

UHE Enter Existing Handhole EA 1

WUD Intercept conduit, no handhand hole set; dig-up EA 2

WUH-I Expose and rearranging existing facilities to be overset with a hand hole EA 1

Labor

Austin Garrett
phone: (208) 948-4942

email: agarrett@syringanetworks.net

Syringa Networks Contact

The work and compensation described shall be performed and paid in accordance with the Standard Terms and
Conditions of the signed contract and any exhibits attached. This job is a fixed price contract. The Fixed price shall
include all supervision, material, labor, equipment, tools, permit preparation, traffic control, as built preparation, and
all other expenses necessary to complete the job in its entirety as depicted in the construction document. The Scope
of Work and Units are provided to the bidder as a courtesy only. It is the bidder’s responsibility to review the project
and to include in their price all items necessary to complete this project.

 MT#
 Project

603405
PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

Region
Contractor

Central Idaho
Crown Utilities

Rake Off Totals

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

67



page
6

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

68



page
7

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

69



page
8

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

70



page
9

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

71



Site Photographs

Site Photograph(s) on Page 4

4-A
Outside Customer HH

4-A

Google

Docusign Envelope ID: 452536DA-BFED-4A32-BB43-734238E1D981

72



Memorandum 

To: Bellevue Common Council 

From: Amy Phelps, City Clerk 

Re: Hunger Coalition Fee Waiver Request for the Summer Food Program   

Date: May 27, 2025 

Summary:  
On May 7th the City received an application from the Hunger Coalition for use of a small portion of 

Memorial Park for the Summer Food Program/free lunch for kids. The duration of the reservation is June 

9, 2025 through August 22nd during which the Hunger Coalition will provide free food for kids on 

Mondays and Wednesdays from 1:00 pm to 2:15 pm. The non-profit will set up and serve lunch in the 

space near the tiny library in the parking space and on the grass/blue tables (situated in the Southwest 

Corner of the Park). According to Parks Committee Recommendations : 1. “Fee waivers shall be 

granted to activities hosted by City of Bellevue, City departments or committees or by other taxing 

districts. 2. Fee waivers shall be granted to entities which directly partner with the City of Bellevue, 

City departments or committees, or with other taxing districts. Examples include the Hunger 

Coalition…” 

Suggested Motion  

Move to approve the Consent Agenda as: amended, corrected, or as presented.  

Enclosures 

1. Memorial Park Application  

2. Fee Waiver Application 

3. Arial view of Memorial Park for location reference      

Item 4e

73



74



75



76



77



78



Memorandum 

To: Bellevue Common Council 

From: Brian Parker, Community Development Director 

Re: LLA-25-01 – Site Visit and Continued Public Hearing 

Date: May 27, 2025 

During their May 12, 2025 regular meeting, the Bellevue Common Council voted to continue the public 

hearing for the subject application and to conduct a site visit to the property. The Council will meet at 

City Hall, be briefed on logistics and expectations, then travel to the site, conduct the site visit, then 

return to City Hall and proceed with the public hearing as would normally occur. 

Enclosures 

1. New public comment received since the prior meeting. 

2. Previous meeting packet. 

Item 5
79



  
 

 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council Members, 

 

DATE: 

16 May 2025 

Project Big Wood and our supporters thank you for the opportunity to participate in the public 

hearing regarding Lots 1A, 2A, and 3A of Block 96, Bellevue Townsite.  

 

We appreciate your willingness to consider the broader discussion of this proposal and the 

potential cumulative adverse impacts further development within the river corridor may have on 

the immediate and downstream community members.  

 

While you continue to assess the merits of this application against City Code, we encourage you 

to deny this application based on failure to meet minimum criteria. See below: 

1. Lot1A is almost entirely encumbered by flooding and is highly subject to river avulsion (bank 

erosion).  

2. According to Title 11, Subdivision, Chapter 1, Purpose (11-1-2), “The general purpose of this 

title is to protect and promote the public health, safety, convenience, and welfare by 

establishing regulations and a process of review for all proposed subdivisions of land.” 

i.   [B.]   To provide safe, adequate, and efficient pedestrian and vehicular traffic systems 

and circulations; 

ii.  [C.]   To provide adequate all-weather ingress and egress to subdivisions and lots 

therein; 

iii. [E.]   To provide for adequate air, light, solar access, privacy, and open space; 

iv. [G.]   To prevent inadequate or inappropriate provision of water, sewer, streets and 

pedestrian easements and public expenditures to provide such improvements; 

v. [H.]   To protect and conserve wildlife, streams, natural topography, and other 

desirable natural features by providing for maximum retention of natural topographic 

features and qualities such as, but not limited to, skyline and ridge tops, knoll ridges, 

established trees and shrub masses, topsoil, streambeds and stream banks, drainage 

swales, and preventing damage to the natural environment or scenic beauty; 

vi. [L.]   To provide access to public lands and waters; 

vii. [M.]   To ensure the provision and construction of adequate improvements including, 

but not limited to, water, sewer, and other utilities, streets, bridges, drainage, street 

lighting, and easements; 

viii. [O.]   To ensure conformance of proposed subdivisions with the above stated 

purposes and to ensure design conformance with the standards and purposes of this 

title and all other Municipal ordinances relating thereto, including subsequent 

amendments. 

 

 

80



 

 

 

  

 

3. Lot1A does not appear to meet §11-4-6.G, “Every lot in a subdivision shall have a minimum 

of twenty feet (20') of frontage on a dedicated public or approved private street.” Please also 

refer to 11-4-1 and 11-4-6.B and the Comprehensive Plan for questions of compliance.  

4. On April 8, 2025, the Blaine County Commissioners denied a proposal to relocate an existing 

building envelope further towards the river into a flood susceptible area along Broadford 

Road. We encourage the Bellevue City leadership to follow suit and consider a community 

wide approach to stream channel and floodplain protection and management.  

5. It is of the utmost importance to honor and maintain the canal easement on both sides as the 

canal is often used to alleviate and disperse destructive flood waters during high water 

events.  

6. Should you find that this proposal somehow meets your criteria despite the code citations 

above, we encourage prohibiting all filling, storage of materials and rock riprap within the 

stream channel, floodplain, and riparian areas.   

7. Please require a public access easement along the river to connect through to Howard 

Preserve.  

8. Please ensure all drainage from development is away from the canal and river channel.  

 

Again, we thank you for the opportunity to participate and thank you for showing up for our 

home water, the Big Wood River, the centerpiece of our treasured community.  

 

 

With Gratitude, 

Amanda Bauman & the team at Project Big Wood 
Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

  mendit@projectbigwood.org 

   208-309-3457 

              PO Box 5006, Ketchum, ID 83340 

81

mailto:mendit@projectbigwood.org


 

 

  

LLA-25-01 
Staff Report 
TBD Lewis Lane 

Bellevue Common Council 

May 12, 2025 

Meyers Lot Line 
Adjustment  

82



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  1 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Executive Summary 
Description 
An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original Plat. 
The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels into three (3) parcels 
and include a request for waivers from code requirements. 

Discussion 
• The applicant is requesting to reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels located on the subject 

property into three (3) parcels. 
o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 1A is 23,960 square feet, with an identified building 

envelope of approximately 2,000 square feet identified. 
o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 2A is 17,790 square feet. No building envelope is 

identified on this parcel. The area east of the proposed canal easement area is 
approximately 7,000 square feet. 

o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 3A is 18,017 square feet. No building envelope is 
identified on this parcel. The area east of the proposed canal easement area is 
approximately 6,700 square feet. 

• The subject property is zoned B – Business. The subject property is adjoined by the Howard 
Preserve to the north and west, partially developed land to the east, and a vacant industrially 
zoned property to the south. 

• As discussed below, the subject property was previously approved for a lot line adjustment with 
conditions of approval in 2023. The applicant did not request reconsideration of the conditions 
of approval at that time. However, in this application, the applicant is specifically requesting 
waivers of previous conditions of approval from that prior entitlement. The applicant is 
requesting the following modifications to the previous conditions of approval (Staff analysis in 
italics, Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation included within attached Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents): 

Condition #1: 

Prior Condition: 

“No building or structure shall touch the bottom West side bank (bottom of the slope 
intersects with the level surface). No building shall encroach into the space between the 
top of the bank (level of the street or alley) and the water, on the east side.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

“No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (level of the 
street or alley) and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise allowed per 
Diversion 45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to final plat 
recordation.” 

The basis for the prior condition of approval was based on the prior application materials and 
comment received from the Bellevue Canal District. The applicant included a letter from the 
boards of the Triangle Irrigation District and Wood River Valley Irrigation Diversion #45 stating 
that the Canal Districts and applicants had arrived at an agreement to expand the buildable 
areas of Lots 2A and 3A. Staff has no objection to the proposed revised condition of approval. 

83



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  2 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Condition #3 

Prior Condition: 

“Corner lots shall show BE’s in accordance with 11.4.6.C on the final plat.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

The applicant is requesting that this condition be deleted. 

The applicant has provided a justification for an alternate analysis of Bellevue City Code Section 
11-4-6(C), and correctly asserted that questions regarding the interpretation of Title 11 of 
Bellevue City Code are to be referred to Council for a determination (Bellevue City Code Section 
11-6-1). The Code section in question is as follows: 

“Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius from 
the center point of the intersection of the streets unless otherwise approved as defined in 
subsection 10-6-5C of this Code.” 

Bellevue City Code Section 10-6-5(C) is only applicable to the GR – General Residential zone. 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1 includes the following definitions: 

ALLEY: A minor public way providing secondary access to the back or the side or property 
otherwise abutting a street. 

BUILDING ENVELOPE: The site for location of a structure delineated on a preliminary plat 
and final plat within which the entire building or other structures must be constructed. 

STREET: A public right-of-way, which provides vehicular and pedestrian access to adjacent 
properties, the dedication of which has been officially accepted. The term street also 
includes the terms, highway, thoroughfare, parkway, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, place, 
and all such terms, except driveway, as herein defined. 

The applicant is identifying the public right of way to the east of the subject property as an alley, 
meaning that there are not two (2) intersecting “streets” to form a corner lot. Staff’s opinion is 
that this interpretation is flawed in three (3) significant ways: 

1. The definition of “alley” in Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1 specifically states that it is 
a “secondary access to the back of the side or property otherwise abutting a street.” The 
subject property does not have any other access as the portions of Walnut and 
Chestnut Streets are undeveloped. The right-of-way to the east of the subject property 
functions as an “alley” for the parcels to the west of the right-of-way (abutting Main 
Street) and as a “street” for the parcels to the east of the right-of-way (subject property). 

2. In order to be compliant with the Subdivision Design and Improvement Requirements 
for Lots established by Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(G), “Every lot in a subdivision 
shall have a minimum of twenty feet (20’) of frontage on a dedicated public or private 
street.” (Emphasis added). If we were to accept the applicant’s justification that the right 
of way to the east of the subject property is not a “street” but an “alley,” the street 
frontage of the subject property is limited to the undeveloped portions of the Walnut and 
Chestnut Street rights-of-way to the north and south, respectively, and the unnamed, 
undeveloped right-of-way to the west. Each of the proposed lots has more than twenty 
feet (20’) of frontage along the rights-of-way, however without providing vehicular and 
pedestrian access to the adjacent property, the right-of-way does not meet the 
definition of “street” from Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1. If the right-of-way to the 

84



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  3 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

east of the subject property is not to be considered a street, the proposed configuration 
of lots shown on the submitted preliminary plat does not meet the lot requirements of 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(G). 

3. When looking at the original plat of the City of Bellevue, the area to the east of Main 
Street is primarily platted as blocks consisting of two (2) rows of six (6) fifty foot wide by 
120’ deep parcels separated by an approximately 25’ wide alley right-of-way bounded by 
eighty foot wide street rights-of-way. On the west side of Main Street, the pattern 
changes. One (1) row of fifty foot (50’) wide by 120’ deep parcels is separated from one 
(1) row of fifty foot (50’) wide by two hundred feet (200’) deep parcels by an 
approximately fifty foot (50’) wide right-of-way. While the specific design intent of this 
block layout has likely been lost to history, it appears that the fifty foot (50’) right of way 
to the east of the subject property was most likely intended to serve as both a rear (alley) 
access to the Main Street row of parcels and as the primary frontage for the row of two 
hundred foot (200’) deep parcels, which includes the subject property. 

While Staff does not find the interpretation of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(C) to be valid, 
the subject property does currently not meet the standard of being a “corner lot” as there is only 
one “street” fronting the property. However, as there are existing platted rights-of-way to the 
north and south of the subject property, the submitted preliminary plat identifies a proposed 
building envelope on Lot 1A, and it is unclear how street access would be configured, the 
possibility of Lot 2A and/or 3A becoming a corner lot in the future cannot be ruled out. Staff is 
not supportive of the deletion of this condition of approval. 

Condition #4 

Prior Condition: 

“The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be improved in accordance with 11.4.8.B 

prior to approval of the final plat.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

“The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be improved in accordance with 11.4.8.B 
prior to approval of the final plat. 

The applicant is requesting to waive the requirement of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-8(B) 
that “All streets shall be constructed to meet or exceed the criteria and standards set forth in 
the City Standard Specifications for Streets and Water, and all other applicable ordinances, 
resolutions, or regulations of the City, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction 
thereover, now existing or hereafter adopted, amended, or codified.” 

In order to grant a waiver, the Council (upon receipt of a recommendation by the Commission) 
must show that there are “special physical characteristics or conditions affecting the property 
in question where a literal enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result 
of actions by the subdivider, and that the waiver would not be detrimental to the public welfare, 
health, and safety, nor injurious to the property owners in the immediate area.” The waiver 
sought is for improvements to the right-of-way adjacent to the property. The right-of-way is 
generally flat, of adequate width, and is improved as a substandard street. No “special physical 
characteristics or conditions” that would prevent improvement of the right-of-way to the east of 
the subject property are readily apparent. The applicant has identified “Existing overhead 
transmission lines… trees, and fences” within the right-of-way as the special physical 
characteristics. The applicant’s narrative states that “removal of the transmission lines and all 

85



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  4 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

other encroachments… would place an undue hardship on the subdivider/property owners,” but 
fails to provide any justification for this claim. Encroachments into right-of-way, including power 
transmission lines are very common within the City of Bellevue. As such, it is Staff’s opinion that 
no “special physical characteristics or conditions” exist that would make literal enforcement 
(improvement of right-of-way to City standards) an undue hardship. Staff is not supportive of 
this waiver request. 

• The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the subject application with the 
conditions of approval identified within the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision, 
including the following Condition: 

The City of Bellevue and/or the Wood River Land Trust shall have the first right of refusal on 
the purchase of the property identified on the preliminary plat as Lot 1A. Prior to the 
submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a draft First Right of Refusal 
Contract to be approved by the City of Bellevue and the Wood River Land Trust Board of 
Directors prior to recordation of the final plat. 

Since the issuance of the Commission’s recommendation, Staff, the applicant, and the Wood 
River Land Trust have been working to determine the most appropriate form of agreement to 
ensure that the City and Land Trust have the opportunity to purchase the area identified as Lot 
1A. Staff is recommending that the aforementioned condition be replaced with the following: 

Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a recorded 
memorandum of intent that the property owner and the Wood River Land Trust will enter 
into an Option to Purchase Agreement for the purchase of the property identified on the 
preliminary plat as Lot 1A. 

History 
• On August 15, 2023, Judith and Keith A. Meyers submitted a lot line adjustment application for 

the subject property. The proposed 2023 lot line adjustment was to reduce the total number of 
lots from six (6) to four (4) lots. This application was approved with conditions by the Bellevue 
Common Council on October 23, 2023. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision 
Documents are attached for reference. 

Recommendations 

Actions 
During their March 17, 2025 meeting, the Bellevue Planning & Zoning Commission voted adopt 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents recommending the subject 
application to the Bellevue Common Council with the conditions of approval identified therein. As 
discussed previously, Staff recommends that the Conditions of Approval be modified as listed 
below. 

Suggested motion: 
“I move that we approve LLA-25-01 with the conditions identified within the Staff Report, and to 
direct Staff to prepare Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents reflecting this 
decision based on the record provided.” 

Conditions of Approval 
1. No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (elevation of the 

street or alley) of the canal and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise allowed per 

86



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  5 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Diversion 45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to final plat 
recordation. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for the proposed parcel identified on the submitted 
preliminary plat as Lot 1A, the applicant shall receive approval from the City and construct a 
suitable vehicular and pedestrian access to the property. 

3. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall construct all required 
improvements, including improving the roadway within right-of-way to the east of the subject 
property from Walnut Street to Chestnut Street to the specifications provided in the Alley 
Improvements Exhibit attached to these findings. 

4. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised preliminary 
plat identifying an easement for the Bellevue Canal District and documentation that the 
proposed easement has been reviewed and accepted by the Bellevue Canal District.  

5. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised preliminary 
plat identifying the ordinary high water mark and a twenty foot (20’) wide fisherman’s easement 
along the landward side of the ordinary high water mark. 

6. No construction or grading shall occur until the Bellevue City Engineer has reviewed and 
approved the construction drawings. 

7. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a recorded 
memorandum of intent that the property owner and the Wood River Land Trust will enter into an 
Option to Purchase Agreement for the purchase of the property identified on the preliminary 
plat as Lot 1A. 

Notice of Expiration 
Pursuant to Bellevue City Code Section 11-3-4(D), failure to obtain final plat approval by the 
Council of an approved preliminary plat within one year after approval by the Council shall cause all 
approvals of said preliminary plat to be null and void. The final plat shall be filed with the Blaine 
County Recorder within one year after final plat approval by the Council. Failure to file said final plat 
within that time shall cause all approvals of said final plat to be null and void. No building permit 
shall be issued with regard to any parcel of land within a proposed subdivision until the final plat 
has been recorded. A copy of the final recorded plat shall be placed on file with the City. For good 
cause shown, the deadlines in this section may be extended for up to twelve (12) months. The 
Council shall hold a duly noticed public hearing prior to granting said extension. 

•  

  

87



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  6 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Project Location 

 

88



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  7 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Project Analysis 
Description 
An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original Plat. 
The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels into three (3) parcels 
and include a request for waivers from code requirements. 

Legal Description 
Lots 1-6, Block 96, Original Plat of Bellevue Townsite, located within Section 36, Township 2 North, 
Range 16 East, B.M., City of Bellevue, Blaine County, Idaho. 

Associated Documents 
Document Name Receipt of Last Revision 

Application January 22, 2025 

Preliminary Plat January 22, 2025 

Application Narrative January 22, 2025 

Letter from Triangle Irrigation and Wood River 
Irrigation District #45 

January 22, 2025 

Road Section Comparison Exhibit February 11, 2025 

Site Photos February 27, 2025 

Idaho Power Transmission Line Email February 21, 2025 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and 
Decision from 2023 LLA application 

October 23, 2023 

Planning & Zoning Commission Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision 
(approved but unsigned) 

March 17, 2025 

Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes for 
Public Hearing on Subject Application 
(approved but unsigned) 

February 18, 2025 

Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes for 
Public Hearing on Subject Application 
(approved but unsigned) 

March 3, 2025 

Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes for 
Public Hearing on Subject Application 
(approved but unsigned) 

March 17, 2025 

 
  

89



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  8 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Public Noticing 
Notice Date 

Political Subdivisions January 27, 2025 

Property Owners within 300 feet March 24, 2025 

Site Posting March 24, 2025 

Publication in Idaho Mountain Express March 26, 2025 

Dimensional Standards 
Standard Required Proposed 

Minimum Lot Size 6,000 square feet 17,990 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width 50 feet 149.98 feet 

Required Findings Code Sections 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-6-1: Procedure 
An owner or subdivider wishing to readjust lot lines, as defined in section 11-2-1 of this title, shall 
be required to file two (2) copies of a plat and application with the Administrator for administrative 
review. Additional information reasonably required for thorough review of the application and plat 
may be required by the Administrator to be provided by the applicant. Waivers shall be requested 
according to chapter 13 of this title. The Council shall remand any application and/or waiver 
request to the commission for recommendation prior to taking final action. The Administrator shall 
provide written notice of said application to owners of property immediately adjacent to the subject 
property. Said notice shall inform adjacent property owners they may comment on the application 
during a period of not less than ten (10) days after mailing of the notice and prior to final action on 
said application. Following expiration of the said comment period and upon a finding by the 
Administrator that the plat conforms to the readjustment of lot line definition and is in compliance 
with the provisions of this title, the Administrator shall approve same or approve with conditions 
necessary to find same in compliance with the provisions of this title. Upon a finding by the 
Administrator that the application does not conform to said definition or is not in compliance with 
this title, the Administrator shall deny the application and shall state the reasons therefor in writing, 
and a copy signed by the Administrator, attached to one copy of the plat, shall be returned to the 
applicant. Upon Council approval of an application and upon satisfaction by the applicant of any 
conditions attached thereto, the Administrator shall inform the City Clerk and the City Clerk shall 
sign the plat. Any questions with regard to the interpretation and/or applicability of this section or 
other sections shall be referred to the Council by the Administrator for determination. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-13-1: Waivers 
A. Commission Recommendation; Council Approval: Waiver of any of the requirements of this title 

may be granted by the Council on a case basis upon the recommendation of the commission. 
B. Application For Waiver: 

90



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  9 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

1. Application for such waiver(s) must be in writing and must show that there are special 
physical characteristics or conditions affecting the property in question where a literal 
enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result of actions by the 
subdivider, and that the waiver would not be detrimental to the public welfare, health, and 
safety, nor injurious to the property owners in the immediate area. 

2. Applications shall be made to the Administrator in writing at the time of subdivision 
application. Said waiver, together with such related data and maps as are necessary to fully 
illustrate the relief sought, shall be filed at the same time. Such application shall be 
processed and considered with the preliminary plat application. 

Code Sections of Interest 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1: Rules of Word Construction; Definitions: 
ALLEY: A minor public way providing secondary access to the back or the side or property otherwise 
abutting a street. 

BUILDING ENVELOPE: The site for location of a structure delineated on a preliminary plat and final 
plat within which the entire building or other structures must be constructed. 

EASEMENT: A grant by a property owner to a specific person(s) or the public right to use land for 
specific purpose(s). Also, such a right acquired by prescription. 

FLOODPLAIN: The relatively flat area or low land adjoining the channel of a stream, river, lake or 
other body of water which is subject to the hazards and inundation of a 100-year frequency, as 
identified and defined in the Flood Insurance Study and Flood Boundary and Floodway Map 
prepared by the Federal Insurance Administration of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development in conjunction with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

LOT, BUILDABLE: A lot of sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, coverage, 
and area and to provide such yards and other open spaces as are herein required. Structures shall 
only be built upon buildable lots. 

READJUSTMENT OF LOT LINES: A change or modification of the boundary lines between existing 
lots or parcels of land or between dwelling units which does not reduce the area, frontage, width, 
depth, or building setback lines of such lots below the minimum zoning requirements and which 
does not create additional lots or dwelling units. Readjustment of lot lines is intended to include 
other minor changes to a subdivision, condominium or townhouse plat such as, but not limited to, 
notation changes, boundary shifts and removal of lot line(s), each of which does not reduce the 
area, frontage, width, depth, or building setback lines of each lot below the minimum zoning 
requirements nor create additional lots or dwelling units. 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS: Specifications for design and construction of improvements as 
specified in this title or other ordinances or resolutions of the City of Bellevue or by any other 
governmental entity having jurisdiction thereover, including subsequent amendments or 
codifications. 

STREET: A public right-of-way, which provides vehicular and pedestrian access to adjacent 
properties, the dedication of which has been officially accepted. The term street also includes the 
terms, highway, thoroughfare, parkway, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, place, and all such terms, 
except driveway, as herein defined. 

91



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  10 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

WAIVER: Modification of a relevant provision and regulation of this title not contrary to public 
interest or public health, safety, or welfare, and due to physical characteristics of the particular 
parcel of land and not the result of actions of the subdivider where literal enforcement of this title 
would result in undue hardship. The granting of waiver(s) shall be upon written application, and the 
granting thereof rests with the sound discretion of the commission and Council, on a case by case 
basis. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6: Lots: 
A. Lot size, width, depth, shape, orientation, and minimum building setback lines shall be in 

compliance with the zoning district in which the property is located; and compatible with the 
location of the subdivision and the type of development; and preserve solar access to adjacent 
properties and buildings. 

B. Whenever a proposed subdivision contains lot(s) in whole or in part within the floodplain, or 
which contain land with a slope in excess of twenty five percent (25%) based upon natural 
contours, or create corner lots at the intersection of two (2) or more streets, building envelopes 
shall be shown for the lot(s) so affected on the preliminary and final plats. The building 
envelopes shall be located in a manner designed to promote harmonious development of 
structures, minimize congestion of structures, provide open space and solar access for each 
lot and structure, and preserve hillside view corridors. Also, building envelopes shall be located 
to promote access to the lots and maintenance of public utilities, to minimize cut and fill for 
roads and building foundations, and minimize adverse impact upon environment, 
watercourses, and topographical features. 

C. Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius from the 
center point of the intersection of the streets unless otherwise approved as defined in 
subsection 10-6-5C of this Code. 

D. Side lot lines shall be within twenty degrees (20°) to a right angle or radial line to the street line. 
E. Double frontage lots shall not be created. A planting strip shall be provided along the boundary 

line of lots adjacent to arterial streets or incompatible zoning districts. Should a double 
frontage lot be created out of necessity, then such lot shall be a reversed frontage lot. 

F. Minimum lot sizes in all cases shall be reversed frontage lot(s). 
G. Every lot in a subdivision shall have a minimum of twenty feet (20') of frontage on a dedicated 

public or approved private street. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-7: Blocks: 
The length, width, and shape of blocks within a proposed subdivision shall conform to the following 
requirements: 

A. No block shall be longer than one thousand feet (1,000') nor less than four hundred feet (400') 
between the street intersections, and shall have sufficient depth to provide for two (2) tiers of 
lots. 

B. Blocks shall be laid out in such a manner as to comply with the lot requirements. 
C. The layout of blocks shall take into consideration the natural topography of the subdivision and 

minimize cuts and fills for roads and minimize adverse impact on the environment, 
watercourses, and topographical features. 

D. Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius from the 
intersection of the streets. 

92



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  11 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-8: Streets: 
A. The arrangement, character, extent, width, grade, and location of all streets put in the proposed 

subdivision shall conform to the Comprehensive Plan and shall be considered in their relation 
to existing and planned streets, topography, public convenience and safety, and the proposed 
uses of the land. 

B. All streets shall be constructed to meet or exceed the criteria and standards set forth in the City 
Standard Specifications for Streets and Water, and all other applicable ordinances, resolutions, 
or regulations of the City, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction thereover, now 
existing or hereafter adopted, amended or codified. 

C. Where a subdivision abuts or contains an existing or proposed arterial street, railroad, or limited 
access highway right-of- way, the Council may require a frontage street, planting strip, or similar 
design features. 

D. Streets may be required to provide access to adjoining lands and provide proper traffic 
circulation through existing or future neighborhoods. 

E. Street grades shall not be less than three-tenths percent (0.3%) and not more than seven-
tenths percent (0.7%) so as to provide for adequate drainage and snow plowing. 

F. In general, partial dedications shall not be permitted. However, the Council may accept a 
partial street dedication when such a street forms a boundary of the proposed subdivision and 
is deemed necessary for the orderly development of the neighborhood, and provided the 
Council finds it practical to require the dedication of the remainder of the right-of-way when the 
adjoining property is subdivided. When a partial street exists adjoining the proposed 
subdivision, the remainder of the right- of-way shall be dedicated. 

G. Dead-end streets shall be permitted as deemed appropriate by the Council when providing for 
future connectivity to adjacent lands and are in compliance with International Fire Codes 
regarding turnarounds. 

H. A cul-de-sac or similar type street shall be permitted as deemed appropriate by the Council 
which complies with International Fire Codes regarding turnarounds. 

I. Streets shall be planned to intersect as nearly as possible at right angles, but in no event at less 
than seventy degrees (70°). 

J. Where any street deflects any angle of ten degrees (10°) or more, a connecting curve shall be 
required having a minimum centerline radius of three hundred feet (300') for arterial and 
collector streets and one hundred twenty five feet (125') for minor streets. 

K. Streets with centerline offsets of less than one hundred twenty five feet (125') shall be 
prohibited. 

L. A tangent of at least one hundred feet (100') long shall be introduced between reverse curves on 
arterial and collector streets. 

M. Proposed streets, which are continuations of existing streets, shall be given the same names as 
the existing streets. All new street names shall not duplicate or be confused with the names of 
existing streets within Blaine County. The subdivider shall obtain approval of all street names 
within the proposed subdivision from the commission before submitting same to the Council 
for preliminary plat approval. 

N. Street alignment design shall follow natural terrain contours to result in safe streets, usable 
lots, and minimum cuts and fills. 

O. Street patterns of residential areas shall be designed to create areas free of through traffic but 
readily accessible to adjacent collector and arterial streets. 

93



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  12 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

P. Reserve planting strips controlling access to public streets shall be permitted under conditions 
specified and shown on the final plat, and all landscaping and irrigation systems shall be 
installed as required improvements by the subdivider. 

Q. In general, the centerline of streets shall coincide with the centerline of the street right-of-way, 
and all crosswalk markings shall be installed by the subdivider as a required improvement. 

R. Street lighting may be required by the commission or Council, where appropriate, and shall be 
installed by the subdivider as a requirement improvement. 

S. Private streets complying with the International Fire Codes shall be allowed as deemed 
appropriate by the Council. 

T. Street signs shall be installed by the subdivider as a required improvement of a type and design 
approved by the Administrator and shall be consistent with the type and design of existing 
street signs elsewhere in the City. 

U. Wherever a proposed subdivision requires construction of a new bridge, or will create 
substantial additional traffic which will require construction of a new bridge or improvement of 
an existing bridge, said construction or improvement shall be a required improvement by the 
subdivider. Said construction or improvement shall be in accordance with adopted standard 
specifications therefor. 

V. Sidewalks, curbs, and gutters may be a required improvement installed by the subdivider. 
W. Prior to final plat signature, the first chip sealing applied to new dedicated streets and 

applicable private streets shall be completed by the developer or bonded for by the developer 
for any subdivision, planned unit development or condominium plat. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-9: Alleys 
Alleys shall be provided in commercial and light industrial zoning districts, and may be required in 
residential districts. The width of an alley shall be not less than twenty five feet (25'). Alley 
intersections and sharp changes in alignment shall be avoided, but where necessary, corners shall 
be provided to permit safe vehicular movement. Dead-end alleys shall comply with the 
International Fire Codes regarding turnaround requirements. Improvement of alleys shall be done 
by the subdivider as a required improvement and in conformance with design standards specified 
in subsection 11-4-8B of this chapter. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-10: Easements: 
Easements, as set forth hereinafter, shall be required for location of utilities and other public 
services to provide adequate pedestrian circulation and access to public waterways and lands: 

   A.   A public utility easement at least ten feet (10') in width shall be required within the street right-
of-way boundaries of all streets. 

   B.   Where a subdivision contains or borders on a watercourse, drainageway, channel or stream, 
an easement shall be required of sufficient width to contain said watercourse and provide access 
for private maintenance and/or reconstruction of said watercourse. 

   C.   All subdivisions which border the Big Wood River or any tributary shall dedicate a twenty foot 
(20') fisherman and unaltered riparian easement along the river bank. Furthermore, the Council 
shall require in appropriate areas an easement providing access through the subdivision to the 
bank as a sportsman's access. These easement requirements are minimum standards, and in 
appropriate cases where a subdivision abuts a portion of the river adjacent to an existing 
pedestrian easement, the Council may require an extension of that easement along the portion of 
the riverbank which runs through the proposed subdivision. 

94



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  13 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

   D.   All subdivisions which border on the Big Wood River or any tributary shall dedicate a one 
hundred foot (100') floodplain management easement upon which no permanent structure shall be 
built in order to protect the natural vegetation and wildlife along the riverbank and to protect 
structures from damage or loss due to riverbank erosion. 

   E.   All subdivisions through which appropriate access to public lands are found to exist shall 
dedicate reasonable public access easements thereto as part of the subdivision traffic circulation. 

   F.   No ditch, pipe, or structure for irrigation water or irrigation wastewater shall be constructed, 
rerouted, or changed in the course of planning for or constructing required improvements within a 
proposed subdivision unless same has first been approved in writing by the ditch company or 
property owner holding the water rights thereto. A written copy of such approval shall be filed as 
part of required improvement construction plans. 

   G.   Nonvehicular transportation system easements including pedestrian walkways, bike paths, 
equestrian paths, and similar easements shall be dedicated by the subdivider to provide an 
adequate nonvehicular transportation system throughout the City. Such improvements may be 
calculated towards required park land dedication requirements as set forth in the adopted Bellevue 
Parks Master Plan. 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-16: Utilities 
In addition to the terms mentioned hereinabove, all utilities including, but not limited to, electricity, 
natural gas, telephone, and cable services shall be installed underground as a required 
improvement by the subdivider. Adequate provision for expansion of such services within the 
subdivision or to adjacent lands including installation of conduit pipe across and underneath 
streets shall be installed by the subdivider prior to construction of street improvements. 

Bellevue City Code Section 12-5-1: General Standards: 
In all Special Flood Hazard Areas the following provisions are required: 

A. A Riparian Protection Setback is hereby established one hundred feet (100') back from the 
mean high-water mark of the Bigwood River within the City. The following activities and 
improvements are prohibited within the Riparian Protection Setback: 
1. New Construction; 
2. Placement of structures, except fences and maintenance thereof; 
3. Placement of fill or dirt or other materials; 
4. Removal of any live vegetation, except for leaning or diseased trees that are hazardous of 

life or property (provided) the root balls shall not be removed in order to protect against 
erosion of the river bank) with prior written confirmation of such condition by a certified 
Arborist unless a bona fide emergency to life or property exists, and noxious weeds; 

5. Planting non-native vegetation, including grass, shrubs and trees; 
6. Storage of materials and/or equipment before, during or after any construction or 

excavation on an adjacent area. 
Exceptions: 
1. Planting of native riparian vegetation; 
2. Maintenance of non-native grasses, shrubs and trees existing on the effective date of this 

title; 
3. Emergency bank stabilization activities pursuant to all required federal, state and City 

permits; and 

95



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  14 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

4. Construction of public roads, and of public utilities and other structures pursuant to all 
required by city, state and federal permits; and 

5. Maintenance of deed or dedicated public pathways, and the maintenance of existing private 
pathways, and the creation and maintenance of one private pathway on each parcel of land 
of not more than eight (8) feet in width down to the river. 

B. All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be designed (or 
modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement of the 
structure. 

C. All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be constructed with 
materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage in accordance with the Technical 
Bulletin 2, Flood Damage-Resistant Materials Requirements, and available from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency. 

D. All new construction, substantial improvements, and development shall be constructed by 
methods and practices that minimize flood damages. 

E. All new and replacement electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, 
and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from 
entering or accumulating within the components during conditions offloading to the Flood 
Protection Elevation. These include, but are not limited to, HVAC equipment, water softener 
units, bath/kitchen fixtures, ductwork, electric/gas meter panels/boxes, utility/cable boxes, hot 
water heaters, and electric outlets/switches. 

F. All new and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of floodwaters into the system. 

G. All new and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate 
infiltration of floodwaters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters. 

H. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them 
or contamination from them during flooding. 

I. A fully enclosed area, of new construction and substantially improved structures, which is 
below the lowest floor shall: 
1. Be constructed entirely of flood resistant materials at least to the Flood Protection 

Elevation; and 
2. Include, in Zones A, AE, AH, AO, and A1-30, flood openings to automatically equalize 

hydrostatic flood forces on walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters. To meet 
this requirement, the openings must either be certified by a professional engineer or 
architect or meet or exceed the following minimum design criteria: 
a. A minimum of two (2)flood openings on different sides of each enclosed area subject to 

flooding; 
b. The total net area of all flood openings must be at least one (1) square inch for each 

square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding; 
c. If a building has more than one enclosed area, each enclosed area must have flood 

openings to allow floodwaters to automatically enter and exit; 
d. The bottom of all required flood openings shall be no higher than one foot (1') above the 

interior or exterior adjacent grade; 
e. Flood openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, or other coverings or devices, 

provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions; and 
f. Enclosures made of flexible skirting are not considered enclosures for regulatory 

purposes, and, therefore, do not require flood openings. Masonry or wood 
underpinning, regardless of structural status, is considered an enclosure and requires 
flood openings as outlined above. 

96



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  15 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

J. Any alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvements to a structure, which is in compliance 
with the provisions of this ordinance, shall meet the requirements of "new construction" as 
contained in this title. 

K. Nothing in this title shall prevent the repair, reconstruction, or replacement of a building or 
structure existing on the effective date of this title and located totally or partially within the 
floodway, flood fringe area, or stream setback, provided there is no additional encroachment 
below the Flood Protection Elevation in the floodway, flood fringe area, or stream setback, and 
provided that such repair, reconstruction, or replacement meets all of the other requirements 
of this title. 

L. New solid waste disposal facilities and sites, hazardous waste management facilities, salvage 
yards, and chemical storage facilities shall not be permitted, except by variance as specified in 
subsection 12-4-5 I. A structure or tank for chemical or fuel storage incidental to an allowed use 
or to the operation of a water treatment plant or wastewater treatment facility may be located in 
a Special Flood Hazard Area only if the structure or tank is either elevated or floodproofed to at 
least the Flood Protection Elevation and certified in accordance with the provisions of 
subsection 12-4-3 C. 

M. All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall be consistent with the need to 
minimize flood damage and determined to be reasonably safe from flooding. 

N. All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have public utilities and 
facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems located and constructed to minimize 
flood damage. 

O. All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have adequate drainage 
provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards. 

P. All subdivision proposals and other development proposals shall have received all necessary 
permits from those governmental agencies for which approval is required by Federal or State 
law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 
USC § 1334. 

Q. When a structure is partially located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, the entire structure shall 
meet the requirements for new construction and substantial improvements. 

R. When a structure is located in multiple flood hazard zones or in a flood hazard risk zone with 
multiple base flood elevations, the provisions for the more restrictive flood hazard risk zone and 
the highest Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall apply. 

Comprehensive Plan Analysis 
Chapter 5 – Land Use – Business (B) 
Bellevue’s downtown and business area is linear and centered along State Highway 75 (Main Street) 
through the middle of the city. The business area is generally constrained to the west by the drop in 
slope toward the river and to the east by the original platting and residential development over the 
city's nearly 135-year history. This land use area allows permitted businesses that include but are 
not limited to: business, professional, medical offices; public buildings, gas stations; restaurants, 
bars, theaters, banks, motels, tourist uses, retail outlets; public utilities, repair/personal services, 
storage, public parking lots and garages, car washes; and churches. 

  

97

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/bellevueid/latest/bellevue_id/0-0-0-7917#JD_12-4-5
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/bellevueid/latest/bellevue_id/0-0-0-7834#JD_12-4-3


LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  16 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

There are 65.271 acres in Bellevue classified as business as of September, 2015. This inventory 
includes: 138 lots ranging in size from 0.068 to 8.46 acres; 22 vacant lots totaling 16.273 acres; and 
22 vacant lots totaling 16.273 acres; and 22 legally nonconforming properties on 8.292 acres that 
the City desires to be redeveloped for business purposes. Bellevue has in excess of 24.565 acres (or 
37.6%) of business zoned property that is either vacant or under- developed. 

Currently a mix of non-conforming uses exists within the business zone. These “grandfathered” uses 
are allowed to continue, although current zoning ordinances do not allow for expansion of these 
nonconforming uses. 

The Bellevue Business Park on the north edge of town has expanded the business core with the 
addition of a large grocery store, bank, and garden center. As the business park has developed, this 
end of town has become a hub of activity. Sidewalks have made pedestrian circulation easier, safer, 
and more inviting. 

Chapter 5 – Land Use – Objective 3: 
Support recreation and open space uses when available and appropriate. 

Actions 

1. Investigate areas where such uses may be possible. 
2. Ensure parks and open spaces complement adjacent zones and vice versa by addressing 

aesthetics and health and safety issues through design principles. 
3. Maintain parks and open spaces for residents and visitors. 
4. Identify and maintain non-motorized connections between parks and open spaces. 
5. Maintain an appropriate open space visual separation between Bellevue and Hailey to preserve 

Bellevue’s unique identity and its rural small-town character 

Chapter 6 – Natural Resources – Surface Water 
Bellevue is in the Big Wood River watershed. The availability of water was a lure to early settlers and 
irrigation played a major role in city’s development. The Big Wood River runs the entire length of the 
Wood River Valley and eventually flows into Magic Reservoir, providing habitat for many species and 
recreation opportunities to residents and visitors. Affected by seasonal fluctuations in runoff from 
snowmelt, the annual peak flow is ordinarily reached the first week of June. The water year ends in 
September at the lowest flows. Thunderstorms may result in increased flow and turbidity. At the 
Howard Preserve, a diversion dam diverts water from the river into a canal system that runs 
approximately 34 miles to irrigate agricultural lands south of Bellevue. The Board of Control of the 
Triangle Irrigation District and the Wood River Irrigation District #45 manages the dam and canal 
jointly. Typical annual diversion is 380 CFS, drawn April 15 to October 31. 

Chapter 6 – Natural Resources – Objective 2: 
Ensure that developments are designed to minimize impacts to wildlife habitat and river function 
along the Big Wood River. 

Actions 

1. Allow the natural meander of the Big Wood River and reinforce its banks only where necessary 
to protect existing infrastructure. 

2. Stabilize river and stream banks with native riparian vegetation; rehabilitate existing vegetation 
within the 100-foot riparian non-disturbance area. 

3. Evaluate and minimize vegetation removal within the 100-foot riparian non-disturbance area. 

98



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  17 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

4. Follow state Best Management Practices for construction and rehabilitation actions undertaken 
within 100 feet of the stream. 

5. Maintain perennial vegetative cover on soils to protect them from erosion. 
6. Work with developers to ensure east/west migration corridors are preserved across the valley. 

Chapter 10 – Recreation – Big Wood River Access 
The Big Wood River is considered a navigable stream as defined by Idaho Code which allows the 
public to use such streams, provided entrances and exits adjacent to a public right of way. Public 
rights of way to the Big Wood River within the City include: Chantrelle Subdivision, Broadford Road 
Bridge, Howard Preserve (Elm Street/Martin Lane/Old City Park), and Riverside Ranch Subdivision. 
There are approximately 3.3 miles of trails in Bellevue leading to and along the Big Wood River. The 
trails connect Chantrelle Subdivision, Howard Preserve, and Riverside Ranch Subdivision. 

Discussion 
• The applicant is requesting to reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels located on the subject 

property into three (3) parcels. 
o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 1A is 23,960 square feet, with an identified building 

envelope of approximately 2,000 square feet identified. 
o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 2A is 17,790 square feet. No building envelope is 

identified on this parcel. The area east of the proposed canal easement area is 
approximately 7,000 square feet. 

o The proposed parcel identified as Lot 3A is 18,017 square feet. No building envelope is 
identified on this parcel. The area east of the proposed canal easement area is 
approximately 6,700 square feet. 

• The subject property is zoned B – Business. The subject property is adjoined by the Howard 
Preserve to the north and west, partially developed land to the east, and a vacant industrially 
zoned property to the south. 

• As discussed below, the subject property was previously approved for a lot line adjustment with 
conditions of approval in 2023. The applicant did not request reconsideration of the conditions 
of approval at that time. However, in this application, the applicant is specifically requesting 
waivers of previous conditions of approval from that prior entitlement. The applicant is 
requesting the following modifications to the previous conditions of approval (Staff analysis in 
italics, Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation included within attached Findings of 
Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents): 

Condition #1: 

Prior Condition: 

“No building or structure shall touch the bottom West side bank (bottom of the slope 
intersects with the level surface). No building shall encroach into the space between the 
top of the bank (level of the street or alley) and the water, on the east side.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

“No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (level of the 
street or alley) and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise allowed per 
Diversion 45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to final plat 
recordation.” 

99



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  18 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

The basis for the prior condition of approval was based on the prior application materials and 
comment received from the Bellevue Canal District. The applicant included a letter from the 
boards of the Triangle Irrigation District and Wood River Valley Irrigation Diversion #45 stating 
that the Canal Districts and applicants had arrived at an agreement to expand the buildable 
areas of Lots 2A and 3A. Staff has no objection to the proposed revised condition of approval. 

Condition #3 

Prior Condition: 

“Corner lots shall show BE’s in accordance with 11.4.6.C on the final plat.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

The applicant is requesting that this condition be deleted. 

The applicant has provided a justification for an alternate analysis of Bellevue City Code Section 
11-4-6(C), and correctly asserted that questions regarding the interpretation of Title 11 of 
Bellevue City Code are to be referred to Council for a determination (Bellevue City Code Section 
11-6-1). The Code section in question is as follows: 

“Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius from 
the center point of the intersection of the streets unless otherwise approved as defined in 
subsection 10-6-5C of this Code.” 

Bellevue City Code Section 10-6-5(C) is only applicable to the GR – General Residential zone. 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1 includes the following definitions: 

ALLEY: A minor public way providing secondary access to the back or the side or property 
otherwise abutting a street. 

BUILDING ENVELOPE: The site for location of a structure delineated on a preliminary plat 
and final plat within which the entire building or other structures must be constructed. 

STREET: A public right-of-way, which provides vehicular and pedestrian access to adjacent 
properties, the dedication of which has been officially accepted. The term street also 
includes the terms, highway, thoroughfare, parkway, road, avenue, boulevard, lane, place, 
and all such terms, except driveway, as herein defined. 

The applicant is identifying the public right of way to the east of the subject property as an alley, 
meaning that there are not two (2) intersecting “streets” to form a corner lot. Staff’s opinion is 
that this interpretation is flawed in three (3) significant ways: 

4. The definition of “alley” in Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1 specifically states that it is 
a “secondary access to the back of the side or property otherwise abutting a street.” The 
subject property does not have any other access as the portions of Walnut and 
Chestnut Streets are undeveloped. The right-of-way to the east of the subject property 
functions as an “alley” for the parcels to the west of the right-of-way (abutting Main 
Street) and as a “street” for the parcels to the east of the right-of-way (subject property). 

5. In order to be compliant with the Subdivision Design and Improvement Requirements 
for Lots established by Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(G), “Every lot in a subdivision 
shall have a minimum of twenty feet (20’) of frontage on a dedicated public or private 
street.” (Emphasis added). If we were to accept the applicant’s justification that the right 
of way to the east of the subject property is not a “street” but an “alley,” the street 
frontage of the subject property is limited to the undeveloped portions of the Walnut and 

100



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  19 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Chestnut Street rights-of-way to the north and south, respectively, and the unnamed, 
undeveloped right-of-way to the west. Each of the proposed lots has more than twenty 
feet (20’) of frontage along the rights-of-way, however without providing vehicular and 
pedestrian access to the adjacent property, the right-of-way does not meet the 
definition of “street” from Bellevue City Code Section 11-2-1. If the right-of-way to the 
east of the subject property is not to be considered a street, the proposed configuration 
of lots shown on the submitted preliminary plat does not meet the lot requirements of 
Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(G). 

6. When looking at the original plat of the City of Bellevue, the area to the east of Main 
Street is primarily platted as blocks consisting of two (2) rows of six (6) fifty foot wide by 
120’ deep parcels separated by an approximately 25’ wide alley right-of-way bounded by 
eighty foot wide street rights-of-way. On the west side of Main Street, the pattern 
changes. One (1) row of fifty foot (50’) wide by 120’ deep parcels is separated from one 
(1) row of fifty foot (50’) wide by two hundred feet (200’) deep parcels by an 
approximately fifty foot (50’) wide right-of-way. While the specific design intent of this 
block layout has likely been lost to history, it appears that the fifty foot (50’) right of way 
to the east of the subject property was most likely intended to serve as both a rear (alley) 
access to the Main Street row of parcels and as the primary frontage for the row of two 
hundred foot (200’) deep parcels, which includes the subject property. 

While Staff does not find the interpretation of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(C) to be valid, 
the subject property does currently not meet the standard of being a “corner lot” as there is only 
one “street” fronting the property. However, as there are existing platted rights-of-way to the 
north and south of the subject property, the submitted preliminary plat identifies a proposed 
building envelope on Lot 1A, and it is unclear how street access would be configured, the 
possibility of Lot 2A and/or 3A becoming a corner lot in the future cannot be ruled out. Staff is 
not supportive of the deletion of this condition of approval. 

Condition #4 

Prior Condition: 

“The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be improved in accordance with 11.4.8.B 

prior to approval of the final plat.” 

Applicant’s proposed condition: 

“The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be improved in accordance with 11.4.8.B 
prior to approval of the final plat. 

The applicant is requesting to waive the requirement of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-8(B) 
that “All streets shall be constructed to meet or exceed the criteria and standards set forth in 
the City Standard Specifications for Streets and Water, and all other applicable ordinances, 
resolutions, or regulations of the City, or any other governmental entity having jurisdiction 
thereover, now existing or hereafter adopted, amended, or codified.” 

In order to grant a waiver, the Council (upon receipt of a recommendation by the Commission) 
must show that there are “special physical characteristics or conditions affecting the property 
in question where a literal enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result 
of actions by the subdivider, and that the waiver would not be detrimental to the public welfare, 
health, and safety, nor injurious to the property owners in the immediate area.” The waiver 
sought is for improvements to the right-of-way adjacent to the property. The right-of-way is 

101



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  20 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

generally flat, of adequate width, and is improved as a substandard street. No “special physical 
characteristics or conditions” that would prevent improvement of the right-of-way to the east of 
the subject property are readily apparent. The applicant has identified “Existing overhead 
transmission lines… trees, and fences” within the right-of-way as the special physical 
characteristics. The applicant’s narrative states that “removal of the transmission lines and all 
other encroachments… would place an undue hardship on the subdivider/property owners,” but 
fails to provide any justification for this claim. Encroachments into right-of-way, including power 
transmission lines are very common within the City of Bellevue. As such, it is Staff’s opinion that 
no “special physical characteristics or conditions” exist that would make literal enforcement 
(improvement of right-of-way to City standards) an undue hardship. Staff is not supportive of 
this waiver request. 

• The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the subject application with the 
conditions of approval identified within the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision, 
including the following Condition: 

The City of Bellevue and/or the Wood River Land Trust shall have the first right of refusal on 
the purchase of the property identified on the preliminary plat as Lot 1A. Prior to the 
submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a draft First Right of Refusal 
Contract to be approved by the City of Bellevue and the Wood River Land Trust Board of 
Directors prior to recordation of the final plat. 

Since the issuance of the Commission’s recommendation, Staff, the applicant, and the Wood 
River Land Trust have been working to determine the most appropriate form of agreement to 
ensure that the City and Land Trust have the opportunity to purchase the area identified as Lot 
1A. Staff is recommending that the aforementioned condition be replaced with the following: 

Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a recorded 
memorandum of intent that the property owner and the Wood River Land Trust will enter 
into an Option to Purchase Agreement for the purchase of the property identified on the 
preliminary plat as Lot 1A. 

History 
• On August 15, 2023, Judith and Keith A. Meyers submitted a lot line adjustment application for 

the subject property. The proposed 2023 lot line adjustment was to reduce the total number of 
lots from six (6) to four (4) lots. This application was approved with conditions by the Bellevue 
Common Council on October 23, 2023. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision 
Documents are attached for reference. 

Comments 
Agency/Department Comments 
To date, Staff has received comment from the following agencies and departments: 

• Bellevue Fire Department 
• Bellevue Marshall’s Office 
• Bellevue Water and Sewer Department 
• Bellevue City Engineer 
• Triangle Irrigation District 

102



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  21 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

All agency comments received to date are attached for reference. 

Public Comments 
To date, Staff has received comment from the following individuals: 

• Jeanne Liston 

All public comments received to date are attached for reference. 

Recommendations 
Actions 
During their March 17, 2025 meeting, the Bellevue Planning & Zoning Commission voted adopt 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents recommending the subject 
application to the Bellevue Common Council with the conditions of approval identified therein. As 
discussed previously, Staff recommends that the Conditions of Approval be modified as listed 
below. 

Suggested motion: 
“I move that we approve LLA-25-01 with the conditions identified within the Staff Report, and to 
direct Staff to prepare Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents reflecting this 
decision based on the record provided.” 

Conditions of Approval 
1. No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (elevation of the 

street or alley) of the canal and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise allowed per 
Diversion 45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to final plat 
recordation. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for the proposed parcel identified on the submitted 
preliminary plat as Lot 1A, the applicant shall receive approval from the City and construct a 
suitable vehicular and pedestrian access to the property. 

3. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall construct all required 
improvements, including improving the roadway within right-of-way to the east of the subject 
property from Walnut Street to Chestnut Street to the specifications provided in the Alley 
Improvements Exhibit attached to these findings. 

4. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised preliminary 
plat identifying an easement for the Bellevue Canal District and documentation that the 
proposed easement has been reviewed and accepted by the Bellevue Canal District.  

5. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised preliminary 
plat identifying the ordinary high water mark and a twenty foot (20’) wide fisherman’s easement 
along the landward side of the ordinary high water mark. 

6. No construction or grading shall occur until the Bellevue City Engineer has reviewed and 
approved the construction drawings. 

7. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a recorded 
memorandum of intent that the property owner and the Wood River Land Trust will enter into an 

103



LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment  22 
Council Staff Report 
May 12, 2025 

Option to Purchase Agreement for the purchase of the property identified on the preliminary 
plat as Lot 1A. 

Notice of Expiration 
Pursuant to Bellevue City Code Section 11-3-4(D), failure to obtain final plat approval by the 
Council of an approved preliminary plat within one year after approval by the Council shall cause all 
approvals of said preliminary plat to be null and void. The final plat shall be filed with the Blaine 
County Recorder within one year after final plat approval by the Council. Failure to file said final plat 
within that time shall cause all approvals of said final plat to be null and void. No building permit 
shall be issued with regard to any parcel of land within a proposed subdivision until the final plat 
has been recorded. A copy of the final recorded plat shall be placed on file with the City. For good 
cause shown, the deadlines in this section may be extended for up to twelve (12) months. The 
Council shall hold a duly noticed public hearing prior to granting said extension. 

104



105



106



Property Boundary
Adjoiner's Lot Line

Survey Tie Line

Found Brass Cap in Concrete
Found Aluminum Cap as Shown
Found 5/8" Rebar
Found 1/2" Rebar

Set 5/8" Rebar, PLS 16670
Calculated Point (Nothing Set)

GIS Tie Line

100' Riparian Setback

Approximate Edge of Canal Access Road

Floodplain per FEMA 2010 StudyFP

Floodway per FEMA 2010 StudyFW

Mean High Water (per Field Survey 11/7/2023)

Easement, type and width as shown

Centerline of Right of Way

Approximate Centerline of the Bellevue Canal

S

SS

W

WS

SD

SS

W

WS

Sewer Main
Sewer Service

Flow Line

Gravel

Building EnvelopeBE

Easement, type and width as shown

Previous Lot Line

Existing Items

Proposed Items

Property Line

SS Sewer Manhole
Water Main

5' Contour Interval
1' Contour Interval

Water Service

D Drywell

Overhead Power Line 
Power Pole

Water Valve
Fire Hydrant

Fence Line

Canal Easement 

Centerline of Right of Way

Water Main
Water Service

Water Meter
Water Hydrant

M

Catch Basin

Sewer Service

Storm Drain

Survey Tie Line

Water Valve
Water Main Fitting 

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

N18° 11' 50"W  40.00'

N18° 11' 50"W  40.00'

50'

50'

40'

40'

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
M

AI
N

 S
T.

 (1
00

' R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

)

AL
LE

Y 
(4

9'
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
)

BLOCK 24

TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BLAINE COUNTY GIS
"9339-203"

ON 2 12" ALUMINUM PIPE

CENTERLINE WALNUT ST. (80' RIGHT OF WAY)

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

N71° 56' 35"E  79.98'

S71° 57' 05"W  79.79'

M
EA

N
 H

IG
H

 W
AT

ER
 P

ER
FI

EL
D

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
11

/0
7/

20
23

RIPARIAN SETBACK

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FW

FW

FW

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e

C
en

te
rli

ne
 o

f t
he

Be
lle

vu
e 

C
an

al

BE

BE
BE

BE
BE

BE

BE
BE

BE
BE

PREVIOUS LOT 1

PREVIOUS LOT 2

PREVIOUS LOT 4

PREVIOUS LOT 5

PREVIOUS LOT 6

20'FISHERMAN'SEASEMENT

40'

40'

40'

40'

49'
LS13260

LS13260
NO CAP

NO CAP

LOT 3A
18,017 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

LOT 2A
17,990 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

BLOCK 96

BI
G

 W
O

O
D 

RI
VE

R

LOT 1A
23,960 Sq. Ft.±

0.55 Ac.±

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

C
an

al
 A

cc
es

s 
R

oa
d

PREVIOUS LOT 3

CANAL EASEMENT,
SEE NOTE 11

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

M

M

W
W

W
W

W

74.14'

S71° 48' 58"W  120.04'

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSSS

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

8''S
8''S

8''S

W W

W

SD

D

N71° 56' 35"E  813.89'

S1
8°

 1
1'

 1
3"

E 
  3

79
.9

9'

218.93'

218.99'

239.85'

240.01' 354.89'

355.05'

N71° 56' 35"E  459.00'

N
18

° 1
3'

 1
2"

W
   

37
9.

92
'

N
18° 11' 02"W

  299.94'

N
18

° 1
3'

 1
2"

W
   

29
9.

93
'

N71° 56' 35"E  120.01'

S71° 57' 05"W  120.08'

15
0.

24
'

27.03'92.98'

20.28'99.80'

24
.1

1'

5.84'

12
5.

59
'

S1
8°

 1
1'

 5
0"

E 
  2

99
.9

6'
14

9.
98

'
14

9.
98

'

100'

S71° 53' 34"E  3464.67'

S24
° 1

5' 
22

"W
  2

05
9.5

1'

N39° 37' 58"W
  3836.26'

49'

N71° 57' 05"E  813.83'
CENTERLINE CHESTNUT ST. (80' RIGHT OF WAY)

N71° 57' 05"E  49.00'

S

LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96, BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LEGEND

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A,& 3A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

1 OF 3
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

Sanitary restrictions as required by Idaho Code Title
50, Ch. 13, have been satisfied. Sanitary restrictions may be reimposed in
accordance with Idaho Code Title 50, Ch. 13, Sec. 50-1326, by issuance of a
Certificate of Disapproval.

HEALTH CERTIFICATE:

Date South Central District Health Dept., EHS

MARK E. PHILLIPS, P.L.S. 16670

BLAINE COUNTY GIS
"OAK-5TH"

NO CAP

CHESTNUT & 2ND STREET
ON 5/8" REBAR

WALNUT & 2ND STREET
ON 1/2" REBAR

N

Feet

60300

19.5' 29.5'

20'
14'

107

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 36, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., CITY OF BELLEVUE, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTEMBER 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEREIN THE SIX LOTS ARE RECONFIGURED INTO FOUR LOTS AS SHOWN HEREON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES 



FP

FP

FP

BE

BE BE BE BE BE BE BE

BE

BE

BE
BE

BEBEBE

NO CAP

Approximate Canal Access Road

Approximate Centerline of

LOT 2A
17,990 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

NO CAP

LOT 3A
18,017 Sq. Ft.±  0.41

Ac.±

PREVIOUS LOT 6 PREVIOUS LOT 4 PREVIOUS LOT 3

BLOCK 96

PREVIOUS LOT 2 PREVIOUS LOT 1

ALLEY (49' RIGHT OF WAY)

CANAL EASEMENT,
SEE NOTE 11

SS

SS

W
S

M M

W W W W W W W

LOT 1A
23,960 Sq. Ft.±

0.55 Ac.±
N32° 16' 46"E

21.07'

S18° 13' 53"E  73.52'

S18° 06' 17"E
39.53'

L2

L3
L4

L5

N12° 37' 51"W
12.14'

L6
L7L8

N18° 36' 25"W
31.78'L9

S71° 48' 58"W
  120.04'

PREVIOUS LOT 5

N18° 11' 02"W  299.94'

N
71° 56' 35"E  120.01'

S71° 57' 05"W
  120.08'

150.24'

27.03'
92.98'

20.28'
99.80'

24.11'

5.84'

125.59'

S18° 11' 50"E   299.96'

149.98'149.98'

 the Bellevue Canal

S28° 20' 13"E23.52'

S18° 25' 52"E
76.08'

S31° 12' 42"E42.41'

S16° 34' 43"E
30.24'

S17° 59' 47"E
28.55'

S01° 40' 56"W

37.95'S26° 03' 23"E
41.22'

S11° 42' 37"E
4.62'

S31° 12' 56"E

24.41'
S14° 32' 57"E

29.87' S14° 23' 19"E
26.81' S14° 45' 06"E

29.36' S12° 35' 58"E30.93' S16° 58' 12"E
29.39'

S18° 31' 08"E
22.63'

S31° 12' 51"E

27.11'

S25° 51' 08"E
10.12'

S20° 55' 31"E
55.47'

S24° 39' 15"E
14.29'

L1

Line Table

Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

Length

8.76'

3.02'

7.03'

5.97'

11.08'

6.78'

1.06'

19.80'

14.30'

Direction

S61°24'47"E

N80°09'18"E

N81°34'35"W

N71°34'19"W

N72°24'52"W

N19°42'24"W

N05°51'27"W

N09°04'59"W

N06°01'32"W

LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96, BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

2 OF 3
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

MARK E. PHILLIPS, P.L.S. 16670

SURVEY NARRATIVE & NOTES
1. The purpose of this survey is to show the monuments found and set during the

boundary retracement of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, & 6, Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, and
reconfigure the six lots into four lots as shown hereon. The boundary shown is
based on found Centerline Monuments, found Lot Corner Monuments, the Record
of Survey for Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, Instrument Number 646867, the partial
resurvey of the Original Townsite of Bellevue, Instrument Number 207842, and
the Original Map of Bellevue Townsite, all records of Blaine County, Idaho. All
found monuments have been accepted. The missing monuments were set by
block breakdown and proportioning record distances between found monuments.

2. The distances shown are measured. Refer to the above referenced documents
for the previous record data.

3. This survey does not claim to reflect any of the following, which may be applicable
to the subject real property, including but not limited to; Building Setbacks,
Ditches, Easements, Natural Encroachments, Natural Hazards, Covenants,
Conditions, and Restrictions, Subdivision Restrictions, Wetlands, Zoning or any
other Land Use Regulation.

4. A Lot Book Guarantee for Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, & 6, Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, has
been issued by Stewart Title Guaranty Company, File Number 23475114, with a
Date of Guarantee of July 5, 2023. Certain information contained in said title
policy may not appear on this map or may affect items shown hereon. It is the
responsibility of the owner or agent to review said policy. Some of the
encumbrances and easements listed in the title report are Not plotted hereon.
Review of the specific documents listed in said policy is required, if further
information is desired.

5. Snow Storage for each Lot will need to comply with the current City of Bellevue
code and shall not be pushed off the top of the slope toward or into the canal.

6. There shall be no access allowed by Lot owners along the existing canal access
road to gain access to the Big Wood River.

7. Lot owners shall comply with City of Bellevue parking requirements and be aware
of limited space between city Right-of-Way and top of slope.

8. A 20' Fisherman's Access Easement exists along the landward side of the mean
high water line of the Big Wood River.

9. Lot 1A 100' Riparian Setback to shall be field verified prior to City approval of
building permit.

10. No building shall be constructed on Lot 1A until a time when an approved access
to the lot is developed.

11. No building shall encroach into the space between the eastern top of bank and
east high water mark unless otherwise allowed per Diversion 45 Right-of-Way
Agreement, Instrument Number___________.

Feet

40200

N

108

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUGUST 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 1 FOR LEGEND 



This is to certify that the undersigned are the owners in fee simple of the following described parcels of land:

    On this          day of                         , 2023, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared Keith A.
Myers & Judith E. Myers, husband and wife, known or identified to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to
the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same.

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate first
above written.

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 96 OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE

The easements indicated hereon are not dedicated to the public, but the right to use said easements is hereby reserved for the
public utilities and for any other uses indicated hereon and no permanent structures are to be erected within the lines of said
easements. We do hereby certify that all lots in this plat will be eligible to receive water service from an existing water
distribution system and that the existing water distribution system has agreed in writing to serve all of the lots shown within this
plat.

It is the intent of the owners to hereby include said land in this plat.

I, Mark E. Phillips, a duly Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Idaho, do hereby certify that this plat is
a true and accurate map of the land and points surveyed under my direct supervision and that it is in accordance with the
Idaho State Code relating to Plats, Surveys,  and the Corner Perpetuation and Filing Act, 55-1601 through 55-1612.

Mark E. Phillips, P.L.S. 16670

Parcels of land located within Section 36, T.2N., R.18E., B.M., City of Bellevue, Blaine County, Idaho, more particularly described as
follows:

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATECERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A, 4A, & 5A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

2 OF 2
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

I, the undersigned County Treasurer in and for Blaine County, State of Idaho per the requirements of Idaho Code 50-1308,
do hereby certify that any and all current and/or delinquent county property taxes for the property included in this
subdivision have been paid in full.  This certification is valid for the next thirty (30) days only.

_________________________ __________________
Blaine County Treasurer Date

I, Sam Young County Surveyor for Blaine County, Idaho, do hereby certify that I have checked the foregoing Plat and
computations for making the same and have determined that they comply with the laws of the State of Idaho relating to
Plats and Surveys

____________________
Sam Young, P.L.S. 11577
Blaine County Surveyor

__________________
Date

The foregoing plat was approved by the City Council of Bellevue on this _____ day of _____________, 2023.

____________________
City Clerk

The foregoing plat was approved by _____________________, City Engineer for the City of Bellevue, on this _____
day of _____________, 2023.

____________________
City Engineer

BLAINE COUNTY RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

BLAINE COUNTY TREASURER'S APPROVAL

BELLEVUE CITY COUNCIL'S APPROVAL

BELLEVUE CITY ENGINEER'S APPROVAL

BLAINE COUNTY SURVEYOR'S APPROVAL

109

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public in and for said State

AutoCAD SHX Text
Residing in

AutoCAD SHX Text
My Commission Expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ss

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEITH A. MYERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUDITH E. MYERS



Property Boundary
Adjoiner's Lot Line

Survey Tie Line

Found Brass Cap in Concrete
Found Aluminum Cap as Shown
Found 5/8" Rebar
Found 1/2" Rebar

Set 5/8" Rebar, PLS 16670
Calculated Point (Nothing Set)

GIS Tie Line

100' Riparian Setback

Approximate Edge of Canal Access Road

Floodplain per FEMA 2010 StudyFP

Floodway per FEMA 2010 StudyFW

Mean High Water (per Field Survey 11/7/2023)

Easement, type and width as shown

Centerline of Right of Way

Approximate Centerline of the Bellevue Canal

S

SS

W

WS

SD

SS

W

WS

Sewer Main
Sewer Service

Flow Line

Gravel

Building EnvelopeBE

Easement, type and width as shown

Previous Lot Line

Existing Items

Proposed Items

Property Line

SS Sewer Manhole
Water Main

5' Contour Interval
1' Contour Interval

Water Service

D Drywell

Overhead Power Line 
Power Pole

Water Valve
Fire Hydrant

Fence Line

Canal Easement 

Centerline of Right of Way

Water Main
Water Service

Water Meter
Water Hydrant

M

Catch Basin

Sewer Service

Storm Drain

Survey Tie Line

Water Valve
Water Main Fitting 

LOT 4

LOT 5

LOT 6

N18° 11' 50"W  40.00'

N18° 11' 50"W  40.00'

50'

50'

40'

40'

C
EN

TE
R

LI
N

E 
M

AI
N

 S
T.

 (1
00

' R
IG

H
T 

O
F 

W
AY

)

AL
LE

Y 
(4

9'
 R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
)

BLOCK 24

TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING

BASIS OF BEARINGS

BLAINE COUNTY GIS
"9339-203"

ON 2 12" ALUMINUM PIPE

CENTERLINE WALNUT ST. (80' RIGHT OF WAY)

LOT 3

LOT 2

LOT 1

N71° 56' 35"E  79.98'

S71° 57' 05"W  79.79'

M
EA

N
 H

IG
H

 W
AT

ER
 P

ER
FI

EL
D

 S
U

R
VE

Y 
11

/0
7/

20
23

RIPARIAN SETBACK

FP

FP
FP

FP

FP

FP

FW

FW

FW

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e

C
en

te
rli

ne
 o

f t
he

Be
lle

vu
e 

C
an

al

BE

BE
BE

BE
BE

BE

BE
BE

BE
BE

PREVIOUS LOT 1

PREVIOUS LOT 2

PREVIOUS LOT 4

PREVIOUS LOT 5

PREVIOUS LOT 6

20'FISHERMAN'SEASEMENT

40'

40'

40'

40'

49'
LS13260

LS13260
NO CAP

NO CAP

LOT 3A
18,017 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

LOT 2A
17,990 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

BLOCK 96

BI
G

 W
O

O
D 

RI
VE

R

LOT 1A
23,960 Sq. Ft.±

0.55 Ac.±

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

C
an

al
 A

cc
es

s 
R

oa
d

PREVIOUS LOT 3

CANAL EASEMENT,
SEE NOTE 11

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S

M

M

W
W

W
W

W

74.14'

S71° 48' 58"W  120.04'

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSSS

W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

8''S
8''S

8''S

W W

W

SD

D

N71° 56' 35"E  813.89'

S1
8°

 1
1'

 1
3"

E 
  3

79
.9

9'

218.93'

218.99'

239.85'

240.01' 354.89'

355.05'

N71° 56' 35"E  459.00'

N
18

° 1
3'

 1
2"

W
   

37
9.

92
'

N
18° 11' 02"W

  299.94'

N
18

° 1
3'

 1
2"

W
   

29
9.

93
'

N71° 56' 35"E  120.01'

S71° 57' 05"W  120.08'

15
0.

24
'

27.03'92.98'

20.28'99.80'

24
.1

1'

5.84'

12
5.

59
'

S1
8°

 1
1'

 5
0"

E 
  2

99
.9

6'
14

9.
98

'
14

9.
98

'

100'

S71° 53' 34"E  3464.67'

S24
° 1

5' 
22

"W
  2

05
9.5

1'

N39° 37' 58"W
  3836.26'

49'

N71° 57' 05"E  813.83'
CENTERLINE CHESTNUT ST. (80' RIGHT OF WAY)

N71° 57' 05"E  49.00'

S

LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96, BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LEGEND

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A,& 3A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

1 OF 3
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

Sanitary restrictions as required by Idaho Code Title
50, Ch. 13, have been satisfied. Sanitary restrictions may be reimposed in
accordance with Idaho Code Title 50, Ch. 13, Sec. 50-1326, by issuance of a
Certificate of Disapproval.

HEALTH CERTIFICATE:

Date South Central District Health Dept., EHS

MARK E. PHILLIPS, P.L.S. 16670

BLAINE COUNTY GIS
"OAK-5TH"

NO CAP

CHESTNUT & 2ND STREET
ON 5/8" REBAR

WALNUT & 2ND STREET
ON 1/2" REBAR

N

Feet

60300

19.5' 29.5'

20'
14'

110

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 36, T.2 N., R.18 E., B.M., CITY OF BELLEVUE, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTEMBER 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEREIN THE SIX LOTS ARE RECONFIGURED INTO FOUR LOTS AS SHOWN HEREON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES 



FP

FP

FP

BE

BE BE BE BE BE BE BE

BE

BE

BE
BE

BEBEBE

NO CAP

Approximate Canal Access Road

Approximate Centerline of

LOT 2A
17,990 Sq. Ft.±

0.41 Ac.±

NO CAP

LOT 3A
18,017 Sq. Ft.±  0.41

Ac.±

PREVIOUS LOT 6 PREVIOUS LOT 4 PREVIOUS LOT 3

BLOCK 96

PREVIOUS LOT 2 PREVIOUS LOT 1

ALLEY (49' RIGHT OF WAY)

CANAL EASEMENT,
SEE NOTE 11

SS

SS

W
S

M M

W W W W W W W

LOT 1A
23,960 Sq. Ft.±

0.55 Ac.±
N32° 16' 46"E

21.07'

S18° 13' 53"E  73.52'

S18° 06' 17"E
39.53'

L2

L3
L4

L5

N12° 37' 51"W
12.14'

L6
L7L8

N18° 36' 25"W
31.78'L9

S71° 48' 58"W
  120.04'

PREVIOUS LOT 5

N18° 11' 02"W  299.94'

N
71° 56' 35"E  120.01'

S71° 57' 05"W
  120.08'

150.24'

27.03'
92.98'

20.28'
99.80'

24.11'

5.84'

125.59'

S18° 11' 50"E   299.96'

149.98'149.98'

 the Bellevue Canal

S28° 20' 13"E23.52'

S18° 25' 52"E
76.08'

S31° 12' 42"E42.41'

S16° 34' 43"E
30.24'

S17° 59' 47"E
28.55'

S01° 40' 56"W

37.95'S26° 03' 23"E
41.22'

S11° 42' 37"E
4.62'

S31° 12' 56"E

24.41'
S14° 32' 57"E

29.87' S14° 23' 19"E
26.81' S14° 45' 06"E

29.36' S12° 35' 58"E30.93' S16° 58' 12"E
29.39'

S18° 31' 08"E
22.63'

S31° 12' 51"E

27.11'

S25° 51' 08"E
10.12'

S20° 55' 31"E
55.47'

S24° 39' 15"E
14.29'

L1

Line Table

Line #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

Length

8.76'

3.02'

7.03'

5.97'

11.08'

6.78'

1.06'

19.80'

14.30'

Direction

S61°24'47"E

N80°09'18"E

N81°34'35"W

N71°34'19"W

N72°24'52"W

N19°42'24"W

N05°51'27"W

N09°04'59"W

N06°01'32"W

LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96, BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A, & 3A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

2 OF 3
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

MARK E. PHILLIPS, P.L.S. 16670

SURVEY NARRATIVE & NOTES
1. The purpose of this survey is to show the monuments found and set during the

boundary retracement of Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, & 6, Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, and
reconfigure the six lots into four lots as shown hereon. The boundary shown is
based on found Centerline Monuments, found Lot Corner Monuments, the Record
of Survey for Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, Instrument Number 646867, the partial
resurvey of the Original Townsite of Bellevue, Instrument Number 207842, and
the Original Map of Bellevue Townsite, all records of Blaine County, Idaho. All
found monuments have been accepted. The missing monuments were set by
block breakdown and proportioning record distances between found monuments.

2. The distances shown are measured. Refer to the above referenced documents
for the previous record data.

3. This survey does not claim to reflect any of the following, which may be applicable
to the subject real property, including but not limited to; Building Setbacks,
Ditches, Easements, Natural Encroachments, Natural Hazards, Covenants,
Conditions, and Restrictions, Subdivision Restrictions, Wetlands, Zoning or any
other Land Use Regulation.

4. A Lot Book Guarantee for Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, & 6, Block 96, Bellevue Townsite, has
been issued by Stewart Title Guaranty Company, File Number 23475114, with a
Date of Guarantee of July 5, 2023. Certain information contained in said title
policy may not appear on this map or may affect items shown hereon. It is the
responsibility of the owner or agent to review said policy. Some of the
encumbrances and easements listed in the title report are Not plotted hereon.
Review of the specific documents listed in said policy is required, if further
information is desired.

5. Snow Storage for each Lot will need to comply with the current City of Bellevue
code and shall not be pushed off the top of the slope toward or into the canal.

6. There shall be no access allowed by Lot owners along the existing canal access
road to gain access to the Big Wood River.

7. Lot owners shall comply with City of Bellevue parking requirements and be aware
of limited space between city Right-of-Way and top of slope.

8. A 20' Fisherman's Access Easement exists along the landward side of the mean
high water line of the Big Wood River.

9. Lot 1A 100' Riparian Setback to shall be field verified prior to City approval of
building permit.

10. No building shall be constructed on Lot 1A until a time when an approved access
to the lot is developed.

11. No building shall encroach into the space between the eastern top of bank and
east high water mark unless otherwise allowed per Diversion 45 Right-of-Way
Agreement, Instrument Number___________.

Feet

40200

N

111

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUGUST 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET 1 FOR LEGEND 



This is to certify that the undersigned are the owners in fee simple of the following described parcels of land:

    On this          day of                         , 2023, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared Keith A.
Myers & Judith E. Myers, husband and wife, known or identified to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to
the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same.

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate first
above written.

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, AND 6, BLOCK 96 OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE

The easements indicated hereon are not dedicated to the public, but the right to use said easements is hereby reserved for the
public utilities and for any other uses indicated hereon and no permanent structures are to be erected within the lines of said
easements. We do hereby certify that all lots in this plat will be eligible to receive water service from an existing water
distribution system and that the existing water distribution system has agreed in writing to serve all of the lots shown within this
plat.

It is the intent of the owners to hereby include said land in this plat.

I, Mark E. Phillips, a duly Licensed Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Idaho, do hereby certify that this plat is
a true and accurate map of the land and points surveyed under my direct supervision and that it is in accordance with the
Idaho State Code relating to Plats, Surveys,  and the Corner Perpetuation and Filing Act, 55-1601 through 55-1612.

Mark E. Phillips, P.L.S. 16670

Parcels of land located within Section 36, T.2N., R.18E., B.M., City of Bellevue, Blaine County, Idaho, more particularly described as
follows:

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATECERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A LOT LINE SHIFT PLAT SHOWING
LOTS 1A, 2A, 4A, & 5A, BLOCK 96,
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

2 OF 2
PROJECT: 2023-01

PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC
HAILEY, IDAHO

I, the undersigned County Treasurer in and for Blaine County, State of Idaho per the requirements of Idaho Code 50-1308,
do hereby certify that any and all current and/or delinquent county property taxes for the property included in this
subdivision have been paid in full.  This certification is valid for the next thirty (30) days only.

_________________________ __________________
Blaine County Treasurer Date

I, Sam Young County Surveyor for Blaine County, Idaho, do hereby certify that I have checked the foregoing Plat and
computations for making the same and have determined that they comply with the laws of the State of Idaho relating to
Plats and Surveys

____________________
Sam Young, P.L.S. 11577
Blaine County Surveyor

__________________
Date

The foregoing plat was approved by the City Council of Bellevue on this _____ day of _____________, 2023.

____________________
City Clerk

The foregoing plat was approved by _____________________, City Engineer for the City of Bellevue, on this _____
day of _____________, 2023.

____________________
City Engineer

BLAINE COUNTY RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

BLAINE COUNTY TREASURER'S APPROVAL

BELLEVUE CITY COUNCIL'S APPROVAL

BELLEVUE CITY ENGINEER'S APPROVAL

BLAINE COUNTY SURVEYOR'S APPROVAL

112

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
16670

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
Notary Public in and for said State

AutoCAD SHX Text
Residing in

AutoCAD SHX Text
My Commission Expires

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ss

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEITH A. MYERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUDITH E. MYERS



 

 

416 S Main Street, Suite 204 

PO Box 2530 

Hailey, ID 83333 

(208) 720-9608 

 

 

September 5, 2024 

 

City of Bellevue Common Council 

Bellevue, ID 83313 

 

Re: Bellevue Lots 1-6, Block 96 Lot Line Adjustment Revision 

 

Dear Council, 

 

The property owners of Lots 1-6, Block 96, Bellevue, Judy and Keith Myers, are submitting a 

revised application for Lot Line Adjustment. The proposed plat would result in two (2) lots 

within Block 96 west of the alley, combining platted lots 1-6. Included with this letter is a 

revised preliminary plat showing this configuration. 

 

Pursuant to Section 11-6-1, "...Any questions with regard to the interpretation and/or 

applicability of this section or other sections shall be referred to the Council by the 

Administrator for determination," the applicants respectfully request that the Council consider 

the interpretation and/or applicability of certain sections of the Subdivision code.  

 

Specifically, the applicants request the following modifications to three of the Conditions of 

Approval for the previously submitted Lot Line Adjustment. Modification of Condition #4 is 

requested pursuant to 11-13-1, Waivers, with regard to City Standard Specifications for Streets 

(Section 11-4-8.B).  

 

Condition #1 

Request modification of this condition to state: 

 

“No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (level of the 

street or alley) and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise allowed per Diversion 

45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior to final plat recordation.” 

 

The applicants request this modification to allow the potential for building(s) to be constructed 

no closer than 14 feet from the eastern high water mark. Included with this request is a letter 

from the canal company supporting this requested modification. 

 

  

113



 

 

416 S Main Street, Suite 204 

PO Box 2530 

Hailey, ID 83333 

(208) 720-9608 

 

 

Condition #3 

Request to delete this condition, which states:  "Corner lots shall show BE's in accordance with 

11.4.6.C on the final plat." 

 

Section 11-4-6.C. states:  Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five 

foot (75') radius from the center point of the intersection of the streets unless otherwise 

approved as defined in subsection 10-6-5C of this Code. (Subsection 10-6-5C does not apply, 

because it relates only to setback reductions via a design review process.) 

 

The proposed lots are not corner lots per code because neither lot is located at the intersection 

of streets, but rather at the intersection of a street and an alley. The term "corner lot" is found 

three times in Bellevue's code, shown below. All three reference intersection of streets, not 

alleys.  (Title 11 specifically defines "ALLEY." As such, an alley would not be considered a 

"STREET" per the subdivision code.)  

11-4-6: LOTS: 

...Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius 

from the center point of the intersection of the streets unless otherwise approved as 

defined in subsection 10-6-5C of this Code. D. Side lot lines shall be within twenty 

degrees (20°) to a right angle or radial line to the street line.  

11-4-7: BLOCKS: 

...Corner lots shall contain a building envelope outside of a seventy five foot (75') radius 

from the intersection of the streets.  

10-2-1: DEFINITIONS: 

...On a corner lot, only one street property line shall be considered the front lot line, and 

the shorter street frontage shall be considered the front lot line, unless determined 

otherwise by the Administrator based on the orientation and layout of the lot and 

surrounding lots in order to have a uniform front lot line for all such lots. 

Alleys are not considered streets for the purpose of defining corner lots. As a recent example of 

a building that was constructed at the intersection of a street (Poplar) and an alley is the 

Clearwater Power Equipment building. It has an approximately 67' setback from the street/alley 

intersection, as shown in the attached Exhibit A. 

 

 

 

 

114



 

 

416 S Main Street, Suite 204 

PO Box 2530 

Hailey, ID 83333 

(208) 720-9608 

 

 

The purpose of the corner lot setback is to allow for sight distance for traffic at the intersection 

of the two streets. In the case of Chestnut and Walnut adjacent to the two proposed lots, 

neither of these platted streets are likely to be developed by the City as they lead only to the 

canal. These streets may be improved by the developer(s) of the two proposed lots as 

driveways into the lots. Regardless, vehicular traffic on Chestnut and Walnut west of the alley 

will be minimal.   

 

Condition #4 

Currently reads: "The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be improved in accordance with 

11.4.8.B prior to approval of the final plat." 

 

Request waiver and modification to state:  "The alley between Chestnut and Walnut shall be 

improved in accordance with the submitted site specific Alley Improvements Exhibit, EX2, prior 

to approval of the final plat."  

 

11-13-1: WAIVERS: 

   A.   Commission Recommendation; Council Approval: Waiver of any of the 

requirements of this title may be granted by the Council on a case basis upon the 

recommendation of the commission. 

   B.   Application For Waiver: 

      1.   Application for such waiver(s) must be in writing and must show that there are 

special physical characteristics or conditions affecting the property in question where a 

literal enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result of actions 

by the subdivider, and that the waiver would not be detrimental to the public welfare, 

health, and safety, nor injurious to the property owners in the immediate area. 

      2.   Applications shall be made to the Administrator in writing at the time of 

subdivision application. Said waiver, together with such related data and maps as are 

necessary to fully illustrate the relief sought, shall be filed at the same time. Such 

application shall be processed and considered with the preliminary plat application.  

 

APPLICANT RESPONSE: 

Special physical characteristics/conditions affecting the property in question:  Existing overhead 

transmission lines and four poles encroach approximately 15 feet into the alley ROW on the 

east side. Other encroachments including trees and fences also exist within the eastern portion 

of the alley. 

 

  

115



 

 

416 S Main Street, Suite 204 

PO Box 2530 

Hailey, ID 83333 

(208) 720-9608 

 

 

A literal enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result of actions by the 

subdivider:  Strict adherence to City Standard Specifications for Streets would necessitate the 

removal of the transmission lines and all other encroachments. This would place an undue 

hardship on the subdivider/property owners. Power transmission line and fence placement was 

not the result of actions by the subdivider/property owners. 

 

Not detrimental to public welfare, health, and safety nor injurious to the property owners in 

the immediate area: Modifications to the typical street section by (a) shifting the travel lanes 

5.25 feet west of center, (b) surfacing with gravel versus asphalt, and (c) changing from a 

crowned surface to a shed surface with drainage on the west side only, will not be harmful to 

public safety. A modified street section also is more appropriate because now just two lots are 

proposed, rather than three as previously approved. Both lots could be accessed via the platted 

streets of Chestnut and Walnut. The proposed section has been submitted for approval by the 

Bellevue Fire Chief.  

 

We look forward to presenting the revised application to the Council on behalf of the property 

owners. Please contact me with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Samantha Stahlnecker, P.E. 

Opal Engineering, PLLC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

116



POLAR STREET

CLEARWATER
POWER EQUIPMENT
(BELLEVUE LOTS N 30' OF

5 ALL OF 6 BLOCK W )

M
AI

N
 S

TR
EE

T

BI
G

W
O

O
D

 R
IV

ER

AL
LE

Y

±49'

EXHIBIT ONLY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

AL
LE

Y 
C

O
R

N
ER

 L
O

T 
EX

H
IB

IT

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
 K

EI
TH

 &
 J

U
D

IT
H

 M
YE

R
S

PROJECT NUMBER

op
al

O
P

A
L 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
, P

LL
C

P
O

 B
O

X
 2

53
0;

 H
A

IL
E

Y
, I

D
 8

33
33

W
W

W
.O

P
A

L-
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

.C
O

M

LO
TS

 1
A,

 2
A,

 &
 3

A,
 B

LO
C

K 
96

, B
EL

LE
VU

E 
TO

W
N

SI
TE

EX1
24019

NOTES:
1. PROPERTY BOUNDARIES SHOWN

HEREON ARE APPROXIMATE PER BLAINE
COUNTY GIS.

2. AERIAL IMAGERY SHOWN HEREON PER
NEAR MAP 2023. AERIAL IMAGERY MAY
NOT SHOW CURRENT CONDITIONS.

3. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE
APPROXIMATE  BASE ON AERIAL
IMAGERY AND FIELD MEASUREMENTS.

NOTES:

LEGEND:
ADJOINING PROPERTY BOUNDARY
PER BLAINE COUNTY GIS

APPROXIMATE CENTERLINE OF
 RIGHT OF WAY
APPROXIMATE DISTANCES FROM
BUILDING CORNER
APPROXIMATE OVERHANG DISTANCES
TO BUILDING CORNER

3'

±8
0'

±49'

NORTH WEST CORNER OF CLEARWATER
POWER EQUIPMENT BUILDING

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF INTERSECTION
MEASUREMENT POINT

±67'

Feet
0 20 40

117



Approximate Centerline of
the Bellevue Canal

S S S S S S S S S S S S

S

SS

W

W

PREVIOUS LOT 6

NO CAP

LOT 3A LOT 2A

NO CAP

LOT 6 LOT 5 LOT 4 LOT 3 LOT 2 LOT 1

PREVIOUS LOT 5 PREVIOUS LOT 4 PREVIOUS LOT 3 PREVIOUS LOT 2 PREVIOUS LOT 1

ALLEY (49' RIGHT OF WAY)

5155

5170

5160

5165

5155

5170

5165

Approximate Centerline of

SS SS

S S S S S S S S S S

M M

W W W W W

 the Bellevue Canal

S S

SD

D

C
H

E
S

TN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

BLOCK 96

EXHIBIT ONLY

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

AL
LE

Y 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

 E
XH

IB
IT

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
 K

EI
TH

 &
 J

U
D

IT
H

 M
YE

R
S

PROJECT NUMBER

op
al

O
P

A
L 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
, P

LL
C

P
O

 B
O

X
 2

53
0;

 H
A

IL
E

Y
, I

D
 8

33
33

W
W

W
.O

P
A

L-
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

.C
O

M

LO
TS

 1
A,

 2
A,

 &
 3

A,
 B

LO
C

K 
96

, B
EL

LE
VU

E 
TO

W
N

SI
TE

EX2
24019

2.5% 2.5%

10' 10'4'5.5' VARIES
7.75' TO 8'

VARIES
11.50' TO 11.75'

LC19.5' 29.5'

4" OF TYPE I CRUSHED AGGREGATE (3/4" MINUS)
6" OF TYPE II CRUSHED AGGREGATE (2" MINUS)
COMPACTED SUBGRADE TO 95% OF STANDARD PROCTOR

16:1
4:1 (MAX.)

49' ROW (CITY OF BELLEVUE)

(TYP.) COLLECT STORMWATER /
SNOWMELT AT LOW  POINTS IN ROAD

GRADE AND INTERSECTIONS.

R
O

W

APPROXIMATE
TRANSMISSION LINE

R
O

W

49
'

 PLAN VIEW: ALLEY 

N.T.S.
ALLEY SECTION1

SCALE: 1" = 30'

1
EX2

1
EX2

20
'

NOTES:
1. PROPERTY BOUNDARIES SHOWN HEREON

ARE PER A SURVEY CONDUCTED BY
PHILLIPS LAND SURVEYING, PLLC RECEIVED
ON APRIL 29, 2024 .

NOTES:

LEGEND:

S

Property Boundary
Adjoiner's Lot Line
Approximate Centerline of
the Bellevue Canal
Canal Easement
5' Contour Interval
1' Contour Interval

Overhead Power Line
Power Pole

EXISTING ITEMS

PROPOSED ITEMS

Previous Lot Line
Property Line

Centerline of Right of Way

Flow Line
Gravel

Feet
0 30 60

Set 5/8" Rebar

Found 1/2" Rebar

Sewer Main

R
28'

R
28'

M

25
'

12
'

SD

SS

W

WS

D

Water Main
Water Service

Sewer Service
Storm Drain

Drywell
Catch Basin

Water Meter
Water Hydrant

Water Main Fitting
Water Valve

118



119



120



121



122



123



TO
P

51
72

.4

TO
P

51
73

.1

TO
P

51
72

.6

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
72

.0

TO
P

51
71

.8

TO
P

51
71

.8

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
71

.6

TO
P

51
71

.6

TO
P

51
72

.0

TO
P

51
72

.2

TO
P

51
71

.9

TO
P

51
72

.3

TO
P

51
72

.7TO
P

51
73

.1

TO
P

51
73

.3

TO
P

51
73

.3

TO
E

51
56

.5
TO

P
51

55
.9

TO
E/

EO
W

51
51

.4 TO
P

51
55

.2TO
E

51
56

.0 TO
E

51
61

.9
TO

P
51

60
.1

TO
P

51
63

.6TO
E

51
64

.6

TO
E

51
59

.7
TO

P
51

58
.2

TO
P

51
57

.2
TO

E
51

57
.5

TO
E

51
56

.9
TO

P
51

56
.4

TO
P

51
56

.3TO
E

51
56

.4

TO
E

51
58

.9
TO

P
51

58
.4

TO
P

51
57

.2
TO

E
51

57
.5

TO
E

51
59

.6
TO

P
51

58
.7

TO
P

51
56

.5 TO
E

51
56

.5 TO
E

51
58

.0
TO

P
51

57
.5

TO
P

51
57

.4TO
E

51
58

.2

C
O

R
 B

LD
G

51
74

.2

C
O

R
 B

LD
G

51
74

.2

SS

5170

5160

51655170

5165

SS

SS

S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

W
S

M M

W W W W W W W

S S S

W

S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

S
S

SS

W
W

W

W
ALLEY (49' RIGHT OF WAY)

C
H

E
S

TN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

BLOCK 96

PROPOSED LOT 3A, BLOCK 96
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

LOT 6, BLOCK 24
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

LOT 5, BLOCK 24
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE LOT 4, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 3, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 2, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 1, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

PROPOSED LOT 2A, BLOCK 96
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

PREVIOUS LOT 6 PREVIOUS LOT 5 PREVIOUS LOT 4 PREVIOUS LOT 3 PREVIOUS LOT 2 PREVIOUS LOT1

SD

D

TO
P

51
72

.4

TO
P

51
73

.1

TO
P

51
72

.6

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
72

.0

TO
P

51
71

.8

TO
P

51
71

.8

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
72

.1

TO
P

51
71

.6

TO
P

51
71

.6

TO
P

51
72

.0

TO
P

51
72

.2

TO
P

51
71

.9

TO
P

51
72

.3

TO
P

51
72

.7TO
P

51
73

.1

TO
P

51
73

.3

TO
P

51
73

.3

TO
E

51
56

.5
TO

P
51

55
.9

TO
E/

EO
W

51
51

.4 TO
P

51
55

.2TO
E

51
56

.0 TO
E

51
61

.9
TO

P
51

60
.1

TO
P

51
63

.6TO
E

51
64

.6

TO
E

51
59

.7
TO

P
51

58
.2

TO
P

51
57

.2
TO

E
51

57
.5

TO
E

51
56

.9
TO

P
51

56
.4

TO
P

51
56

.3TO
E

51
56

.4

TO
E

51
58

.9
TO

P
51

58
.4

TO
P

51
57

.2
TO

E
51

57
.5

TO
E

51
59

.6
TO

P
51

58
.7

TO
P

51
56

.5 TO
E

51
56

.5 TO
E

51
58

.0
TO

P
51

57
.5

TO
P

51
57

.4TO
E

51
58

.2

C
O

R
 B

LD
G

51
74

.2

C
O

R
 B

LD
G

51
74

.2

SS

5170

5160

51655170

5165

SS

SS

S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

W
S

M M

W W W W W W W

S S S

W

S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S

S
S

SS

W
W

W

W

SD

D

ALLEY (49' RIGHT OF WAY)

C
H

E
S

TN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

W
A

LN
U

T 
S

TR
E

E
T

BLOCK 96

PROPOSED LOT 3A, BLOCK 96
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

LOT 6, BLOCK 24
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

LOT 5, BLOCK 24
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE LOT 4, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 3, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 2, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE
LOT 1, BLOCK 24

BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

PROPOSED LOT 2A, BLOCK 96
BELLEVUE TOWNSITE

PREVIOUS LOT 6 PREVIOUS LOT 5 PREVIOUS LOT 4 PREVIOUS LOT 3 PREVIOUS LOT 2 PREVIOUS LOT1

C1.0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
 N

O
.

A

R
EU

SE
 O

F 
D

R
AW

IN
G

S:
 T

he
se

 d
ra

w
in

gs
, o

r a
ny

 p
or

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f, 

sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 o
n 

an
y 

Pr
oj

ec
t o

r e
xt

en
si

on
s 

of
 th

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 e

xc
ep

t b
y 

ag
re

em
en

t i
n 

w
rit

in
g 

w
ith

 O
pa

l E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 P
LL

C
.

D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

PR
EP

AR
ED

 F
O

R
 K

EI
TH

 &
 J

U
D

IT
H

 M
YE

R
S

SH
ED

 R
EM

O
VA

L
03

/1
7/

25

EXHIBIT ONLY
NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

PROJECT NUMBER

PU
R

PO
SE

: I
SS

U
E 

FO
R

 P
PL

AT
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L 
(0

2/
11

/2
02

5)

op
al

O
P

A
L 

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
, P

LL
C

P
O

 B
O

X
 2

53
0;

 H
A

IL
E

Y
, I

D
 8

33
33

W
W

W
.O

P
A

L-
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

.C
O

M

LO
TS

 1
A,

2A
, &

 3
A,

 B
LO

C
K 

96
, B

EL
LE

VU
E 

TO
W

N
SI

TE

24019

R
O

AD
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 E
XH

IB
IT

2.5% 2.5%

10' 10'4'5.5' VARIES
±8'

VARIES
11.50' TO 11.75'

LC19.5' 29.5'

4" OF TYPE I CRUSHED AGGREGATE (3/4" MINUS)
6" OF TYPE II CRUSHED AGGREGATE (2" MINUS)
COMPACTED SUBGRADE TO 95% OF STANDARD PROCTOR

8:1
4:1 (MAX.)

49' ROW (CITY OF BELLEVUE)

(TYP.) COLLECT STORMWATER /
SNOWMELT AT LOW  POINTS IN ROAD

GRADE AND INTERSECTIONS.

R
O

W

EXISTING TRANSMISSION
LINE POLE

R
O

WVARIES
±7'

N.T.S.
PROPOSED ALLEY SECTION2

2.5%

LC

3" OF PLANT MIX PAVEMENT
4" OF  3/4" MINUS AGGREGATE LEVELING COURSE
6" OF 2" MINUS BASE COURSE
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

8:14:1

(TYP.) COLLECT STORMWATER /
SNOWMELT AT LOW  POINTS IN ROAD

GRADE AND INTERSECTIONS.

R
O

W

EXISTING TRANSMISSION
LINE POLE

R
O

W

VARIES
2:1 MAX.

VARIES
2:1 MAX.

2.5%
8:1 4:1

11' 11'8'4'

25' 25'

50' ROW (CITY OF BELLEVUE)

2' 8' 4'2'

±6"

CITY OF BELLEVUE ROAD SECTION
RESIDENTIAL STREET WITHOUT CURB & GUTTER OR SIDEWALK (50' R/W)

1

NOTES:
1. PROPERTY BOUNDARIES SHOWN HEREON ARE

PER A SURVEY CONDUCTED BY PHILLIPS LAND
SURVEYING, PLLC RECEIVED ON APRIL 29, 2024.

2. AERIAL IMAGERY SHOWN HEREON PER 2024
NEARMAP DATED. AERIAL IMAGERY MAY NOT
SHOW CURRENT CONDITIONS.

LEGEND:

S

Property Boundary
Adjoiner's Lot Line
Canal Easement
5' Contour Interval
1' Contour Interval

Overhead Power Line
Power Pole

EXISTING ITEMS

PROPOSED ITEMS

Previous Lot Line
Property Line

Centerline of Right of Way

Flow Line

Gravel

Set 5/8" Rebar

Found 1/2" Rebar

Sewer Main

M

SD

SS

W

WS

D

Water Main
Water Service

Sewer Service
Storm Drain

Drywell

Catch Basin

Water Meter
Water Hydrant

Water Main Fitting
Water Valve

Feet
0 20 40

N.T.S.

Feet
0 20 40

PLAN VIEW: CITY OF BELLEVUE STANDARD ROAD SECTION
SCALE: 1" = 20'

2
C1.0

2
C1.0

20
'

1
C1.0

1
C1.0

PLAN VIEW: PROPOSED ALLEY SECTION
SCALE: 1" = 20'

19
.5

'
9.

5'

29
.5

'
19

.5
'

24
.5

'
24

.5
'

22
'

13
.5

'
13

.5
'

10
'

±8
'

VA
R

IE
S

10
'

4'
11

'
2'

8'

W

Asphalt

EXISTING SHED
SEE IMAGE "A"

EXISTING SHED
TO BE REMOVED BY CITY

SEE IMAGE "A"

13.63'

10.31'

IMAGE "A" - LOOKING SOUTH

R28' R28'

EXISTING
DUMPSTER

TO BE REMOVED
OR RELOCATED

124

AutoCAD SHX Text
L:\Opal Engineering\Project Files\24019 Bellevue Block 96\Drawings\Exhibit\24019  Exhbit Comparision.dwg  02/11/25 12:38:20 PM  02/11/25 12:38:20 PM02/11/25 12:38:20 PM



Bellevue Block 96 

Exisfing Condifions

February 27, 2025

125



Northwest Corner of Proposed Lot 1A, Facing East 

126



Northwest Corner of Proposed Lot 1A, Facing South  

Trail within proposed 20’ Fisherman’s Easement Visible 

127



Northern Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A (Walnut Street) Facing South 

128



Northern Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A (Walnut Street) Facing East 

129



Middle of Lot 1A Facing East Towards Proposed Lots 2A/3A Boundary 

130



Middle of Proposed Lot 1A Facing South 

131



Middle of Proposed Lot 1A Facing West 

132



Middle of Proposed Lot 1A Facing North 

133



Western Boundary @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A Facing North 

Southern Limits of Proposed Fisherman’s Easement Visible 

134



Western Boundary @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A Facing South 

135



Western Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A Facing East 

136



Southern Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A (Chestnut Street) Facing East 

137



Southern Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A (Chestnut Street) Facing West 

138



Southern Property Line @ Center of Proposed Lot 1A (Chestnut Street) Facing North 

139



Approx. Intersecfion of Chestnut Street and Alley Facing North

140



Southeast Corner of Proposed Lot 2A, Facing North 

141



Southeast Corner of Proposed Lot 2A, Facing West 

142



Eastern Edge of Alley ROW Near Proposed Lots 2A/3A Boundary Looking North 

143



Alley ROW Near Proposed Lots 2A/3A Boundary Looking East 

144



Alley ROW Near Proposed Lots 2A/3A Boundary Looking West 

145



Alley Near Northwest Corner of Lot 6, Block 24 (Shed Encroachment) 

146



Northeast Corner of Proposed Lot 3A Looking West 

147



Northern Property Line @ Top of Bank of Proposed Lot 3A (Walnut Street) Facing South 

148



Approx. Intersecfion of Alley and Walnut Street Facing East

149



150



151

Brian Parker
Text Box
1


Brian Parker
Text Box



152

Brian Parker
Text Box
2




153

Brian Parker
Text Box
3




154

Brian Parker
Text Box
4




155

Brian Parker
Text Box
5




156

Brian Parker
Text Box
6




157

Brian Parker
Text Box
7




158

Brian Parker
Text Box
8


Brian Parker
Text Box



159

Brian Parker
Text Box
9




160

Brian Parker
Text Box
10


Brian Parker
Text Box



161

Brian Parker
Text Box
11




1

Samantha Stahlnecker

From: Beesley, Daron <DBeesley@idahopower.com>
Sent: Friday, February 21, 2025 4:05 PM
To: Samantha Stahlnecker
Cc: Bennett, Cheryl
Subject: RE: transmission question
Attachments: 46809_OverheadLineSafety_Act_ID_2009.pdf

 
Sam, 
Hope this answered your questions. Let me know if you have any additional. 
I have included the Idaho Overhead Line safety Act foe reference. 
 
Thanks 
 
Daron Beesley 
Senior Engineer 
Idaho Power | Transmission Design 
Office 208-388-6178 | Mobile 208-866-6078 
idahopower.com 
 
 
 

From: Samantha Stahlnecker <sam@opal-engineering.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 8:31 AM 
To: Bennett, Cheryl <CBennett2@idahopower.com> 
Cc: Beesley, Daron <DBeesley@idahopower.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: transmission question 
 
Hi Cheryl- Tha nks for the introduction. Ni ce to meet you, Daron. I’ll look forward to your feedback on the bel ow que stions regar ding the transmissi on line s in Bellevue. Can you tell me if it is possi ble to shi ft those posts 5’ ea st? 
 

Hi Cheryl- Thanks for the introduction.  
 
Nice to meet you, Daron. I’ll look forward to your feedback on the below questions regarding the transmission lines in 
Bellevue.  
 

1. Can you tell me if it is possible to shiŌ those posts 5’ east? Would that require running new wire? If it is possible, 
how much would something like that cost?  
If the quesƟon is can the exisƟng poles be moved back 5’, then the answer would be no. If the quesƟon is can 
the line be relocated back 5’ then the answer would be Yes.  
It would probably require stringing new wire. 
It is difficult to give an esƟmate without having the exact distance and locaƟon but it would probably be around 
$100k - $200k.  

2. What are the setback requirements from the transmission lines? Right now the poles are about 12’ from the 
edge of right-of-way (not sure how close the lines are to the property). The property on both sides of the alley is 
zoned Business which allows for 0’ setbacks. TheoreƟcally, people could build up to the property line along the 
alley. If shiŌing the transmission lines east prohibits someone from building up to that setback, I want the city to 
understand that very clearly. 
The clearances from energized conductors to buildings and other objects is defined in the NaƟonal Electric 
safety code(NESC). On the parƟcular structures in quesƟon there is a 138-kV transmission line and a 12.47-kV 
distribuƟon line.  

162



2

The minimum horizontal clearance from a building to and energized 138-kV line is 10.0’.  The insulators for 138-
kV are 5’ in length which would mean a distance of 15’ from the poles or the centerline. If the line is currently 
12’ form the property lines the closest building would have to be 3’ from the property line to meet minimum 
clearances. Moving the line 5’ east would mean that a new building would need to be a minimum of 8’ from the 
property line.  
For a 12.47-kv distribuƟon line the minimum distance is 7.5’ with an arm length of 5’ for a total distance of 
12.5’.  Since the distribuƟon is lower on the pole this would potenƟally be controlling clearance if the line was 
moved 5’ east. 
Another consideraƟon is the Idaho Overhead Line safety Act which prohibits worker from being less than 10’ 
from and energized distribuƟon line and 13’ from an energized 138-kV transmission line. 

 
Thank you, 
 
   Samantha Stahlnecker, P.E. 
 

             208-720-9608 

 
      www.opal-engineering.com 
 

From: Bennett, Cheryl <CBennett2@idahopower.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 8:23 AM 
To: Samantha Stahlnecker <sam@opal-engineering.com> 
Cc: Beesley, Daron <DBeesley@idahopower.com> 
Subject: FW: transmission question 
 

Hi Sam, 
 
Introducing you to Daron out of our transmission department – he would handle any of the questions you provided – 
I’ll let you two work through the transmission stuff – you know I’m always available for the distribution plans. 
 
Thanks! 
 
CB 
 
 
From: Samantha Stahlnecker <sam@opal-engineering.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, February 19, 2025 5:37 PM 
To: Bennett, Cheryl <CBennett2@idahopower.com> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: transmission question 
 
Hey Cheryl, I met with the city last night on this pr oject in Bellevue. T hey were curi ous about the possi bility of relocating the overhea d trans mission lines east a bout 5’ to provide more clearance between a roa d ce ntered in the ROW. Ca n 
 

Hey Cheryl, 
 
I met with the city last night on this project in Bellevue. They were curious about the possibility of relocaƟng the 
overhead transmission lines east about 5’ to provide more clearance between a road centered in the ROW.  
 

1. Can you tell me if it is possible to shiŌ those posts 5’ east? Would that require running new wire? If it is possible, 
how much would something like that cost?  

163



3

2. What are the setback requirements from the transmission lines? Right now the poles are about 12’ from the 
edge of right-of-way (not sure how close the lines are to the property). The property on both sides of the alley is 
zoned Business which allows for 0’ setbacks. TheoreƟcally, people could build up to the property line along the 
alley. If shiŌing the transmission lines east prohibits someone from building up to that setback, I want the city to 
understand that very clearly. 

 
Thank you in advance for looking at this relocaƟon alternaƟve! 
 
   Samantha Stahlnecker, P.E. 
 

             208-720-9608 

 
      www.opal-engineering.com 
 

From: Bennett, Cheryl <CBennett2@idahopower.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2025 8:23 AM 
To: Samantha Stahlnecker <sam@opal-engineering.com> 
Subject: FW: transmission question 
 
Hi Sam, 
 
I’m sending a porƟon of what our transmission department had to say – I just sent the topic related to you as I had to 
chat with him about some other business.  Let me know if this answers your quesƟons.  As you can see that 
undergrounding a transmission line is quite expensive - $15M a mile – even with a much shorter span – you would sƟll 
have the up and down costs that are significant and likely would encompass more than just the alley as we would have 
to guy the structures somewhere and would have to look at driveways etc for placement.  Just the per foot  x the alley 
length would put the cost at $1.4M and I would suspect you could add another $500k – $1M for the up and down.. Just 
guessing on that.  If you need to go further with it, I would connect you with Daron to start the process to get an actual 
esƟmate. 
 
This is from our Transmission Department: 
 
So we don’t have any specific distance for vehicles traveling next to our poles. We just have guidance from the NESC 
Code, secƟon231 B1 which is “sufficient distance”. 
As long as vehicles can pass by without hiƫng the poles then it should be ok, but of course, we want them as far back as 
possible. 
 

 
 

164



4

As for undergrounding the transmission, if the customer is willing to pay, we could take a look at it. The last esƟmate 
was about $15 million/mile for materials and construcƟon. This does not include engineering, procurement, permiƫng, 
etc..  
I know that this is much less than 1 mile but so it would be less but it’ not a linier cost because  the transiƟon structures 
and terminaƟons are there no maƩer the length 
If they were interested we would have to get an esƟmate.  
 
Have a Great Day 
 
 
Daron Beesley 
Senior Engineer 
Idaho Power | Transmission Design 
Office 208-388-6178 | Mobile 208-866-6078 
idahopower.com 

IDAHO POWER LEGAL DISCLAIMER 
 
This transmission may contain information that is privileged, confidential and/or exempt from disclosure 
under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, 
copying, distribution, or use of the information contained herein (including any reliance thereon) is 
STRICTLY PROHIBITED. If you received this transmission in error, please immediately contact the sender 
and destroy the material in its entirety, whether in electronic or hard copy format. Thank you. 

165



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

CITY OF BELLEVUE 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 

REGARDING AN APPLICATION OF: 

Judy & Keith Meyers for a lot line adjustment 

for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue 

Townsite Original Plat. The proposed lot line 

adjustment will reconfigure the existing six 

(6) parcels into three (3) parcels and include a 

request for waivers from code requirements. 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS 

OF LAW, AND DECISION 

 

 

DESCRIPTION: An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue 

Townsite Original Plat. The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) 

parcels into three (3) parcels and include a request for waivers from code requirements. 

The Bellevue Planning and Zoning Commission held a properly noticed public hearing on 

February 18, 2025, and voted to continue the subject application to March 3, 2025, at which time 

the Commission voted to recommend approval of the subject application as conditioned herein. 

I. GENERAL BACKGROUND 

 

1. Notice of this hearing was: 

i. Published in the Idaho Mountain Express on January 29, 2025 

ii. Posted on the door of Bellevue City Hall and the Bellevue Post Office & on the 

City website on January 27, 2025. 

iii. Mailed to all adjoiners within 300’ of the exterior property lines on January 27, 

2025. 

2. The Commission was asked to disclose any conflicts of interest or ex parte communications 

on the subject application. Commissioner Grootveld noted that he lived in the vicinity of 

166



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

the subject property. The Commission and City Attorney did not determine that this was a 

conflict of interest. 

3. Attached to this report are the following exhibits: 

 Exhibit A—Application Materials   

 Document Name Receipt of Last Revision 

Application January 22, 2025 

Preliminary Plat January 22, 2025 

Application Narrative January 22, 2025 

Letter from Triangle Irrigation and Wood 

River Irrigation District #45 

January 22, 2025 

Road Section Comparison Exhibit February 11, 2025 

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and 

Decision from 2023 LLA application 

October 23, 2023 

  

Exhibit B—Department Head Comments 

Prior to opening the public hearing, Staff had received comment from the following 

agencies and departments: 

• Bellevue Fire Department 

• Bellevue Marshall’s Office 

• Bellevue Water and Sewer Department 

• Bellevue City Engineer 

• Triangle Irrigation District 

All agency comments received were transmitted to the Commission. 

167



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

 

 Exhibit C— Public Comments  

 Prior to opening the public hearing, Staff had received public comment from the following 

individuals or entities: 

• Wood River Land Trust 

Additional public comment from the Wood River Land Trust was received prior to the 

March 3, 2025 meeting. All public comments received were transmitted to the 

Commission. 

II. LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT STANDARDS OF EVALUATION 

BELLEVUE CITY CODE SECTION 11-6-1 

11-6-1: PROCEDURE: 

An owner or subdivider wishing to readjust lot lines, as defined in section 11-2-1 of this title, 

shall be required to file two (2) copies of a plat and application with the Administrator for 

administrative review. Additional information reasonably required for thorough review of the 

application and plat may be required by the Administrator to be provided by the applicant. 

Waivers shall be requested according to chapter 13 of this title. The Council shall remand any 

application and/or waiver request to the commission for recommendation prior to taking final 

action. The Administrator shall provide written notice of said application to owners of property 

immediately adjacent to the subject property. Said notice shall inform adjacent property owners 

they may comment on the application during a period of not less than ten (10) days after mailing 

of the notice and prior to final action on said application. Following expiration of the said 

comment period and upon a finding by the Administrator that the plat conforms to the 

readjustment of lot line definition and is in compliance with the provisions of this title, the 

Administrator shall approve same or approve with conditions necessary to find same in 

168



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

compliance with the provisions of this title. Upon a finding by the Administrator that the 

application does not conform to said definition or is not in compliance with this title, the 

Administrator shall deny the application and shall state the reasons therefor in writing, and a 

copy signed by the Administrator, attached to one copy of the plat, shall be returned to the 

applicant. Upon Council approval of an application and upon satisfaction by the applicant of any 

conditions attached thereto, the Administrator shall inform the City Clerk and the City Clerk 

shall sign the plat. Any questions with regard to the interpretation and/or applicability of this 

section or other sections shall be referred to the Council by the Administrator for determination. 

FACTS: The applicant has submitted a preliminary plat to the Administrator, along 

with additional clarifying information and documentation. 

 The applicant’s narrative has specifically requested waivers of Bellevue 

City Code. 

 The Administrator properly noticed the public hearing. 

 The plat submitted shows a reconfiguration of six (6) existing parcels into 

three (3). 

 The subject property is zoned B – Business. 

 The proposed lots are 17,990, 18,017, and 23,960 square feet in size. 

 The minimum lot size in the B – Business zone is 6,000 square feet. 

 The proposed parcels identified on the preliminary plat as Lots 2A and 3A 

each have 149.98 feet of street frontage. 

 The minimum street frontage in the B – Business zone is fifty (50) feet. 

 The proposed parcel identified as Lot 1A does not have any developed 

169



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

street frontage, but does abut public rights-of-way. 

 The submitted preliminary plat includes a plat note stating “No building 

shall be constructed on Lot 1A until a time when an approved access to the 

lot is developed.” 

 The Bellevue Canal runs through the subject property and the undeveloped 

portions of the Walnut and Chestnut Street rights-of-way to the north and 

south of the subject property, respectively. 

 The subject property abuts the Howard Preserve and Big Wood River. 

 Public testimony received during the public hearings indicated a desire for 

public access through or public ownership of the parcel identified on the 

preliminary plat as Lot 1A. 

 The applicant’s authorized representative stated during the March 3, 2025 

meeting that the applicant was willing to offer the City of Bellevue and the 

Wood River Land Trust the first right of refusal to purchase the property 

identified on the preliminary plat as Lot 1A. 

FINDINGS: The applicant has submitted a complete application, including additional 

information and written requests for waivers of Bellevue City Code. 

 The public hearings on the subject application were properly noticed and 

conducted. 

 The proposed lot configuration meets the applicable zoning and 

subdivision standards for parcels within the B – Business zone, except for 

the required street frontage of the proposed Lot 1A. 

170



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

 Due to the sensitive environment surrounding the proposed Lot 1A, it is 

preferable to not construct additional roadway to the property until a time 

that development should occur, which is consistent with Plat Note #10 on 

the submitted preliminary plat. 

 Due to the topography, presence of the Bellevue Canal and Big Wood 

River, and existing conservation easements on the property surrounding 

the subject property, extension of Walnut and Chestnut Streets is 

infeasible, and would not serve properties other than the subject property. 

CONCLUSION: As conditioned herein, the subject application meets the requirements for 

granting approval of a lot line adjustment application. 

II. WAIVER STANDARDS OF EVALUATION 

BELLEVUE CITY CODE SECTION 11-13-1 

11-13-1: WAIVERS: 

A. Commission Recommendation; Council Approval: Waiver of any of the requirements of this 

title may be granted by the Council on a case basis upon the recommendation of the 

commission. 

B. Application For Waiver: 

1. Application for such waiver(s) must be in writing and must show that there are special 

physical characteristics or conditions affecting the property in question where a literal 

enforcement of this title would result in undue hardship not the result of actions by the 

subdivider, and that the waiver would not be detrimental to the public welfare, health, and 

safety, nor injurious to the property owners in the immediate area. 

FACTS: The applicant has submitted a written request for waivers of Bellevue City 

171



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

Code. 

 The applicant requested that the buildable area of the proposed Lots 2A 

and 3A in relation to the location of the Bellevue Canal be expanded 

beyond the top of the bank. 

 The applicant submitted documentation from the Triangle Irrigation and 

Wood River Irrigation District consenting to the expanded building area 

subject to construction of proper retainage. 

 Bellevue City Code has no specific setback requirements from irrigation 

canals. 

 The applicant requested a waiver from the requirements of Bellevue City 

Code Section 11-4-6(C) to identify building envelopes on corner lots 

outside of a seventy-five foot (75’) radius from the center point of the 

intersection of adjacent streets. 

 All proposed parcels identified on the submitted preliminary plat have 

rights-of-way on two (2) or more sides. 

 Only the right-of-way to the east of the subject property is currently 

developed. 

 The Bellevue Canal runs through the subject property and the undeveloped 

portions of the Walnut and Chestnut Street rights-of-way to the north and 

south of the subject property, respectively. 

 The subject property abuts the Howard Preserve and Big Wood River. 

 The proposed Lot 1A has an identified building footprint located outside 

172



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

of any seventy-five foot (75’) radii from the centers of the adjacent 

undeveloped rights-of-way. 

 The applicant has requested a waiver of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-

8(B) requiring the right-of-way to the east of the subject property be 

improved to adopted City Standards. 

 The applicable City Standard street section generally requires a twenty-

two foot (22’) wide paved traveled way, two feet (2’) of shoulder on each 

side, and drainage swales on either side. 

 The applicant has provided an alternative street section showing a twenty 

foot (20’) wide gravel traveled way, no shoulders, and a drainage swale on 

one side of the roadway. 

 Above-ground electrical power transmission and distribution lines are 

currently situated within the right-of-way. 

 A small structure is located within the right-of-way near the intersection of 

Chestnut Street and the right-of-way to the east of the subject property. 

 The portions of Walnut and Chestnut Streets west of Main Street are not 

currently paved. 

 Idaho Power does not have a specified setback requirement between 

roadways and power poles, but requires a reasonably safe roadway design 

in regard to the siting of poles. 

 Idaho Power has a setback requirement of ten feet (10’) from power lines 

to structures. 

173



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

FINDINGS: Expanding the buildable area of proposed lots 2A and 3A is not a waiver 

of Bellevue City Code, and is allowable provided adequate design and 

assurances to the Triangle Irrigation and Wood River Irrigation District 

are made to ensure safe and efficient function of the Bellevue Canal is 

maintained. 

 Because of the presence of the canal and the conservation easement on the 

Howard Preserve, the undeveloped Walnut and Chestnut Street rights-of-

way are unlikely to ever be improved and used as roadways. As such, the 

proposed lots 2A and 3A are unlikely to ever function as corner lots, and 

the requirements of Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(C) are not 

applicable. 

 Construction of the wider City Standard roadway would require relocation 

of the power poles to provide a safe separation between the roadway and 

the poles. 

 Integrating the paved roadway with unpaved sections of Walnut and 

Chestnut Streets would be cumbersome. 

CONCLUSION: The requested waivers for the expanded building area relative to the 

Bellevue Canal and the corner lot building envelopes are not waivers of 

Bellevue City Code, and therefore are not required to be in compliance 

with the standards of this section. 

 Because of the special physical site-specific conditions of the rights-of-

way in the immediate vicinity of the subject property, improving the right-

of-way to the east of the subject property would create an undue hardship, 

174



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

and therefore the applicant’s request for a waiver to construct the street to 

City Standards is recommended to be granted. 

2. Applications shall be made to the Administrator in writing at the time of subdivision 

application. Said waiver, together with such related data and maps as are necessary to 

fully illustrate the relief sought, shall be filed at the same time. Such application shall be 

processed and considered with the preliminary plat application. 

 

FACTS: The applicant has submitted a preliminary plat to the Administrator, along 

with additional clarifying information and documentation. 

 The applicant’s narrative has specifically requested waivers of Bellevue 

City Code. 

FINDINGS: The applicant has submitted a complete application, including additional 

information and written requests for waivers of Bellevue City Code. 

CONCLUSION: The application was complete and adequate, and this standard has been 

met. 

III. DECISION AND ORDER 

 

►Motion:  Upon a Motion by Commissioner Beiser and a second by Commissioner Grootveld, a 

unanimous vote, the Bellevue Planning and Zoning Commission hereby recommends approval 

of the subject application submitted by Judy & Keith Meyers, finding the application complies 

with the applicable criteria set forth in Bellevue City Code, subject to the following conditions of 

approval (Commission additions to Staff recommended conditions underlined, deletions in 

strikethrough): 

175



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

1. No building shall encroach into the space between the top of the eastern bank (elevation of 

the street or alley) of the canal and east high water mark of the canal, unless otherwise 

allowed per Diversion 45 Right of Way Agreement. This Agreement shall be recorded prior 

to final plat recordation. 

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for the proposed parcel identified on the submitted 

preliminary plat as Lot 1A, the applicant shall receive approval from the City and construct a 

suitable vehicular and pedestrian access to the property. 

3. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a revised 

preliminary plat identifying building envelopes for all corner lots in accordance with 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-6(C). 

4. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall construct all required 

improvements, including improving the roadway within right-of-way to the east of the 

subject property from Walnut Street to Chestnut Street to the specifications provided in the 

Alley Improvements Exhibit attached to these findings. City Standards in accordance with 

Bellevue City Code Section 11-4-8(B). 

5. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised 

preliminary plat identifying an easement for the Bellevue Canal District and documentation 

that the proposed easement has been reviewed and accepted by the Bellevue Canal District.  

6. Prior to the submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall submit a revised 

preliminary plat identifying the ordinary high water mark and a twenty foot (20’) wide 

fisherman’s easement along the landward side of the ordinary high water mark. 

7. No construction or grading shall occur until the Bellevue City Engineer has reviewed and 

approved the construction drawings. 

176



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

8. The City of Bellevue and/or the Wood River Land Trust shall have the first right of refusal 

on the purchase of the property identified on the preliminary plat as Lot 1A. Prior to the 

submittal of a final plat application, the applicant shall provide a draft First Right of Refusal 

Contract to be approved by the City of Bellevue and the Wood River Land Trust Board of 

Directors prior to recordation of the final plat. 

Notice of Expiration 

Pursuant to Bellevue City Code Section 11-3-4(D), failure to obtain final plat approval by the 

Council of an approved preliminary plat within one year after approval by the Council shall 

cause all approvals of said preliminary plat to be null and void. The final plat shall be filed with 

the Blaine County Recorder within one year after final plat approval by the Council. Failure to 

file said final plat within that time shall cause all approvals of said final plat to be null and void. 

No building permit shall be issued with regard to any parcel of land within a proposed 

subdivision until the final plat has been recorded. A copy of the final recorded plat shall be 

placed on file with the City. For good cause shown, the deadlines in this section may be extended 

for up to twelve (12) months. The Council shall hold a duly noticed public hearing prior to 

granting said extension. 

IT IS SO ORDERED this 17th day of March, 2025 

 

 

 

_____________________________   ___________________________________ 

John Kurtz     Brian Parker 

Chair      Community Development Director 

177



 

LLA-25-01 – Meyers Lot Line Adjustment 
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law & Decision 

March 17, 2025 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the ____ day of March 2025, I served a true and correct filed copy 

of the within and foregoing document upon the parties named below, in the manner noted:  

 

 U.S. Mail          Judy & Keith Meyers 

 via email PO Box 242  

 hand delivered Bellevue, Idaho 83313 

 judymeyersinc@aol.com 

 

      CITY OF BELLEVUE  

 

      Brian Parker  

      Community Development Director 

 

 

178



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Monday, February 18, 2025, 5:30 PM 

 115 Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313 
Minutes 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, met for a Regular Meeting, on Monday, February 18, 
2025, at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City of Bellevue Offices, located at 115 E. Pine Street, Bellevue, ID 
83313. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Kurtz called the Meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

John Kurtz, Planning and Zoning Chair - Present 
Alexis Lindberg, Commission Member - Present 
Eric Grootveld, Commission Member – Present
Aaron Heugly, Commission Member - Present 
Genoa Beiser, Commission Member – Present 

Staff Present: 
Brian Parker, Community Development Director 
Rick Allington, City Attorney 

Others Present:  
Tony Evans, Idaho Mountain Express
Jim Kuehn 
Keith Meyers 
Carrie Wesson 
Mike Howard 
Samantha Stahlnecker 
Scott Howard 
Cece Osborn, Wood River Land Trust 
Tom Blanchard 
Dorothy Schinella 

1. NOTICE OF AGENDA COMPLIANCE - ACTION ITEM
Motion:  Commissioner Grootveld motioned that the notice for the February 18, 2025, Regular 

Meeting was completed in accordance with Idaho Code, Section §74-204, Commissioner 
Beiser seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried.

2. CALL FOR CONFLICT:

Commissioner Grootveld noted that he lived in the vicinity of the site of LLA-25-01, but had no interest or 
connection with the applicant or property. City Attorney Allington did not see any conflict of interest in this 
disclosure. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:

Tony Evans of the Idaho Mountain Express asked for information regarding construction activity near the Big 
Wood River. Community Development Director Parker noted that the City was aware of the situation, but it was 
within the jurisdiction of Blaine County and that the public should direct their questions to the County. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – ACTION ITEM 

179



a. October 21, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Grootveld moved to approve the October 21, 2024 meeting minutes, 
Commissioner Lindberg seconded, all voted in favor and the motion carried.  

b. November 4, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

c. Commissioner Grootveld moved to approve the November 4, 2024 meeting minutes, 
Commissioner Beiser seconded, all voted in favor and the motion carried. 

d. November 21, 2024 Special Joint Work Session Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Grootveld moved to approve the November 21, 2024 meeting minutes with the 
correction of the meeting start time, Commissioner Lindberg seconded, all voted in favor and the 
motion carried. 

e. December 2, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Lindberg moved to approve the December 2, 2024 meeting minutes, 
Commissioner Grootveld seconded, all voted in favor and the motion carried. 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – ACTION ITEM 

a. LLA-25-01 – TBD Lewis Lane – Judy & Keith Meyers 

An application for a lot line adjustment for Lots 1-6, Block 96 of the Bellevue Townsite Original 
Plat. The proposed lot line adjustment will reconfigure the existing six (6) parcels into four (4) 
parcels and include a request for waivers from code requirements. 

Mr. Parker noted that the description provided above was incorrect and that the application 
was to configure the parcels into three (3) parcels, and that there was an error in the staff 
report regarding one of the applicant’s requested conditions of approval. 

Mr. Parker provided an overview of the Staff Report. Chair Kurtz requested more information 
on the fisherman’s easement along the Big Wood River. Commissioner Beiser requested 
more information on the determination of a “hardship” from City Attorney Allington. 
Engineer Samantha Stahlnecker provided a presentation on behalf of the applicant. The 
Commission asked Ms. Stahlnecker questions regarding the purpose of the application and 
public access through the property. 

Chair Kurtz opened the public comment portion of the hearing. The Commission received 
testimony from the following individuals: 

Cece Osborn, Wood River Land Trust 
John Wright, Bellevue Canal Company 
Dorothy Schinella, 1217 Glen Aspen Drive 
Tom Blanchard, 33 Lower Broadford Road 
Jim Keuhn, address not provided 
Carrie Wesson, 500 South Main Street 

Ms. Stahlnecker provided additional information regarding the public access easement 
requested during public comment. Chair Kurtz asked about the existing pathway on the 
property. The property owner, Kieth Meyers, provided additional information on the origin 
and existing access control of pathway through the property. 

Mr. Parker advised the Commission to base any decision on the record, and to request 
additional information at this time prior to closing the public hearing. 

Chair Kurtz requested additional information regarding relocation of the power lines. Ms. 
Stahlnecker added some details on relocation of the power lines. 

Chair Kurtz asked if the owner of the shed in the right of way had been contacted. Ms. 
Stahlnecker stated that she had not, but the owner was in attendance. 

Commissioner Beiser asked for a clarification regarding setbacks. Mr. Parker provided 
information that since the property was in the Business zone, there was not a difference in 
front or side setbacks. 

180



Commissioner Lindberg asked for options on how to get more a hands-on assessment of the 
site and its unique features. The Commission discussed. The Commission requested 
photos/videos of the site for more clarification on the availability of public access through 
the property, additional information on the shed in the public right of way, emergency 
access through the site into the Howard Preserve. 

Commissioner Grootveld motioned to continue the subject application to the March 3, 2025 
meeting, Commissioner Beiser seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried. 

6. NEXT MEETING  
a. Regular Meeting – March 3, 2025

7. ADJOURNMENT - ACTION ITEM 

Motion:  Commissioner Beiser voted to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Heugly seconded, all 
voted in favor, and the meeting was adjourned at 7:12 P.M.

_____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Kurtz, Planning & Zoning Chair   Planning Commission Secretary                    

181



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Monday, March 3, 2025, 5:30 PM 

 115 Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313 
Minutes 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, met for a Regular Meeting, on Monday, March 3, 
2025, at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City of Bellevue Offices, located at 115 E. Pine Street, Bellevue, ID 
83313. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Acting Chair Lindberg called the Meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

John Kurtz, Planning and Zoning Chair - Absent 
Alexis Lindberg, Commission Member - Present 
Eric Grootveld, Commission Member – Present (Arrived at 5:34)
Aaron Heugly, Commission Member - Present 
Genoa Beiser, Commission Member – Present 

Staff Present: 
Brian Parker, Community Development Director 
Rick Allington, City Attorney 

Others Present:  
Tony Evans, Idaho Mountain Express
Jim Kuehn 
Keith Meyers 
Carrie Wesson 
Mike Howard 
Samantha Stahlnecker 
Scott Howard 
Cece Osborn, Wood River Land Trust 
Tom Blanchard 
Dorothy Schinella 

1. NOTICE OF AGENDA COMPLIANCE - ACTION ITEM
Motion:  Commissioner Heugly motioned that the notice for the March 3, 2025, Regular Meeting 

was completed in accordance with Idaho Code, Section §74-204, Commissioner Beiser 
seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried.

2. CALL FOR CONFLICT:

None identified. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:

None provided. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA– ACTION ITEM 

a. Approval of Minutes 

i. February 3, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

ii. February 18, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

182



Commissioner Beiser motioned to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner Heugly seconded, all 
voted in favor, and the motion carried. 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – ACTION ITEM 

a. LLA-25-01 – TBD Lewis Lane – Judy & Keith Meyers – Continued from February 18, 2025 

Acting Chair Lindberg noted that the hearing had been continued from the February 18, 
2025 meeting. 

Samantha Stahlnecker of Opal Engineering provided an overview of updates since the prior 
meeting. 

1. The applicant had met with Community Development Director Parker on the subject 
property and photos taken during the site visit had been added to the meeting 
packet. 

2. Additional information from Idaho Power regarding the cost required to relocate the 
existing transmission lines has been added to the meeting packet 

3. The applicant and staff had discussed the feasibility of relocating the shed currently 
located on public right-of-way. The shed did not appear to be on a permanent 
foundation and would likely not survive relocation. 

Commissioner Beiser asked for clarification regarding the clearance requirements from 
power transmission lines and poles. Ms. Stahlnecker stated that in order for the poles to 
remain at the current location, the poles would be placed at the edge of the roadway, which 
would not likely be a safe roadway design. 

Director Parker concurred with the applicant’s descriptions and provided additional detail. 

Acting Chair Lindberg opened the public comment portion of the hearing. The Commission 
received testimony from the following individuals: 

Mike Howard 
Dorothy Schinella, 1217 Glen Aspen Drive 
Tom Blanchard, 33 Lower Broadford Road 
Stephanie Wilkes, 412 South Main Street 
Amy Trujillo, Wood River Land Trust 
Cece Osborn, Wood River Land Trust 
Carrie Wesson, 500 South Main Street 
Jim Kuehn, 214 Buttercup Road, Hailey 

Upon receipt of all public testimony, Ms. Stahlnecker provided clarification to questions 
raised by the public regarding the location of the transmission lines, emergency access onto 
the subject property, and the current status of the roadway fronting the property. 

Commissioner Heugly requested clarification on the determination of the “front” property 
boundary. Director Parker provided clarification. 

Director Parker provided the specific code sections required to grant approval of a lot line 
adjustment with waivers of code standards. The Commission read and reviewed the findings 
required. Director Parker read the Staff proposed conditions of approval. 

The Commission discussed the proposed conditions of approval. The Commission found that 
the likelihood of Chestnut or Walnut being extended beyond the subject property was 
extremely low, and therefore the need to treat the eastern parcels as “corner lots” was 
unnecessary. As such, the Commission determined that striking condition of approval #3 was 
appropriate. 

The Commission discussed the determination of what constitutes an “undue hardship” in 
order to grant a waiver in regard to condition of approval #4, the development potential of 
the subject property, and the potential impacts of granting or not granting a waiver of the 
standard to improve the roadway to City standards. The Commission determined that the 

183



lack of paving on nearby streets constituted a special physical condition, and the scale of the 
improvements required was not proportionate with the development potential of the 
property, and therefore the applicant’s requested waiver should be granted. 

The Commission discussed the feasible options for granting an easement or public access 
through the subject property to allow legal access to the Howard Preserve. Finding no 
scenarios that adequately meet the needs of the applicant and community, the Commission 
requested Mike Howard to provide additional testimony. Mr. Howard suggested that the City 
could place a condition of approval requiring the City to have the first right of refusal if the 
property identified as Parcel 1A should be sold. The Commission found that this was a 
reasonable compromise. The Commission requested adding the Wood River Land Trust to 
the condition. The applicant agreed to the proposed condition. The Commission stated that 
the proposed condition should be included in the conditions of approval. 

Upon conclusion of the Commission's discussion, Commissioner Beiser moved to 
recommend LLA-25-01 to the Bellevue Common Council for approval with the conditions of 
approval identified within the staff report as modified in the discussion prior and directed 
Staff to prepare Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents reflecting this 
recommendation based on the record provided. Commissioner Grootveld seconded the 
motion, all voted in favor, and the motion carried. 

6. NEXT MEETING  
a. Regular Meeting – March 17, 2025

7. ADJOURNMENT - ACTION ITEM 

Motion:  Commissioner Beiser voted to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Grootveld seconded, 
all voted in favor, and the meeting was adjourned at 7:29 P.M.

_____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Kurtz, Planning & Zoning Chair   Planning Commission Secretary                    

184



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO

Planning and Zoning Commission 
Monday, March 17, 2025, 5:30 PM 

 115 Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313 
Minutes 

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, met for a Regular Meeting, on Monday, March 17, 
2025, at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City of Bellevue Offices, located at 115 E. Pine Street, Bellevue, ID 
83313. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Kurtz called the Meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 

ROLL CALL 

John Kurtz, Planning and Zoning Chair - Present 
Alexis Lindberg, Commission Member - Absent 
Eric Grootveld, Commission Member – Present 
Aaron Heugly, Commission Member - Present 
Genoa Beiser, Commission Member – Present 

Staff Present: 
Brian Parker, Community Development Director 
Rick Allington, City Attorney 
Diane Shay 

Others Present:  
Tony Evans, Idaho Mountain Express
Clint Carver, representing Maverik (online) 

1. NOTICE OF AGENDA COMPLIANCE - ACTION ITEM
Motion:  Commissioner Grootveld motioned that the notice for the March 17, 2025, Regular 

Meeting was completed in accordance with Idaho Code, Section §74-204, Commissioner 
Beiser seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried.

2. CALL FOR CONFLICT:

None identified. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT:

None provided. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA– ACTION ITEM 

a. Approval of Minutes 

i. March 3, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decision documents from previous meeting(s)

i. LLA-25-01 – TBD Lewis Lane – Judy & Keith Meyers 

Chair Kurtz noted that he had appeared in the minutes despite being absent, and Mr. Parker noted that it 
was a typographical error to be corrected. Commissioner Grootveld motioned to approve the consent 
agenda. Commissioner Beiser seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried 

5. NEW BUSINESS – ACTION ITEM 

a. DR-25-01 – Change of Exterior Finish for Betty’s Authentic Peruvian Restaurant - 120 South Main 
Street 

185



Mr. Parker presented the application and noted that the proposal is to modify the exterior paint 
colors of the building, which requires approval by the Commission. The Commission stated that the 
application was straightforward and consistent with the applicable standards. Commissioner Beiser 
motioned to approve DR-25-01 and directed staff to prepare Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, 
and Decision Documents reflecting the decision based on the record provided. Commissioner 
Grootveld seconded, all voted in favor, and the motion carried. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – ACTION ITEM 

a. Appeal of SG-24-14 – Sign Permit for Maverik Inc. – 851 North Main Street 

Mr. Parker provided an overview of the sign permit application, applicable standards, the appeal and 
the reasoning of the staff determination that the application was not consistent with the applicable 
code requirements. Chair Kurtz requested clarification on the total sign area and noted that other 
proposed signage could be reduced. Commissioner Heugly asked about the proposed signage 
located on the side of the building. Mr. Parker stated that the sign is probably not in conformance 
with code requirements and should be removed. 

Mr. Carver presented on behalf of the appellant. He stated that other similar businesses in Bellevue 
have signage similar to what was proposed and that Maverik wanted to be provided with the 
opportunity to have the same. 

Chair Kurtz opened the public hearing. The following individuals provided comment: 

 Chris Alexander, 501 North 4th Street, Bellevue 

Upon receipt of public testimony, Chair Kurtz closed the public hearing. Chair Kurtz asked for history 
on the sign ordinance and when it came into effect. Commissioner Beiser discussed the appeal and 
stated that appropriate management of signage was important to maintain the community character 
of Bellevue. Commissioner Grootveld discussed the existing code language and noted that there may 
be room for improved clarity in the written language. 

Commissioner Beiser moved to deny the appeal of SG-24-14. Commissioner Grootveld seconded, all 
voted in favor, and the motion carried. 

7. NEXT MEETING  
a. Regular Meeting – April 7, 2025

8. ADJOURNMENT - ACTION ITEM 
Motion:  Commissioner Heugly voted to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Beiser seconded, all voted in 

favor, and the meeting was adjourned at 6:03 P.M. 

_____________________________________  _____________________________________  
John Kurtz, Planning & Zoning Chair   Planning Commission Secretary                    

186



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Bellevue Common Council 
 
FROM:  Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer   
 
RE:  Intermountain Gas Franchise Ordinance  
 
DATE:  May 27, 2025   
__________________________________________________________________________________
__  
Background 
 
On April 27, 1995, the City of Bellevue passed Ordinance 95-04 to grant Intermountain Gas Company  
(IGC) a 30-year extension to its franchise  to construct, maintain and operate a gas transmission and 
distribution system.  Ordinance 95-04, including the franchise agreement, expires May 31, 2025.  IGC 
wishes to continue to have a franchise agreement with the City.   
 
Idaho Code 50-329 requires the City grant a franchise by ordinance.  The ordinance was introduced t
o the Bellevue Common Council on April 14, 2025 and published in the newspaper on April 23, 2025.    
Next Steps 
 

1) Approve Ordinance 25-05.     

a. I move to waive the three readings and read by title only. 

b. I move to approve Ordinance 25-05.   

c. I move to authorize the publication of the Summary of Ordnance 25-05.   

 

Enclosures 

 Ordinance 25-05 

 Ordinance Summary 

  

Item 6

187



ORDINANCE 2025-05 - Page 1 

CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-05 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, GRANTING TO INTERMOUNTAIN 

GAS COMPANY A  (10) YEAR EXTENSION TO ITS FRANCHISE TO CONSTRUCT, MAINTAIN 

AND OPERATE A GAS TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR THE 

USE OF STREETS AND ALLEYS, AND RULES GOVERNING THE SAME, SUBJECTING THE 

GRANTEE TO ALL POWERS OF THE CITY; SETTING FORTH THE RULES OF THE FRANCHISE 

AND GRANT; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHT OF INSPECTION BY THE CITY OF GRANTEE’S 

PLANS, ACCOUNTS, AND BOOKS; REQUIRING GRANTEE TO FURNISH CERTAIN MAPS; 

SETTING FORTH THE QUARTERLY PAYMENT TO THE CITY, AND THE FILING OF 

QUARTERLY REPORTS WITH THE CITY; REQUIRING GRANTEE TO INDEMNIFY CITY, AND 

FILE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH SAFETY REGULATIONS; 

SETTING FORTH AN AGREEMENT NOT TO COMPETE, RESERVING POWER OF EMINENT 

DOMAIN; PROVIDING FOR SURRENDER OF FRANCHISE; GRANTING RIGHT TO SALVAGE; 

REQUIRING WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE; PROVIDING FOR CONSENT TO SALE OR 

ASSIGNMENT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF PUBLICATION COST; SETTING FORTH 

PENALTIES AND FORFEITURES, SEPARABILITY AND REPEAL. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO 

 

Section 1: Grant of Authority 

 

There is hereby granted to Intermountain Gas Company, a corporation, its successors and assigns 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Grantee”) a Ten (10) year extension to the right and authority to 

construct, install, maintain and operate a gas transmission and distribution system, including mains, pipes, 

conduits, services and other necessary structures and appliances appertaining in, under, upon, over, across 

and along the streets, alleys, bridges and public places within the present and future corporate limits of the 

City of Bellevue, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as “City”) for the furnishing, transmission, distribution 

and sale of gas, whether artificial, natural, mixed or otherwise, for heating, domestic, industrial and other 

purposes and for transmitting gas into, through and beyond said City.  The City represents that it has the 

sole power and authority to make this grant of authority and agrees to notify Grantee in writing if the City 

should cease to have this power. 

 

Section 2: Use of Streets and Rules Governing Same 

 

Grantee shall secure a permit for any opening it shall make in the streets, alleys and public places in the 

City and shall be subject to all applicable ordinances, but no fee shall be required of Grantee for any such 

permit. Grantee may, however, open or disturb the streets, alleys, and public places without a permit if an 

emergency exists requiring the immediate repair of facilities. The location or relocation of all facilities 

shall be made under the supervision and with the approval of such representatives as the governing body 

of the City may designate for such purpose, but not so as unreasonably to interfere with the proper 

operating of Grantee's facilities and service. Whenever the City shall pave or repave any street or shall 

change the grade or line of any street or public place or shall construct or reconstruct any conduit, water 

main, sewer or water connection or other city public works or city utility, it shall be the duty of the 

Grantee when so ordered by the City to change its mains, services and other property in the streets or 

public places at its own expense so as to conform to the established grade or line of such street or public 

place and so as not to interfere with the conduits, sewers and other mains of the City as constructed or 

188



ORDINANCE 2025-05 - Page 2 

reconstructed; however, the Grantee shall not be required to relocate pipes, mains and appurtenances 

when the street, alley or public ground in which they are located is vacated for the convenience of 

abutting property owners and not as an incident to the public improvement, unless the reasonable cost of 

such relocation and the loss and expenses resulting therefrom is first paid to Grantee. The City will avoid 

the need for such moving or changing whenever possible. In the event Federal, State or other funds are 

available in whole or in part for utility relocating purposes, the City shall apply for such funds and the 

Grantee will be reimbursed to the extent any such funds are actually obtained.  

 

Section 3: Grantee Subject to All Powers of City Rules Governing Repair and Reconstruction of Streets 

 

The exercise of privileges herein granted shall be subject at all times to all of the powers of the City and 

all regulatory ordinances adopted pursuant thereto governing repair and reconstruction of streets. The 

Grantee shall not unnecessarily or unreasonably obstruct the use of or damage any street or alley and shall 

within a reasonable time and as early as practicable upon completion of any construction or repair work, 

restore all City streets and alleys to the same order and condition as they were before the excavation was 

made insofar as reasonably possible. The Grantee shall maintain, repair and keep in good condition for a 

period of one year all portions of streets and alleys disturbed by it or its agents. The Grantee shall be 

responsible for any obstruction in any street, alley or other public place caused by it in the operation and 

maintenance of its properties occurring at any time and shall promptly remove such obstruction. Any such 

obstruction which, after proper notice to Grantee demanding removal is not promptly removed by the 

Grantee may be taken care of by the City and the costs thereof shall be charged against Grantee. For 

purposes of this Section, Grantee’s above-ground facilities or temporary construction materials and 

equipment shall not be considered an “obstruction”.   

 

Section 4: Term of Franchise and Grant 

 

Such right and authority, permission and power is hereby granted for a term of ten (10) years from and 

after the date of the final acceptance of this Ordinance by the Company, herein referred to as the primary 

term. This franchise will automatically renew for successive periods of ten (10) years upon written 

request by Grantee to extend the Franchise no later than one year prior to the end of the primary term. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the franchise may be cancelled by written notice to the other party no less 

than 180 calendar days prior to the end of the primary term or the then current successive term. 

 

Section 5: City Right to Inspection of Grantee’s Plans, Accounts and Books – Grantee to Furnish Certain 

Maps 

 

Upon reasonable advance notice, the City shall have access to Grantee's records to the extent necessary to 

verify the accuracy of the Franchise fee payments required herein during the normal business hours of 

Grantee. The Grantee shall furnish, upon request, the City with a complete set of maps, including plans 

and profile of the distribution system of the Grantee and any future extensions. The City shall make every 

reasonable effort to maintain the confidentiality of any trade secrets or other proprietary information (such 

as proprietary maps and other mapping information) provided pursuant to this Section, including 

execution of a data sharing agreement with Grantee. Any map supplied shall not be used for locating gas 

facilities with the intent of excavating. Prior to excavating, the City shall request line locates per the 

requirements of Idaho Statute Title 55 Chapter 22 Underground Facilities Damage Prevention. 

 

Section 6: Payment to City and Filing of Quarterly Written Report with the City 

 

189



ORDINANCE 2025-05 - Page 3 

As consideration for this franchise and grant said Grantee, its successors and assigns, during the franchise 

period, shall pay to the City three percent (3%) of the gross receipts received from all sales of gas by 

Grantee within the corporate limits of the City through use, operation or possession of this franchise and 

grant. Such payments shall be made on a quarterly basis and shall be in lieu of any and all other fees, 

charges, licenses or taxes (other than ad valorem taxes) related to easements, franchises, rights-of way, 

utility lines and equipment installation, maintenance and removal during the term of the public service 

providers' franchise with the City which the City may impose for the rights and privileges herein granted 

or for the privilege of doing business within the City. 

The Grantee shall file 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter with the City a report for the 

preceding calendar quarter, which report shall contain a statement of all the gross receipts arising from all 

sales of gas by said Grantee within the City for the calendar quarter preceding such report, and at the 

same time the Grantee shall pay to the City the stipulated percentage of the gross quarterly receipts due 

for the calendar quarter which said report is made and filed. 

 

Section 7: Grantee Liability – Indemnification 

 

It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the Grantee and the City that the Grantee shall save 

the City harmless from all loss sustained by the City on account of any suit, judgment, execution, claim or 

demand whatsoever, resulting from negligence on the part of the Grantee in the construction, operation or 

maintenance of its gas system in the City. The City shall notify the grantee's representative in the City 

within ten (10) days after the presentation of any claim or demand, either by suit or otherwise, made 

against the City on account of any negligence as aforesaid on the part of the Grantee. Nothing herein shall 

require Grantee to save and hold the City harmless to the extent any loss sustained by the City is caused 

by the acts, omissions, or negligence of the City its agents, representatives, contractors, officers, directors, 

employees, or other parties subject to its direction or control. 

 

Section 8: Insurance 

 

Upon acceptance of this franchise by Grantee and before Grantee shall have any rights hereunder, Grantee 

shall file with the City Clerk a certificate evidencing the insurance of the Grantee against property 

damage in an amount not less than $500,000.00 and bodily injury with limits of not less than $500,000.00 

per person and $1,000,000.00 total for each occurrence.  Provided, however, the minimum limits of 

insurance as set forth herein shall be automatically increased at any time the liability limits of the City are 

increased pursuant to the Idaho Tort Claims Act (Idaho Code Section 6-901 et. seq.) or any similar 

legislation. 

 

Section 9: Safety Regulation Compliance 

 

Grantee shall comply with and conform to all safety regulations promulgated by the United States, State 

of Idaho, or any regulatory body having jurisdiction thereof. 

 

Section 10: Agreement Not to Compete – Reserve to City Power of Eminent Domain 

 

In consideration of Grantee’s undertaking hereunder as evidenced by its acceptance hereof the City agrees 

not to engage in the business of distributing and selling gas during the life of this franchise or any 

extension thereof in competition with the Grantee, its successor and assigns; but nothing herein contained 

shall be construed or deemed to prevent the City from exercising at any time any power of eminent 

domain granted to it under the laws of the State of Idaho. 

190



ORDINANCE 2025-05 - Page 4 

 

Section 11: Surrender of Franchise 

 

In the event natural gas at any time shall cease to be available to Grantee for the distribution and sale 

hereunder, Grantee reserves the right to surrender this franchise and in the event of such surrender prior to 

any expiration or termination of this franchise, or in any of such events, Grantee reserves the right to 

salvage all of its plant, works and facilities, and will restore City’s streets and alleys damaged by such 

salvage operation. 

 

Section 12: Written Acceptance 

 

The Grantee shall within thirty (30) days after the passage and publication of this ordinance, file with the 

City Clerk its acceptance of this franchise in writing signed by its proper officers and attested by its 

corporate seal. 

 

Section 13: Publication Costs 

 

The grantee shall assume the cost of publication of this franchise as such publication is required by law. 

 

Section 14: Forfeiture 

 

Any material violation by the Grantee, its vendee, lessee or successors of the provisions of this ordinance, 

franchise and grant or any material portions thereof or the failure promptly to perform any of the 

provisions thereof shall be cause for the forfeiture of this franchise and grant and all rights hereunder 

should Grantee fail to cure such violation within sixty (60) calendar days of City’s providing Grantee 

written notice, which shall be served upon Grantee by registered mail on its Region Director at 555 South 

Cole Road, Boise, ID 83709, or if not reasonably capable of being cured within sixty (60) calendar days, 

within such other reasonable period of time as the parties may agree. This provision shall not prevent the 

Grantee from submitting such question of forfeiture to proper court determination. 

 

Section 15: Separability 

 

If any part or parts of this ordinance shall be adjudged by the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, the 

same shall not affect the validity of any other part or parts hereof which can be given effect without the 

part or parts adjudged to be unconstitutional or invalid. The City declares that it would have passed the 

remaining parts of this ordinance if it had been known that such other part or parts thereof would be 

declared unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

Section 16: Repeal 

 

All ordinances and parts or ordinances of City in conflict herewith shall be, and the same are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Section 17: Notifications 

Whenever this Franchise calls for notice to or notification by any party, the same (unless otherwise 

specially provided) shall be in writing and directed to the recipient at the address set forth in this Section, 

unless written notice of change of address is provided to the other party. If the date for making any 

191



ORDINANCE 2025-05 - Page 5 

payment or performing any act is a legal holiday, payment may be made, or the act performed on the next 

succeeding business day which is not a legal holiday. Notices shall be directed to the parties as follows: 

To the City:  City Clerk 

    City of Bellevue 

    115 E. Pine St 

    PO Box 825 

    Bellevue, Idaho 83313 

 

 To IGC:  Region Director 

    Intermountain Gas Company 

    555 S Cole Road 

    Boise, Idaho 83709 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force on June 1, 2025, following its passage, approval, and 

publication as required by law, and the execution of the “Acceptance and Consent” by Grantee.  

 

DATED this ____day of ___________________________, 2025. 

 

CITY OF BELLEVUE 

 

_______________________________ 

Christina Giordani, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Amy Phelps, City Clerk 

 

 

ACCEPTANCE AND CONSENT 

INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY, as the franchisee and ‘Grantee’ in the ordinance set forth 

above, accepts the franchise set forth therein at the time of Grantee’s execution, and agrees to abide by the 

terms and conditions thereof. Specifically (and pursuant to I.C. § 50-329A), IGC consents to the three 

percent (3%) franchise fee assessed by the City pursuant to this ordinance.  

DATED this ____ day of ___________________________, 2025.      

   

________________________________________ 

By: Eric Martuscelli 

Its: VP, Field Operations & Customer Experience 

192



SUMMARY OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE FRANCHISE ORDINANCE NO. 25-05 

WITH INTERMOUNTAIN GAS COMPANY 

 

The City of Bellevue, Idaho hereby gives notice of the adoption of Bellevue Ordinance No. 25-05, 

the Bellevue Franchise Ordinance with Intermountain Gas, granting to Intermountain Gas 

Company a Ten (10) year extension to its franchise to construct, maintain and operate a gas 

transmission and distribution system; providing for the use of streets and alleys, and rules 

governing the same, subjecting the grantee to all powers of the city; setting forth the rules of the 

franchise and grant; providing for the right of inspection by the city of grantee’s plans, accounts, 

and books; requiring grantee to furnish certain maps; setting forth the quarterly payment to the 

city of three percent (3%) of the gross receipts received from all sales of gas by Grantee within 

the corporate limits of the City, and the filing of quarterly reports with the city; requiring grantee 

to indemnify city, and file evidence of insurance; requiring compliance with safety regulations; 

setting forth an agreement not to compete, reserving power of eminent domain; providing for 

surrender of franchise; granting right to salvage; requiring written acceptance; providing for 

consent to sale or assignment; providing for payment of publication cost; setting forth a penalty 

of up to a year in jail and a $1000 fine for violations of the ordinance; forfeitures, separability 

and repeal. 

 

The full text of the Gem Street Closure/Parade Ordinance is available at Bellevue City Hall, 115 E. 

Pine St., Bellevue Idaho 83313 in the office of the City Clerk or on the city web site at 

https://bellevueidaho.gov 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 25-05 SUMMARY CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned City of Bellevue legal advisor, having reviewed Ordinance No. 25-05 and the 

summary for Ordinance No. 25-05 believes the summary of Ordinance No. 25-05 is true and 

complete and that it provides adequate notice to the public of the identity and principal provisions of 

the ordinance. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Frederick C Allington, City Attorney 

 

 

 

193


	05.27.2025 Regular CC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	05.27.2025 Regular CC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	05.27.2025 Consejo Común.pdf

	Memorandum consent agenda.pdf
	D. 04.28.2025 Regular Council Meeting Min Draft.pdf
	S Wrede Public_Comment_04_28_2025_DEQ.pdf
	SKM_C450i25052105510.pdf
	SKM_C450i25052105511.pdf
	Treasurers Report for April 2025.pdf
	Bellevue City Permit App - Karl Malone Auto-25-1114.pdf
	Crown_Syringa- 1261 N Main St_ Bellevue (Hwy 75) 603405 Job# 25-1114.pdf
	NTP-603405-PMT (Karl Malone Auto) - 1.pdf
	Complete_with_Docusign_Bid_Packet-603405-PMT.pdf
	Bid Packet-603405-PMT (Karl Malone Auto).pdf
	CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SUMMARY
	Bidding Breakdown Per Unit
	CONTRACTOR BID SHEETS
	FULL SCOPE OF WORK:

	SS-FB-603405 ID - PMT (Karl Malone Auto)

	Approved PO 306335-1 - 603405
	Signed-BLA-603405-PMT_(Karl_Malone_Auto)
	Signed-BLA-603405-PMT (Karl Malone Auto).pdf
	BLA-603405-PMT (Karl Malone Auto)
	BLA-603405-PMT (Karl Malone Auto).pdf
	SCHEDULE 1

	SS-FB-603405 ID - PMT (Karl Malone Auto).pdf



	Memorandum Park Waiver.pdf
	SKM_C450i25052122051.pdf
	Hunger Coalition Fee Waiver App.pdf
	Screenshot 2025-05-22 094056.pdf
	2025-05-27 - Memo.pdf
	Meyers Lot Line Shift v2.pdf
	0 2025-05-12 - Staff Report.pdf
	1 2025-01-22 - Application.pdf
	2 02_2024-09-04 Lots 1A 2A  3A Block 96 Bellevue Townsite_Preliminary Plat.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 1
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 2
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 3


	2a 2025-02-27 Lots 1A, 2A, & 3A, Block 96, Bellevue Townsite_Preliminary Plat_Aerial Photo.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 1
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 2
	Myers FINAL PLAT_YC-PAGE 3


	3 01_Revision Request_signed.pdf
	4 03_Myers-Letter from the canal company.pdf
	4a scanGM,.pdf
	5 2025-03-17_Block 96 Alley Road Section Comparison_Revision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C1.0


	6a Bellevue Block 96_Site Visit Photo Compilation.pdf
	6b Photos_Doc_Combined.pdf
	7 2025-02-21 IDPCO Transmission Line Shift.pdf
	8 LLA-25-01 - 2025-03-17 - PZ FOF.pdf
	9 2025-02-18 - Meeting Minutes.pdf
	10 2025-03-03 - Meeting Minutes.pdf
	11 2025-03-17 - Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Memo 2 re IGC Franchise.pdf
	Ordinance 25-05 Internountain Gas Franchise.pdf
	Ordinance Summary.pdf



